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Academy
The Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia (the Academy) promotes excellence in the social sciences and 
in their contribution to public policy. It coordinates the promotion of research, teaching and advice in the social 
sciences, promotes national and international scholarly cooperation across disciplines and sectors, comments 
on national needs and priorities in the social sciences, and provides advice to government on issues of national 
importance.

The Academy is an independent, interdisciplinary body of leading social scientists recognised for their 
distinguished contributions to the nation. Established in 1971, replacing its parent body the Social Science 
Research Council of Australia (founded in 1942), the Academy is an independent, interdisciplinary body of 
elected Fellows. Fellows are elected by their peers for their distinguished achievements and exceptional 
contributions made to the social sciences across eighteen disciplines.

The Academy is an autonomous, non-governmental organisation, devoted to the advancement of knowledge 
and research in the various social sciences.

The Academy if comprised of four Panels of Fellows, each comprising several disciplines:

•	 Panel A: Anthropology, Demography, Geography, Linguistics, Sociology, Management.

•	 Panel B: Accounting, Economics, Economic History, Marketing, Statistics.

•	 Panel C: History, Law, Philosophy, Political Science.

•	 Panel D: Education, Psychology, Social Medicine.

A B O U T  T H E
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The Academy 
acknowledges the 
traditional owners 
of the land on which 
our office stands, 
the Ngunnawal 
people, and pays our 

respect to leaders, past, present and emerging. We 
acknowledge and respect the continuing cultures, 
languages and heritage of Aboriginal and Torres 
Strait Islander peoples.

This is my first year as President and I reflect on 
the past few months with a great sense of the 
importance of scholarship and the significance of the 
contribution of the social sciences to contemporary 
society. A great deal of attention is given to the 
importance of STEM disciplines in solving society’s 
challenges and equipping people for the workforce 
of tomorrow. But STEM is harnessing only half of 
human knowledge; the social sciences and the 
humanities are at least as important.

The Academy purpose is what it always has been 
but we have taken the opportunity of developing 
a new strategic plan to restate our purpose: to 
recognise and champion excellence in social science. 
We have made an explicit statement of our values: 
excellence, independence and integrity. We are also 
making a commitment to acknowledge and respect 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples and 
their traditional knowledge. This means the Academy 
Executive Committee and National Office Team will 
work with our ATSI Fellows to turn this commitment 
into action. 

The strategic plan has been developed by the 
Executive Committee and it will be presented for 
endorsement at the Annual General Meeting. 
The Academy is its Fellows. This year we have 
welcomed 36 distinguished scholars into 
the Fellowship. It is pleasing to see greater 
representation of female scholars, and now 1/3 
of Fellows are female.  The Academy has also 
recognised four new Jubilee Fellows, who have 
achieved 40 years of Fellowship. Congratulations 
to Professor Robert O’Neill AO, Emeritus Professor 
Richard Selleck, Emeritus Professor Peter Sheehan 
AO, and Mr Bob Wallace. 

This report details our activities and financial results 
for the 2018-19 year. The Academy’s activities 
include workshops, public forums, public lectures, 
roundtables and commissioned reports. Fellows 
have generously given their expertise and their time 
to support Academy activities. We thank you all.

I want to extend my deep thanks to the outgoing 
President, Professor Glenn Withers. Glenn has led 
the Academy into more active advocacy to harness 
social science knowledge in addressing key social 
issues. The publication of the Academy report, 
The Social Sciences Shape the Nation, in mid 2017 
is a landmark document detailing the immense 
contribution to Australia life. Glenn played a key 
role in the Academy’s contribution to the Securing 
Australia’s Future Program.  Glenn also led significant 
changes in the structure of the Australian Council 
of Learned Academies (ACOLA) and these changes 
should ensure a stronger basis for co-operation and 
collaboration across the Academies. It is very fitting 
that we recommend to the Annual General Meeting 
the award of Honorary Fellowship for Professor 
Withers.

To say this has been a year of change would be an 
understatement. The Academy lost its longstanding 
Executive Director, Dr John Beaton, in November 
2018. John had steered the fortunes of the Academy 
for 17 years, ensuring the strong position – our 
standing in academia, the goodwill of our Fellows, 
and a strong financial base –we have today. The 
Academy has awarded Honorary Fellowship to John 
in recognition of his own scholarly contributions 
to the social sciences, notably anthropology, and 
his support for the Academy.  I wish to express our 
enormous thanks to the national office team who 
worked so hard in the aftermath of John’s sudden 
death to ensure the Academy remained functioning 
particularly through the busy period of our annual 
symposium and related events. Liz West returned 
from maternity leave to lead the team through such a 
difficult period and I pay tribute to her commitment 
to the Academy. 

President
M E S S A G E  F R O M  T H E
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I want to welcome Dr Chris Hatherly into the 
position of Executive Director. Chris comes to us 
from the Australian Academy of Science where he 
was Policy Director. Chris was previously National 
Research Manager at Alzheimer’s Australia and 
has held other roles in government and non profit 
organisations. Chris holds a PhD in psychology from 
ANU. He has a clear appreciation of the value of the 
social sciences and the role of learned academies.

In Memoriam

This year, the Academy has mourned the loss 
of Emeritus Professor Patrick Troy AC, Emeritus 
Professor John Victor Prescott, Professor Eric 
Richards, Professor Ross Day, Professor Mardi 
Dungey, and long-standing Academy Executive 
Director and Honorary Fellow Dr John Beaton. 
While we miss them, we are appreciative of their 
contributions to the social sciences. The Academy 
extends its condolences to their families, colleagues 
and friends. 
Vale.

Donations

Donations from Fellows and others are one of 
the important ways that ASSA seeks to fund its 
mission and provides us with a level of flexibility to 
fund innovative solutions for achieving our aims. 
We thank those who have made donations to the 
Academy this year for their generosity: Emeritus 
Professor Joe Isaac, Emeritus Professor Keith 
Hancock AO, Emeritus Professor Anne Edwards AO, 
and Professor Yoshihisa Kashima.

Acknowledgments

I wish to thank all the members of the Executive 
Committee for their time and support. Professor 
Wai-Fong Chua has joined the Executive in the role 
of Treasurer and particular thanks go to her for 
continuing developments in our accounts to make 
them consistent with modern practice. I would also 
like to thank Professor Sharon Roach Anleu (Panel A 
Chair), and all other outgoing Committee members 
for their service.

The National Office team has supported services to 
Fellows and managing a growing range of Academy 
activities and programs. There seem to ever more 
opportunities for policy, advocacy and public 
activities inviting ASSA participation. So on behalf 
of the Executive Committee and the full Fellowship 
thanks to Chris Hatherly, Liz West, Alice Balnaves-
Knyvett, Michelle Bruce, Dylan Clements, Rosemary 
Hurley, Mick Morris, and Anna Dennis.

The following pages expand on the highlights and 
full activities for the year. Enjoy reading.

Professor Jane Hall
Academy President

In Memory of Dr John Mark Beaton (1944-2018)

Dr Beaton served as the Academy’s Executive Director from 2001 until his sudden and untimely passing 
on November 6, 2018. Vale.  
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2018 was a year 
of change for the 
Academy.

The passing of long-
standing Executive 
Director Dr John 

Beaton in November was a devastating and 
untimely loss to the Academy, to John’s family 
and to his many friends and colleagues. A 
debt of gratitude is owed to John for almost 18 
years of service at the helm of the Academy, 
as well as to Academy staff – in particular Liz 
West – who ensured the success of the Annual 
Symposium and related events just one week 
after John’s passing. 

On the recommendation of the Executive 
Committee, Fellows attending the AGM on 14 
November, 2018 voted unanimously for the 
posthumous award of Honorary Fellowship 
to Dr John Beaton in recognition of both his 
scholarship in the field of anthropology and his 
significant contribution to the social sciences in 
Australia through governance of the Academy.

Vale. 

The Academy welcomed 36 new Fellows to its 
number in 2018. This represents a success rate 
of 56% of nominations received - disappointing 
of course to those not elected, but consistent 
both with previous years and with the 
esteemed status embodied in Fellowship of 
one of Australia’s Learned Academies. 

It is worth noting that in for the first time in 
the Academy’s history more women than men 
were both nominated (58%) and elected (53%) 
in 2018; increasing the proportion of female 
Fellows to 33%. While the Academy has further 
to go on gender equity and in other areas of 
diversity and inclusion, it is well ahead of other 
Academies in Australia on gender balance and 
ahead of most other science-based Academies 
in the world.

The 2018 Academy Symposium on 
regenerating trust and integrity in public 
institutions was highly topical in the current 

political environment and was well received by 
those attending. 

It’s pleasing to report that the symposium has 
generated continued interest as well, with the 
convenors Professor Adam Graycar FASSA 
and Dr Adam Masters running a successful 
workshop on the topic with public servants in 
Canberra in October, 2019.

A full report on the Symposium will be 
published at the time of the 2019 Annual 
Symposium. 

The 2019 Symposium will focus on the critical 
and challenging topic of saving people and 
the planet. Convenors Professor Sharon Friel 
FASSA and Dr Ashley Schram from the ANU, and 
Professor Christine Parker from Melbourne 
University have developed an outstanding 
program and we look forward to welcoming 
many Fellows and other colleagues to Canberra 
in Melbourne.

2018-19 saw the continued success of the 
Academy’s public lectures, forums and 
workshop programs. Highlights included:

•	 Immediate Past President Professor Glenn 
Withers AO FASSA delivering a wide-ranging 
2018 Cunningham Lecture on the pursuit of 
knowledge

•	 Professor John Quiggin FASSA exploring the 
future of work in the 2019 Keith Hancock 
Lecture

•	 An expert panel discussing the value of 
experts in the post-truth world during the 
2018 Peter Karmel Forum (conclusion: we’re 
more important than ever!), and

•	 Paul Bourke Awardee Dr Daniel King 
delivering a fascinating and disturbing talk 
on ‘gaming disorder’.

The Policy and Advocacy Committee had a 
busy year, with 12 submissions to government 
inquiries and reviews summarised in this 
report.
 
Key and ongoing areas of policy focus for the 
Academy include social science research data 

Executive Director
M E S S A G E  F R O M  T H E
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infrastructure, research funding generally, 
policy action on climate change, access to 
public information through archives and other 
repositories, and performance metrics for 
research and innovation.

The Academy has also continued to contribute 
through its Fellows to important policy-related 
projects through the Australian Council of 
Learned Academies (ACOLA) with notable 
reports on Synthetic Biology and Artificial 
Intelligence released during the year. 

The Academy’s international program 
continued to achieve good outcomes; our 
continuing partnership with the Chinese 
Academy of Social Sciences supporting four 
new projects and a refreshed collaborative 
research program being negotiated with the 
Embassy of France in Australia.

The Academy has continued its role as host of the 
Asian Association of Social Science Research Councils 
(AASREC) and as of September 2019 has assumed 
the Association Chair (our International Secretary 
Professor James Fox FASSA) and agreed to host the 
next AASREC biennial conference in 2021. 

Looking ahead, the Academy will release 
its 2019-2022 Strategic Plan at the Annual 
Symposium in November 2019. The plan sets 
out a program of activities aimed at drawing 
on the expertise of the Fellowship to provide 

an influential voice on key policy issues, on 
diversifying our communication activities, and 
on continuing to improve Academy processes 
and procedures. The Plan also commits the 
Academy to a priority focus on inclusion and 
engagement of Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander peoples in the social sciences.
I look forward to reporting the preliminary 
outcomes next year.

Finally, a note of thanks to my colleagues in the 
National Office Michelle Bruce, Alice Balnaves-
Knyvett, Dylan Clements, Rosemary Hurley, 
Mick Morris and Anna Dennis who have put in 
an enormous effort to maintain the programs 
of the Academy during a time of significant 
change. Thanks also to colleagues Liz West, 
Sunny Hutson, Jennifer Fernance and Phillip 
Mackay who have taken up new challenges 
beyond the Academy during the year. 

Dr Chris Hatherly
Executive Director



1943–1952   Kenneth Cunningham

1952–1953	 Sir Douglas Copland

1953–1958	 Sir Leslie Melville

1958–1962	 Sydney Butlin

1962–1964	 Wilfred Borrie

1964–1966	 William O’Neil

1966–1969	 Percy Partridge

1969–1972	 Richard Downing

1972–1975	 Geoffrey Sawer

1975–1978	 Fred Gruen

1978–1981	 Alan Shaw

1981–1984	 Keith Hancock

1984–1987	 Joseph Isaac

1987–1990	 Peter Karmel

1990–1993	 Peter Sheehan 

1993–1997	 Paul Bourke

1997–2000	 Fay Gale

2000–2003	 Leon Mann

2003–2006	 Sue Richardson

2006–2009	 Stuart Macintyre

2009–2012	 Barry McGaw

2012–2015	 Deborah Terry

2015–2018	 Glenn Withers

2018 - 2021	Jane Hall

National Office
A C A D E M YA C A D E M Y

Presidents
Dr Chris
Hatherly

Executive Director
(from 1 July, 2019)

Alice 
Balnaves-
Knyvett

Admin Officer

Michelle 
Bruce

Fellowship Manager

Dylan 
Clements

Programs Manager

Mick Morris

Finance Manager

Liz West

Deputy Director

Rosemary 
Hurley
 
Human Resources 
& Payroll Manager
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G O V E R N A N C E

Committee Officers

Professor
Jane Hall

President

Professor 
Glenn Withers 
AO 
 

Immediate Past 
President

Professor 
Wai Fong 
Chua AM
 
Treasurer

Professor 
Jim Fox

International Secretary

Professor 
Richard 
Holden
Chair, Public Forums & 
Communication

Professor Sue 
Richardson AM
Chair, Policy & Advocacy

Professor 
Michael Innes

Chair, Workshops

Professor 
Sharyn Roach 
Anleu
Chair, Panel A

Professor 
Kevin Fox

Chair, Panel B

Professor Kate 
Darian-Smith

Chair, Panel C

Professor 
Kevin 
McConkey AM

Chair, Panel D

Dr Chris
Hatherly

Execuitve Director
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Public Forums  
&  

Communication

The Public Forums and Communication Program 
aims to raise awareness of the social sciences within 
the community, among policy-makers and opinion 
leaders, and to highlight the relevance of the social 
sciences for public policy. It does so by organising 
public lectures, the Annual Symposium, states-based 
Fellows events and managing the Academy’s media 
activities.  

PUBLIC LECTURES

The Cunningham Lecture, the Academy’s flagship 
annual public lecture, is named after Dr Kenneth 
Stewart Cunningham, the first chairman of the 
Social Science Research Committee (the Academy’s 
predecessor organisation). The Cunningham Lecture 
is presented by an eminent social scientist, and 
occurs as part of the Annual events, immediately 
following the Symposium. It is open to the public. 
Attendees traditionally include a diverse mixture of 
people including academics, officials, diplomats, 
and a wider interested public. Recent Cunningham 
Lecturers have included Professor Glenn Withers AO 
FASSA, Professor Peter Shergold AC FASSA, The Hon 
Dr Kay Patterson AO PSM, The Hon Andrew Leigh MP 
FASSA, and Professor Bruce Chapman AM FASSA.

The Keith Hancock Lecture honours Professor 
Keith J. Hancock AO, an eminent labour economist 
and social scientist who served as President of the 
Academy for the period 1981 - 1984. A graduate of 
Melbourne University and the London School of 
Economics, Professor Hancock has held a number 
of important positiosn including: Foundation 
Professor of Economics at Flinders University; 
Deputy President of the Australian Conciliation and 
Arbitration Commission; Senior Deputy President of 
the Australian Industrial Relations; and Professorial 
Fellow in the National Institute of Labour Studies. He 
is one of two Australians who are Honorary Fellows 
of the London School of Economics. 

The Paul Bourke Lecture is named in honour of 
the late Paul Francis Bourke (1938–1999), eminent 
historian and President of the academy from 1993–
1997. Amongst scholars the contribution Paul Bourke 
made to the field of performance measurement is 
considered to be invaluable. The lecture is presented 
each year by the recipients of the previous year’s 
Paul Bourke Awards for Early Career Research at 
the lecturer’s home university and is open to the 
public. The Paul Bourke Medal honours Australians 
in the early part of their career who have achieved 
excellence in scholarship in one or more fields of the 
social sciences.  

The Fay Gale Lecture honours the late Professor 
Gwendoline Fay Gale AO (1932 – 2008), the 
Academy’s first female President (1997 – 2000). 
Professor Gale was an eminent human geographer. 
She was well known for her contributions to 
academia, the advancement of women within 
academia, Indigenous Studies and juvenile justice. 
To honour Professor Gale’s contributions to both 
the Academy and the social sciences, the Academy 
each year invites a distinguished female social 
scientist to present the Fay Gale Lecture. As part 
of the Academy’s outreach efforts, the lecture is 
traditionally delivered once at the University of 
Adelaide’s Fay Gale Centre, and then once in the 
speaker’s home University/Institution. 

The Peter Karmel Forum in Public Policy was 
introduced in 2013 in honour of the late Professor 
Peter Karmel AC, CBE (1922 - 2008), a past President 
of the Academy (1987-1990), who had a profound 
impact on higher education and public policy in 
Australia over many decades.  Professor Karmel 
was an active member of the Academy of the Social 
Sciences in Australia from his election in 1952 
and continued to contribute to public discourse, 
particularly in education, throughout his life.

MEDIA STATISTICS

The Academy is active on social media, 
communicating via Twitter, LinkedIn, Facebook 
and YouTube. At the time of reporting the 
Academy had the following level of engagement:

Twitter: 1,435 Followers  

LinkedIn: 153 Followers

Facebook: 91 Followers

YouTube: 17 Subscribers + 67 videos
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Public Lectures
2018 Fay Gale Lecture

Decolonising Artificial Intelligence? 
Presented by Professor Genevieve Bell

The idea of Artificial Intelligence (AI) was codified 
at a conference in the American summer of 1956. 
It was summarised to mean the attempts to 
“make machines use language, form abstractions 
and concepts, solve the kinds of problems now 
reserved for humans, and improve themselves.” 

That initial formulation, a product of a particular 
time and place, has framed a great deal of 
research ever since. But what exactly is AI in 
2018, and why does it loom so very large in our 
conversations about the future? In this talk, 
Professor Genevieve Bell explored the ways 
in which AI, and our imaginings of it, could be 
subject to an anthropologically inspired set of 
interventions.

View the lecture here: https://www.assa.edu.au/
event/2018-fay-gale-lecture-2/

2018 Paul Bourke Lecture

Gaming Disorder: Meeting the challenges of a 
new disorder 
Presented by Dr Daniel King

Digital devices and online media have become 
integral to young people’s lives, and have enabled 
new opportunities for socialisation, creativity, and 
learning. However, ‘always-online’ lifestyles and 
the constant accessibility of smartphones and 
other electronic devices have also led to excessive 
digital technology use and related mental health 
issues. 

At the same time, online activities such as eSports 
and entertainment streaming have popularised 
the act of committing to continuous engagement 
in video-gaming activities for some young people. 
Australian data on excessive gaming indicate 
that 4.1% of adolescent boys play video games 
for an average of 9 hours or more on an average 
weekday, and 7.8% play for an average of 9 
hours or more on weekend days. Further, 4.4% 
report going without eating or sleeping in order 
to play games; feeling upset if they cannot play; 
spending less time with family or friends or not 
doing schoolwork due to gaming; and trying 
unsuccessfully to reduce their gaming time. 

In recognition that some people become 
problematically involved and a smaller proportion 
develop an addictive relationship with video 
games, ‘Gaming disorder’ and ‘Hazardous gaming’ 
are now officially recognised in the International 
Classification of Diseases (ICD-11). Online gaming 
is a complex phenomenon with unique features 
that pose challenges for researchers, clinicians, 
parents, and policymakers to develop effective 
approaches to reduce problematic gaming. 

This lecture discusses some of the latest 
international research on problematic 
gaming and gaming disorder. The focus is on 
conceptualisation, research on epidemiology and 
risk and protective factors, and screening and 
intervention approaches.

View the lecture here: https://www.assa.edu.au/
event/2018-paul-bourke-lecture-dr-daniel-king/

A Photo credit: Starline
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2018 Peter Karmel Forum 

Experts? Who needs ‘em? – Promoting the 
Value of Expertise in Decision-Making in 
Australia’s Future 
Panellists: Ms Sarah Burr, Professor Linda Botterill 
FASSA, Associate Professor Carolyn Hendriks, Professor 
Deborah Lupton FASSA

British MP Michael Gove recently said, “I think 
the people have had enough of experts with 
organisations from acronyms saying that they 
know what is best and getting it consistently 
wrong”. With integrity and trust in institutions at 
an all-time low, his comments reflect a society 
feeling fed up with experts who are out-of-touch. 

This forum examined how experts can effect 
positive change and remain relevant in a post-
truth society. What can we do to ensure those 
with the power to make the decisions that will 
shape our future are equipped with the necessary 
knowledge and research (particularly in relation 
to the social sciences) to give our nation the best 
shot and restore public confidence?

View the forum here: https://www.assa.edu.au/
event/2018-peter-karmel-forum/

2019 Keith Hancock Lecture 

The Future of Work 
Presented by Professor John Quiggin FASSA

The outcomes of technological change are affected 
by the interaction of changes in the regulation of 
labour markets and the stance of public policy. For 

the last 40 years, changes in labour market regulation 
have been almost uniformly anti-union and anti-
worker, while public policy has been premised on 
the desirability of reducing wages. Until and unless 
the stance of public policy changes, technological 
change will be experienced by workers as harmful 
disruption. Used in a socially desirable way, however, 
technological change offers the potential for a radical 
improvement in work-life balance.

2018 Cunningham Lecture

The Pursuit of Knowledge: Veritas Redux 

Presented by Professor Glenn Withers AO FASSA

Humans are ascendant because of rational 
knowledge. In this Lecture the nature and 
standing of contemporary knowledge creation, 
testing and transmission will be examined. 
Achievement will be celebrated, but failure and 
challenges will be recognised. 

Examining the consequential core issue of the 
state of education and research across the 
globe will then follow, and how that must be 
defended and advanced as the very foundation 
for the future. Especial attention will be given to 
Australian tertiary education and to the state and 
role of the social sciences. 

Specific guidance on the way forward for a better 
future in a post-truth era will be offered, as will 
specific cases ranging from immigration to gender 
equity and cyber security, in order to underpin the 
broader analysis.

View the lecture here: https://www.assa.edu.au/
event/2018-cunningham-lecture-the-pursuit-of-
knowledge/

A Professor Deborah Lupton, Associate Professor Carolyn 
Hendriks, Professor Linda Botterill, Ms Sarah Burr, Dr Michael 
Wesley.

A Professor Glenn Withers AO.



16 Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia

2019 Peter Karmel Forum

Understanding Politics and Policy through a 
Values Lens

Panellists: Professor Linda Botterill FASSA, Professor 
Brian Head FASSA, and Professor Julie Lee

This forum will discuss the insights that can be 
gained from thinking about politics and policy 
through a values lens.  Our lives are guided by sets 
of values that underpin our evaluations of good 
and bad, right and wrong, and what should or 
should not be.  These values have their origins in 
an individual’s upbringing, their religion, societal 
norms, and their lived experience.  

Values are deeply held and hard to shift and 
they guide not only individual behaviour but 
also inform judgments about the appropriate 
functioning of society. Recognising the role of 
values has important implications for politics and 
policy, highlighting the limitations of rational, 
value-free models of the policy process.

 A values perspective draws attention to the 
inherently political nature of policymaking, 
and acknowledges its essential messiness, 
uncertainties, and conflicts around goal 
identification, problem definition, and 
instrument choice. This forum discussed how 
a political values perspective can enhance our 
understanding of political conflict and the policy 
process.

View the forum here: https://www.assa.edu.au/
event/2019-peter-karmel-forum/

Book Launch

Judges, Judging and Humour 
Editors: Dr Jessica Milner Davis and Professor Sharyn 
Roach Anleu FASSA

This book examines social aspects of humour 
relating to the judiciary, judicial behaviour, and 
judicial work across different cultures and eras, 
identifying how traditionally recorded wit and 
humourous portrayals of judges reflect social 
attitudes to the judiciary over time.

It contributes to cultural studies and social 
science/socio-legal studies of both humour 
and the role of emotions in the judiciary and 
in judging. It explores the surprisingly varied 
intersections between humour and the judiciary 
in several legal systems: judges as the target of 
humour; legal decisions regulating humour; the 
use of humour to manage aspects of judicial work 
and courtroom procedure; and judicial/legal 
figures and customs featuring in comic and satiric 
entertainment through the ages. 

Delving into the multi-layered connections 
between the seriousness of the work of the 
judiciary on the one hand, and the lightness 
of humour on the other hand, this fascinating 
collection will be of particular interest to scholars 
of the legal system, the criminal justice system, 
humour studies, and cultural studies. 

Find out more: https://www.assa.edu.au/event/
book-launch-judges-judging-and-humour/

A Professor Brian Head,  Professor Linda Botterill, Professor 
Julie Lee.
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Annual Symposium
Regenerating Integrity and Trust in 

Australian Institutions

Convened by Professor Adam Graycar AM FASSA and Dr 
Adam Masters

The Fellows of the Academy of the Social Sciences 
in Australia recognise and respond through their 
disciplines to matters of national concern.  

In its 2018 Annual Symposium the Academy brought 
social science insights to bear on the loss of trust 
in public and private Australian institutions which 
poses unacceptable risks to our civil society. Media 
sources have been quick and persistent in identifying 
everything from incompetence to malfeasance in 
the institutions that we have come to trust. Our 
banking system, our government, our educational 
institutions, religious organisations, charities, 
businesses, professional sports… all have been 
found wanting in ways that lessen our trust in them, 
make us cynical and threaten our hope for the future.  

Can trust be restored, by what means, and how long 
might be required to regenerate the trust that a civil 
society depends upon?

View selected presentations here: https://www.
assa.edu.au/event/assa-annual-events-12-14-
november-2018/

A  Crowd at the 2018 Annual Symposium held in Canberra.
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Policy & 
Advocacy

ASSA recognises and advances excellence in 
social science. This is true for pure social science 
research, like that of philosophy or history, and 
for applied research, like that of public health and 
political science. Applied research often has policy 
implications or an explicit policy focus, and success 
in this kind of social science research depends on its 
policy relevance and applicability. It is the purpose 
of the Policy and Advocacy Program to develop this 
research into policy positions or recommendations, 
and to advocate for the developed policies which 
come out of this research.

ASSA’s policy development and advocacy efforts 
have reactive and proactive dimensions. The main 
priority in its reactive work is the development of 
submissions in response to Senate or Government 
inquiries, or reviews conducted by government 
departments or agencies. These submissions draw 
on the expertise of ASSA’s fellowship to develop 
policies and make recommendations to the inquiries 
or reviews which would promote excellence in 
social science research, or which represent the 
implementation of the findings of social science 
research in public policy.

The main priority in its proactive work is the 
coordination of policy roundtables, which aim 
to bring together research expertise and policy 
influence. Roundtables take questions of public 
significance, and commit to developing concrete 
policies for addressing them out of up to date 
social science research. This represents a chance 
for outstanding researchers to seriously flesh out 
the policy implications of their work in a hardnosed 
way and to the degree required by policy actors, 
and a chance for policy actors to flesh out concrete 
policies in a way which meaningfully incorporates 
the relevant expertise and knowledge. Policy actors 
are not restricted to politicians or their advisors 
and public servants, but include decisionmakers in 
business, business regulation, community groups, 
NGOs, and the union movement. 

In addition to running policy roundtables and 
making submissions, ASSA’s policy development and 
advocacy activities include a range of meetings and 
representations conducted under the banner of its 
government engagement plan, including events with 
the Parliamentary Friends of the Social Sciences. 
This group aims to engage directly and develop 
relationships with parliamentarians and their 
advisors on a regular basis.

Excerpts from the following ASSA submissions to 
enquiries can be found in this report:

•	 Response to National Research Infrastructure: 
Humanities, Arts, and Social Sciences Scoping 
Study (September 2018)

•	 ASSA Response to Medical Research Future Fund 
Consultation (August 2018)

•	 ASSA Response to Australian Public Service 
Review: The Australia Public Service and the 
Social Sciences (July 2018)

•	 ASSA Response to the New Australian 
Government Data Sharing and Release 
Legislation (August 2018)

•	 Response to the Department of Foreign Affairs 
and Trade’s Soft Power Review (September 2018)

•	 ASSA Response to Performance-Based Funding 
for the Commonwealth Grant Scheme Discussion 
Paper (February 2019)

•	 ASSA Response to the National Regional, Rural 
and Remote Education Strategy Framing Paper 
(February 2019)

•	 Research and Australia’s Future: 2019-20 Pre-
Budget Submission (February 2019)

•	 ASSA’s response to the Implementation of the 
National Science and Research Priorities under 
the Australian Research Council’s National 
Competitive Grants Program Review (April 2019)

•	 ASSA Response to Department of Industry, 
Innovation and Science Consultation Paper on 
Improving Innovation Indicators (May 2019)

•	 ASSA Submission to the Tune Review of the 
National Archives of Australia (June 2019)

•	 ASSA’s Election Statement: The Social Sciences 
Shape the Nation (May 2019, Full)

Full Academy submissions can be read here: https://
www.assa.edu.au/category/submissions/
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National Research Infrastructure: 
Humanities, Arts, and Social Sciences 

Scoping Study (September 2018)

Investment should support leading-edge 
research and innovation and be accessible to 
publicly and privately funded users domestically 
and internationally. Following is a summary of 
recommendations what we propose to be a Social 
Science Scoping Study that would form a part of the 
broader HASS Scoping Study:

1.	 A. The development of a stand-alone Social 
Science scoping study, as a component of the 
broader HASS Scoping Study, which recognizes 
the interoperability of social science data and 
the achievements and potential of systems 
such as: the Australian Data Archive (ANU); 
Commonwealth government generalized 
survey and administrative data investments as 
described in the Government’s 2013 Essential 
Statistical Assets and 2015 Public Data Policy 
Statement; and specialized data assets such 
as the longitudinal datasets funded by the 
Department of Social Services and managed 
by the National Longitudinal Data Centre. 

2.	 An integrated data management environment, 
having the following attributes:

•	 Data storage facilities (such as National 
Computational Infrastructure and Research 
Data Services) providing high availability 
and large-volume data storage and back-up 
facilities.

•	 Secure access facilities (such as the 
Population Health Research Network and 
the ABS Microdata Laboratory).

•	 Data linkage (through Statistical Data 
Integration Authorities), and data 
integration and interrogation environments 
(such as the Australian Urban Research 
Infrastructure Network).

•	 Accredited Data Authorities which build 
on the responsibilities of integrating 
authorities to provide advice and 
technical services, such as data cleaning, 
deidentification, linkage and safe release.

•	 Data discovery services (such as Australian 
National Data Service) to enable data 
discovery through shared platforms and 
services such as Digital Object Identifiers.

•	 Sufficient data protection and security 
through the Five-Safes Framework

3.	 A stable long-term preservation and curation 
environment. 

4.	 D. Effective access for bona-fide researchers, 
including: i. capabilities for open data 
download (data.gov.au) and mediated data 
access (Australian Data Archive) ii. Availability 
of secure access environments (such as PHRN 
and the ABS Data Lab) iii. Machine-to-machine 
data access. iv. National protocols for data 
sharing, access and utilisation such as the new 
Data Sharing and Release Act. 

5.	 E. Soft infrastructure in support of innovation 
in research methods, such as the use of 
probability-based sampling methods for online 
surveys, experimental methods for behavioural 
economics, and data science methods for 
description, classification and prediction to 
enable new forms of research data collection 
and analysis to be established and supported. 

6.	 F. Capacity building to promote knowledge 
of legislative frameworks, methodologies, 
datasets and technology and infrastructure use 
throughout the sector. 

7.	 G. Adequate training for researchers and 
data providers in the new platform including 
provision of expert archival assistance to 
facilitate access.

Medical Research Future Fund 
Consultation (August 2018)

ASSA responded to a Medical Research Future 
Fund consultation, which was undertaken to 
inform the second Australian Medical Research and 
Innovation Priorities 2018-2020. In it, ASSA made 
recommendations for investment in the application 
of behavioural economics, building evidence in 
primary care, and disruptive technologies.
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Australian Public Service Review: The 
Australia Public Service and the Social 

Sciences (July 2018)

This submission examines the capability, culture 
and operating model of the APS, and makes the 
following eight practical recommendations to help 
ensure the APS is ready, over the coming decades, 
to best serve Australia in: driving innovation and 
productivity in the economy; delivering high quality 
policy advice, regulatory oversight, programs and 
services; tackling complex, multi-sectoral challenges 
in collaboration with the community, business and 
citizens; ensuring our domestic, foreign, trade and 
security interests are coordinated and well managed; 
improving citizens’ experience of government and 
delivering fair outcomes for them; acquiring and 
maintaining the necessary skills and expertise to 
fulfil its responsibilities: 

1.	 Given a series of earlier reviews of the APS, 
the review panel should assess the extent 
to which the recommendations of these 
previous exercises in self-reflection have 
been implemented, and the reasons for both 
successes and failures. 

2.	 Researchers perceive the Council of Australian 
Governments (COAG) as currently lacking 
the support systems and the strategic focus, 
including a relevant research base, needed 
to address the challenging tasks that the 
country requires. We recommend that COAG 
structures, processes, and advisory capacity 
be augmented to give it more independence 
of the Commonwealth government, and the 
administrative heft to match the importance of 
its role. 

3.	 There should be consideration of how to 
promote inter-sectoral research-policy 
cooperation, and better understanding 
on each side of the imperatives to which 
the other must respond. This could be the 
catalyst for jointly-created and broad-based 
intellectual eco-systems, and ‘encompassing 
groups’ to serve as advocacy coalitions for 
practical policy development. We suggest (a) 
the secondment of relevant research experts 
to particular departmental policy teams 
for specific projects; and (b) the short-term 
secondment of individuals from within the APS 
to identified research teams within Universities 
for a period.

4.	 The ANZSOG model—currently oriented 
towards academics training public servants 
in institutional and organizational dynamics 
and policy case studies—should be extended 
to offering training to academics in how to 
engage with policy agencies. 

5.	 APS departments should maintain an updated 
register of immediate priorities and emergent 
issues in their domains with which researchers 
could match their research interests. 

6.	 APS departments should introduce ‘research 
champion’ roles within their management 
teams. Such research champions should 
(a) identify and develop relationships 
with relevant external experts; and (b) 
initiate roundtables or forums for the APS 
on policy issues of concern to the service, 
in collaboration with external research 
professionals. 

7.	 The APS must pay close attention to the 
costs and benefits of outsourcing, its impact 
on policy capacity, on institutional memory 
and the means of honing its message in the 
competition for government attention. 

8.	 The government should establish of a 
comprehensive integrated HASS Data Platform, 
in order to drive transformations in the way 
researchers discover, access, curate, and 
analyse social and cultural data.
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New Australian Government Data 
Sharing and Release Legislation  

(August 2018) 

ASSA commends the Australian Government on its 
commitment to improving Australia’s use of data as 
a key opportunity to substantially enhance national 
productivity. The importance of improving data 
use practices extends well beyond questions of 
national productivity to questions of wellbeing and 
national progress. Making data more available is an 
achievable reform and would liberate economy-wide 
productivity improvements over many years. We 
welcomed the release of the Australian Government 
Public Data Policy Statement in 2015, and the 
recommendations of the Productivity Commission 
in its Data Availability and Use Inquiry in 2017. The 
proposed new legislation is an important step in 
reforming and enhancing access to public data in 
Australia. Three important issues not raised in the 
Issues Paper are the need to upgrade the capability 
in the Australian Government, and more generally, in 
respect of:

1.	 The analysis of large and imperfect data sets 
including linked data sets. 

2.	 The management of these data sets and the 
design of the underlying systems. 

3.	 Managing the security of these data sets (or at 
least knowing when to call in the experts).

Department of Foreign Affairs and 
Trade’s Soft Power Review 

(September 2018)

This submission affirms the importance of soft 
power, and recognises education and research are 
important instruments for this power. In addition, it 
stresses that comparative advantage for deployment 
of soft power should be sought and should be 
enhanced. Social science education and research 
are examples of this potential. At present they are 
underutilised. Specific recommendations to better 
utilise the potential of the social sciences are as 
follows:

1.	 Consider complementary use of income-
contingent loans to fund business research 
and development. 

2.	 Deploy the Education Investment Fund to 
build public health supportive social science 
research infrastructure. 

3.	 Improve and Correct Impact and Engagement 
metrics to reflect good social science practice. 

4.	 Create an Indo-Pacific Regional Academic 
Collaboration Fund. 

5.	 Invest in a Fund promoting the development of 
international collaboration programs. 

6.	 Create a funded social science research 
program to analyse the possible comparative 
advantages implicit within Australia’s 
education and research institutions. 

7.	 Expand and rebalance Australia’s research 
funding arrangements to also support 
social science methods on an informed and 
complementary basis. 

8.	 Develop an explicit soft power strategy for 
advancement of Australian tertiary education 
best practice in institutional and systems 
operation.
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Performance-Based Funding for 
the Commonwealth Grant Scheme 

Discussion Paper (February 2019)

ASSA shares the commitment to enhance university 
teaching effectiveness, deliver good outcomes for 
graduates, and achieve equity in attainment rates 
across Australia, including in the regions. However, 
the proposed Performance-Based Funding for the 
Commonwealth Grant Scheme is articulated in a way 
which cannot guarantee these outcomes, and indeed 
may lead to adverse unintended consequences. The 
Academy recommends the Scheme be deferred until 
extensive consultation with all stakeholders has been 
completed, and rigorous analysis of it by relevant 
social science experts demonstrates the likely 
effectiveness of the Scheme, or the lack thereof. If 
the Scheme is implemented nevertheless, it should 
explicitly recognise and assess the likelihood of 
adverse unintended consequences of the metrics 
proposed, and then be implemented in a modified 
form founded on the proper analysis of the metrics 
proposed and their likely effects. The best intentions 
of this Scheme could be achieved through the 
better policy of increasing overall university funding 
through mechanisms that do not require significant 
outlay nor micromanagement of universities. 
Recommendations to this end are summarised 
below:

1.	 Delay implementation of the Scheme until 
significant consultation with the experts, 
including members of this Learned Academy, 
has been completed—and only implement it if 
the evidence points clearly in the direction of 
effective and positive impact. 

2.	 Restore all funds cut from the Research 
Support Program and commit to a robust 
framework for university funding in order to 
enable universities to operate effectively. 

3.	 If the idea of the Performance-Funding Scheme 
stands up to proper expert scrutiny, it should 
be implemented in a form which addresses 
evident problems in student survey and 
employment outcome metrics. To achieve 
this, the Expert Panel should consult directly 
with the relevant experts for conceiving and 
applying accurate metrics. 

4.	 Increase overall research investment by 
committing to clear steps towards lifting 
Australian R&D investment from its current 

low rate of 1.88% of GDP to match the OECD 
average of 2.4% by 2025, with the longer-term 
specific goal of reaching the current OECD Best 
Practice frontier of 3% by 2030. 

5.	 Consider an income-contingent loan 
scheme for university-business research and 
development partnerships.

National Regional, Rural and Remote 
Education Strategy Framing Paper 

(February 2019)

The stated aim of the National, Regional, Rural and 
Remote Education Strategy is to build capacity, 
develop educational opportunities, support 
students, and increase access in rural, regional, 
and remote areas. This is an ethically upright and 
financially prudent goal. To achieve this goal, 
however, ASSA recommends the following policy 
changes:

1.	 Delay significant education policy changes 
until there has been genuinely comprehensive 
consultation with the relevant experts. 

2.	 Restore all funds cut from the Research 
Support Program, and commit to a robust 
framework for research funding in order to 
enable universities to operate effectively 
and conduct their best and most innovative 
research across the system. 

3.	 Increase overall research investment by 
committing to clear steps towards lifting 
Australian R&D investment from its current 
low rate of 1.88% of GDP to match the OECD 
average of 2.4% by 2025, with the longer-term 
specific goal of reaching the current OECD Best 
Practice frontier of 3% by 2030. 

4.	 Consider an income contingent loan 
scheme for university-business research and 
development partnerships based in regional, 
rural and remote locations. 

5.	 Deployment of the immigration points system, 
with sufficient social science guidance, to aid 
the Inquiry’s objectives. 

6.	 Ensure a proper evaluation process into the 
effectiveness and legitimacy of the regional, 
rural and remote education package.
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Research and Australia’s Future: 2019-
20 Pre-Budget Submission (February 2019)

ASSA suggests most strongly the Australian 
Government be a champion of research and 
development. A greater national commitment to 
research and development (R&D) is a proven way to 
develop a strong foundation for securing Australia’s 
future. More and better research support is an 
investment which contributes handsomely to fiscal 
sustainability—and much more. ASSA recommends 
that the Government:

Articulate a Strong Vision: commit to clear steps 
towards matching the current OECD average for 
R&D as a share of GDP of 2.4% by 2025, and the 
current OECD Best Practice frontier of 3% by 2030.

Seize Simple Available Options: deploy already 
available endowment funds for research 
infrastructure, including for social innovation 
through research in areas such as disability and 
health.

Utilise Existing Expertise: draw on the combined 
expertise of the Learned Academies in designing 
grant processes for enhanced national benefit.

Display Ingenuity: underpin research investment 
aspirations by implementing a new innovative 
income-contingent loan scheme for R&D that will 
partner universities with industry.

These four steps would contribute greatly to a 
budget strategy that delivers growth with equity 
and sustainability. ASSA stands ready to assist with 
further development of these policy initiatives.

Implementation of the National Science 
and Research Priorities under the 

Australian Research Council’s National 
Competitive Grants Program Review 

(April 2019)

ASSA makes the following four recommendations to 
enhance the ARC grant allocation processes:

1.	 That the ARC engage ASSA to undertake a 
further investigation into the distribution of 
research funding, and research activity and 
performance, which encompasses:

•	 Research grant patterns across all 
disciplines.

•	 Discipline matching data in peer review.
•	 Cost of publication or citation by 

discipline for ARC grant funded research.
•	 Any wider research available in Australia 

or overseas on matters of conscious and 
unconscious bias in application and 
selection systems.

2.	 That the ARC acknowledge the need for the 
development of a broader set of metrics that 
better reflects the public value of innovation in 
all its forms. ASSA is available to assist in this 
task.

3.	 That the ARC develop a protocol for the 
continued usage of standard impact metrics 
including the following criteria:

•	 Recognition of books and book chapters.
•	 Weighting co-authorship of journal 

articles on a proportional basis.
•	 Consideration of the effect on articles in 

journals which publish at a higher rate 
proportionally.

•	 Introduction of interdisciplinary 
‘exchange rates’ or similar to account for 
the impact of comparative disadvantages 
inherent within cross-disciplinary 
comparisons.

4.	 That the ARC continue to refine the definition 
of the National Interest Test, in consultation 
with the Learned Academies and their expert 
Fellows.
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Department of Industry, Innovation 
and Science Consultation Paper on 

Improving Innovation Indicators  
(May 2019)

ASSA recommends to the Taskforce a more explicit 
recognition of and action toward the development of 
a complete set of metrics that quantify the full public 
value of innovation in all its forms.

The nature and impact of social innovation 
are perhaps not as easily measured as those 
associated with technological innovation. But such 
measurement is not only desirable, but necessary 
in any comprehensive suite of innovation metrics. 
There is no conceptually valid basis for distinguishing 
between technological and social innovation when 
aiming to evaluate the impact of innovation for the 
purposes of its enhancement.

The best policy is formed on the basis of socially 
innovative research, including analysis of the 
economic, social, and cultural benefits of different 
policy options. Good policy and decisions about 
public investment must comprehend the economic 
and cultural impact of social innovation. For 
instance, it would be economically valuable to know 
how much the development of Medicare, which 
obviated the need for a healthcare system like that 
in America, has saved taxpayers—including all 
this means for health outcomes and the attendant 
economic advantage this provides. This kind of 
evaluation and quantification of the impact of 
innovation—both technical and social—is one of 
the important skills of social science, and an area in 
which there is research and knowledge.

These metrics, used well, are far more apt than 
common use of aggregate input metrics such as 
grants received. Some improvement comes from 
relating input cost to simple output measures such 
as cost-per-publication or cost-per-citation metrics, 
but this too misses the wider complexity of impact 
beyond the Academy. Partial measures that look to 
measure outcomes beyond narrow outputs are a 
little better still, such as cost-per-patent for related 
sciences, but this still falls short of the full public 
value metric ASSA wishes to see used in this area. 
The concept of public value that we suggest includes 
economic, environmental, and social dimensions, as 
well as including distributional impacts.

Tune Review of the National Archives of 
Australia (June 2019)

The National Archives of Australia is an important 
asset for the collection, preservation and 
dissemination of our national stories. The state of the 
Archives is therefore a concern to many individuals 
and groups in Australia. Foremost among these are 
historians. In this submission to the Tune Review of 
the National Archives of Australia, ASSA makes five 
recommendations:

1.	 Amendments to the Archives Act (1983) which 
took effect 25 April 2019—imposing a 25-item 
cap on applications before the period that the 
Archives has to respond to the applications 
can be extended unilaterally by the Archives—
should be reversed.

2.	 Increase the human resources budget of the 
Archives to address current infeasible wait 
times for clearance of open period files.

3.	 Implement a ‘time limit’ for departmental 
responses, whereby requests are taken as 
approved in cases where the Archives do not 
hear from the government agency to which the 
response was put within three months.

4.	 Seek broad policy guidance from government 
agencies on what can be released to 
researchers without the need for consideration 
of each individual request. Only complex or 
very sensitive records, rather than all records 
as such, should be considered on a case by 
case basis.

5.	 In line with recommendations made by the 
Australian Historical Association, use of 
an independent public body charged with 
assessing which records should be made 
publicly available—like that used in the UK 
(the Advisory Council on National Records and 
Archives)—should be seriously considered. 
This body would represent the public interest 
and would follow the UK example in ‘regularly 
challenging government departments to 
provide evidence to justify requests for 
permission to retain documents or for them to 
remain closed’.
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2019  
Election  

Statement

SHAPING THE NATION
 

Australia must prepare today for tomorrow’s challenges - from 
climate change and social well-being to technological adaptation 
and an evolving economy. For policymakers to do this, they must 
have consistent access to the best research and knowledge from 
the social sciences in addition to that from the humanities and 
arts (HASS), as well as science, technology, engineering, and 
maths (STEM).

Historically, Australia’s policymakers have done this very successfully, 
using social science research in the development and implementation 
of some of Australia’s great programs - including compulsory 
superannuation, HECS, parental support systems, Medicare, crime 
prevention, disabil ity support, and the immigration points system. 
This is to name only a few social science innovations which have 
contributed greatly to the prosperity of the nation.

The Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia calls on the next 
Government of Australia to redouble its commitment to support the 
social science research which underpins policy development, and the 
connection of research with policymakers. 

We have identif ied FIVE steps to achieve these goals.
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PROPERLY INVEST IN HIGHER EDUCATION AND RESEARCH

Australia’s higher education and research system performs very strongly. This 
is despite being underfunded relative to comparator OECD countries. Australia 
invests 1.88% of its GDP in research and development - by contrast, the OECD 
average is 2.4%, and the OECD best practice frontier is 3%.

Australia risks underinvestment in research, which is an essential foundation 
for economic and social progress. Enhancing overall research support has a 
multiplier effect on the economy, extending knowledge infrastructure, promoting 
technological innovation, and creating skil led jobs. Research overall currently 
pays a real return on investment of around 20%. Improving the university 
ecosystem as a whole has natural f low on positive effects for education and 
graduate capacity. All parts of the education network need proper support by 
public funds.

Increase overall research investment by committing to clear 
steps towards lifting Australian research and development 
investment from its current low rate of 1.88% of GDP to match 
the OECD average of 2.4% by 2025, with the longer-term specific 
goal of reaching the current OECD best practice frontier of 3% 
by 2030.

IMPLEMENT INNOVATIVE POLICY FOR RESEARCH FUNDING

There are l imited direct l inkages between government funded research 
and industry in Australia. The best policy ideas offer ways to address this, 
including through the use of income contingent loans to promote research and 
development. This scheme would provide loans to start-ups, requiring industry-
university collaboration for funding, and ensure a return to the public purse 
from the investment made—not only from general economic uplift, but also from 
direct loan repayment, should the enterprise be commercially successful. 

Linking the scheme to well-managed organisations in the form of universit ies 
ensures proper selection procedures and financial oversight. It also provides 
a mechanism for mentoring and assistance. This instrument could be 
implemented during a time of budgetary restraint, while at the same time 
enhancing financial sustainabil ity for the future.

Implement an income-contingent loan scheme for university-
business research and development partnerships.

INVEST IN SOCIAL SCIENCE DATA INFRASTRUCTURE

Industry, community organisations, and government all require good 
quality data and research to deliver their missions. The social sciences are 
responsible for a large amount of this data collection and research, and this 
has been expanded with the integration of artif icial intell igence and emerging 
technology. The economic value of open data in Australia is estimated to be 
$64 bil l ion. 

1

2

3
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It is not presently possible to make the whole qualitatively diverse and 
quantitatively extensive range of data available in an open environment. The 
data are scattered through the public sector, as well as among organisations, 
collecting institutions, and individual researchers and projects. All in all, only 
a small amount of the data congenial to academic and policy research is 
supported by the infrastructure which would make them useful and accessible.
Efforts to develop infrastructure have been directed to individual researcher 
and institution-level priorit ies, and currently much infrastructure for HASS 
data has been project-based and operates at an institutional level. Data 
infrastructure is uncoordinated and minimally integrated.

Australian data infrastructure is desperately in need of increased support - it is 
insufficiently funded and does not have the capabil ity to handle the anticipated 
data quantit ies of the future. Hand in hand with better infrastructure is the 
necessary training in data analysis, research ethics, and legal frameworks 
necessary for researchers to access and use data in an ethical way. To sustain 
the infrastructure underpinning this research, adequate investment is crucial.

Support and develop integrated Humanities, Arts and Social 
Sciences data platforms with effective and supported researcher 
access, and comprehensive legal and ethical research training.

STABILISE RESEARCH FUNDING

Universit ies require a stable and predictable policy and funding environment to 
flourish and produce their best research and education. Absent this stabil ity, 
universit ies cannot be ambitious and innovative in their research, given the 
long-term nature of university research and training.

This stabil ity has historically existed, and changes have been sufficiently 
evolutionary in the past. This led to the well-documented excellent performance 
of Australia’s higher education and research system. However, a recent trend 
of ad hoc policy changes and funding cuts have had the blanket adverse 
unintended consequence of undermining this stabil ity. This has eroded 
the confidence of researchers and institutions, and in turn undermined the 
preconditions for good research.

Recent cuts to the Research Support Program have kicked the ladder out from 
under good inquiries and threatened the most ambitious ‘blue sky’ research. 
Cuts to the Higher Education Participation and Partnerships Program (HEPPP), 
Australia’s f lagship program for low SES accessibil i ty, have been repeatedly 
taken despite the program’s exceptional success and popularity. Unreliable 
career prospects have seen only minimal increases to the number of Australian 
domestic doctoral candidates in recent years.

Restore all funds cut from the Research Support Program and 
commit to a robust long-term framework for research funding, 
in order to protect the university ecosystem from external 
disruption and enable it to focus internally on producing its best 
and most innovative research.

4
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IMPROVE RESEARCH FUNDING METRICS

Good research funding policy and processes rely on the abil ity to measure the 
real effect research has in the world. Public funding is allocated on the basis of 
these measurements, so designing the right research and innovation metrics is 
crucial.

Substantial research and knowledge regarding the proper evaluation and 
quantif ication of the impact of innovation—both technical and social—is a key 
social science skil l . The best and most advanced metrics developed out of this 
research are more accurate than commonly used aggregate input metrics, such 
as total grants received. Metrics relating input cost to simple output measures, 
such as cost-per-publication or cost-per-citation, fare only slightly better. 
Partial metrics that look to measure outcomes beyond narrow outputs, such as 
cost-per-patent for related sciences, provide moderately improved accuracy.

But in the last analysis, these sti l l  fail to accurately measure the true impact of 
research on society and fall well short of the full public value metric we wish 
to see used in this area. We suggest a public value metric which accounts for 
economic, environmental, and social impact, as well as properly accounting for 
distributional impacts. Such a public value metric could be applied across all 
the social science, humanities and arts, and science and technological f ields.

Examine the best methods for demonstrating the social and 
economic benefits of innovation and develop a full public value 
metric for use in research funding administration.

5
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International  
Activities

Through its international activities ASSA aims to 
facilitate international scholarly collaboration and 
intellectual exchange through its International 
Program. The international program connects 
Australian social scientists with their overseas 
academic counterparts. It also acts as the Australian 
national member of international organisations 

Joint Action: Australia and China

The International Program coordinates a regular 
program run in conjunction with the Chinese 
Academy of Social Sciences: the ASSA-CASS Joint 
Action Program. This is a competitive grant program 
jointly funded by ASSA and CASS, sponsoring up to 
four projects each year. Successful applicants are 
awarded $7,000 AUD to be shared by the Australian 
scholars and ¥25,000 RMB to be shared by the 
CASS scholars. The grants contribute to air travel, 
accommodation, and conference-related costs. 
The program aims to provide Australian and CASS 
researchers the opportunity to collaborate in areas 
of shared interest. It is suited to younger researchers 
who wish to pursue research opportunities with an 
international colleague, with the intention this may 
lead to larger research projects.

The strong relationship between ASSA and CASS was 
extended with the MOU between the organisations 
being extended from one to three years, in 
recognition of the stability of the relationship 
and program. Four new grants were provided for 
collaborative research projects for 2018. Outcomes 
and other observations from the research project are 
publicly available on ASSA’s website.

Each project produces a 2,000 word article 
summarising the context of the research question, 
the outcomes of the research, and directions for 
future research. Four grants were provided for 
collaborative research projects for 2019. 

Excerpts from the following projects can be found in 
this report: 

•	 Ageing in a Foreign Land and a Homeland
•	 Regulating China’s Distant Water Fishing in the 

Polar Regions
•	 Optimal Policies to Promote the Adoption of 

Renewable Energy Technologies in Australia and 
China

•	 China’s Internet Innovation and Governance 
in the Xin Jinping Era: Big Initiatives Power 
Dynamics and Global Impacts

The Association of Asian Social Science Research 
Councils (AASSREC)

Set up in 1973 to help promote the social sciences 
in the region and to create an Asian identity for the 
social sciences, AASSREC seeks to promote:

•	 collaborative research among scholars in the 
region

•	 the exchange of scholarly publications and 
information among Asian social science 
institutions and individuals, and

•	 exchange visits among researchers and scholars 
from its member-countries.

In 1975, AASSREC held its first conference in Tehran, 
Iran, where its constitution was adopted by the four 
founding member organisations:

•	 Indian Council of Social Science Research
•	 Philippine Social Science Council
•	 Korean Social Science Research Council, and
•	 National Research Council of Thailand.

AASSREC’s regular activities include:

•	 the conduct of biennial general conferences 
and the publication of conference papers and 
proceedings

•	 the conduct of collaborative research programs 
on specific problems of common interest to Asia-
Pacific countries, and

•	 the assessment of trends in social science 
research and teaching in the Asia-Pacific region.

The 23rd AASSREC Bienninal Conference is currently 
scheduled for September 2019, to be held in Hanoi, 
Vietnam. ASSA continues to act as Secretariat for this 
important initiative. 
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Ageing in a Foreign Land and a 

Homeland

Dr Shuang Liu (UQ) & Dr Lei Wang (CASS)

We know that ageing well is important to health and 
reduces long-term costs for society. Yet, the pathway 
to successful ageing is far from clear. This project 
aims to identify the enablers and barriers for older 
Chinese people to age well in Australia and China, 
thus addressing Priority Topic 3 (Population and/or 
Migration). We will: 1) Collect and analyse secondary 
data from Australian Bureau of Statistics and Chinese 
Bureau of Statistics to identify the relationships 
between demographics (e.g. age at migration, 
education, housing conditions, residential areas, etc.) 
and well-being of the two groups of older Chinese 
(65+); and 2) Interview a sample of participants from 
both groups to collect primary data on perceived 
health status, quality of life, belonging, sense of 
home, and well-being. Expected findings from this 
comparative study will inform the development of 
government policies to facilitate successful ageing in 
a foreign land and in a homeland.

Regulating China’s Distant Water 
Fishing in the Polar Regions

 
 
Dr Nengye Liu (University of Adelaide & Dr Hongyan Liu 
(CASS)

The Project examines the state, adequacy and 
effectiveness of Chinese legal regimes for distant 
water fishing in the Arctic and Antarctica (Polar 
Regions). The Project will be conducted through 
doctrinal and qualitative (interviews) research 
with Chinese policy makers, marine scientists and 
fishing industry representatives. It aims to generate 
effective legal systems for Chinese distant water 
fishing vessels to achieve sustainable conservation, 
management and exploitation of marine living 
resources in the Polar Regions in an era of climate 
change and declining marine ecosystems. The 
completion of this project will contribute to the 
preservation of the polar marine ecosystems for their 
intrinsic worth and also for the many ecosystem 
services they provide.  

Optimal Policies to Promote the 
Adoption of Renewable Energy 

Technologies in Australia and China

 
Dr Chi Truong (Macquarie University) & Dr Wei Wei 
(CASS)

Emission from fossil fuel consumption has degraded 
local environment and contributed to the global 
warming problem. Renewable energy such as wind 
and solar is clean and can be used sustainably as 
substitutes for fossile fuels in Australia and China. 
Adoption of these renewable energy technologies 
by private sector, however, may require subsidies 
from the government, at least in the initial years 
when technology costs are high. We will examine 
the optimal allocation of limited government 
funding for subsidies towards solar and wind energy 
technologies, taking into account the diminishing 
marginal returns to renewable energy capital. We use 
Australia and China as two case studies to illustrate 
the application of our framework.

China’s Internet Innovation and 
Governance in the Xin Jinping Era: Big 
Initiatives Power Dynamics and Global 

Impacts

Dr Jian Xu (Deakin) and Dr Weishan Miao (CASS)

The project examines the policies, politics, debates 
and impacts of China’s ‘Internet plus’ and ‘Internet 
sovereignty’—two biggest initiatives in Internet 
innovation and Internet governance in the Xi 
Jinping era. By adopting a critical political economy 
approach, the project studies the policymaking of 
the two Internet Initiatives as ‘political-economic 
construction’ and ‘geopolitical struggle’ and critically 
analyses the multifaceted power dynamics among 
state agencies, corporate actors, civil society, China’s 
political rivals and allies that have influenced the 
policymaking and implementation of the two 
ongoing plans.

The project explores the characteristics of China’s 
state-led Internet innovation and state-centered 
Internet governance and compares their differences 
with the Western democrats. Research findings of  
the project is conducive to understanding the digital 
transformation of the Chinese economy, China’s  
Internet policies and politics as well as the global 
Internet governance and cybersecurity.
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One of ASSA’s mechanisms for promoting excellence 
in social science research is its Workshop Program. 
The Workshop Program aims to realise the benefits 
of bringing together those at the forefront of social 
science research by sponsoring and coordinating 
academic workshops. These workshops present 
an opportunity for social science researchers to 
share ideas and discuss arguments face to face 
with one another, which often the ordinary course 
of things does not throw up. The workshops 
emphasise breadth of perspectives and ideas by 
drawing on practitioners—including policy makers 
and government, community groups, business 
and business regulation, NGOs, and the union 
movement—earlier and later career researchers, 
ideas from multiple disciplines, and researchers 
from different organisations. This helps to facilitate 
the establishment of research networks for future 
collaborative work.

The main function of the Workshop Program is 
the coordination of a regular program of up to ten 
workshops each year. This is a competitive grant 
program designed to fund workshops engaging 
20 experts for two days of discussion and debate. 
In order to create the conditions under which 
participants are willing to let their guard down and 
push each other, these workshops are invitation 
only and conducted under the Chatham House rule. 
However, workshops do result in materials for public 
consumption.

Convenors of workshops arrange the produce of an 
analytical summary of the topic and discussions 
over the course of a workshop, which is a public 
document displayed on the ASSA website. 
Workshops also tend to result in further publications, 
such as books or edited collections, or articles 
published either in academic journals or in media 
like the Conversation. When workshops have a policy 
focus, ASSA encourages participants to develop 
policy statements out of workshop discussions.

Find out more: http://www.assa.edu.au/events/
workshops/

Excerpts from the following ASSA Workshops can be 
found within this report: 

•	 Advocacy for Energy Transitions: Mapping the 
Dynamics

•	 Gender and Trauma: 1945 to the present

•	 Regulating Consumptagenic Systems

•	 Technology and Domestic Violence: Experience, 
Perpetration and Responses

•	 Australian Indigenous Self-Determination: Past 
Practices, Future Options

•	 Understanding Crime and Rural Communities
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Advocacy for Energy Transitions: 
Mapping the Dynamics

Associate Professor Tom Morton, Professor Heather 
Goodall, Professor Linda Connor, & Associate Professor 
James Goodman

The workshop explores the landscape of advocacy 
for ‘energy transition’, identifying diverse actors 
and strategies. Energy transition is driven by global 
climate policy, and signals a decisive shift away from 
reliance on fossil fuels to a varying mix of renewable 
energy. The workshop aims to shift the focus beyond 
technocratic questions to consider the social, 
political and economic forces driving transition. 
Participants across disciplines, along with leading 
policy analysts, will address emerging agendas, 
including issues of energy justice, just transition and 
energy democracy. The workshop will create theory-
policy linkages, and lead to a special issue of an 
academic journal.

Regulating Consumptagenic Systems

Professor Sharon Friel, Professor Valerie Braithwaite, &  
Dr Ashley Schram

Excess consumption by industrialised societies 
is harming human health and destroying the 
planet. The proposed workshop aims to enhance 
the understanding of the ways in which policy 
and social structures encourage excess human 
consumption, and the implications for population 
and planetary health. Drawing on a plurality of 
theoretical perspectives and empirical cases studies, 
the workshop will explore ways of regulating 
systemic and individual level behaviours in order to 
reduce excess consumption and ultimately improve 
population and planetary health. A research agenda 
will be developed that focuses on the regulation of 
consumptagenic systems.

Gender and Trauma: 1945 to the 
present

Professor Christina Twomey & Associate Professor 
Paula Michaels

How is Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD) 
gendered? Most sufferers of PTSD are female, while 
research focuses on male combat soldiers. Drawing 
on history, sociology, anthropology, and psychiatry, 
we will explore how gender has shaped the definition 
and treatment of trauma across time and place. 
The major objectives are to: identify key moments 
when gender has informed theories and treatments 
of trauma; examine and account for gendered 
specificities in women’s and men’s experiences of 
trauma; analyse the role of gender in narratives of 
trauma. The workshop’s main outcome will be an 
unprecedented interdisciplinary volume on the 
nexus of gender and trauma.

 
 
 

Understanding Crime and Rural 
Communities

 

Dr Alistair Harkness, Dr Naomi Smith, Dr Bec Strating, 
& Professor Rob White

A growing body of scholarly investigation of rural 
crime has been motivated by governmental, 
community and academic recognition that, despite 
stereotypes and images of a ‘rural idyll’, crime exists 
in the rural landscape. This workshop will bring 
together leading scholars, and early- and mid-
career researchers, to expand understandings of 
rurality, narratives of crime, engagement of rural 
communities to reduce and prevent offending in 
rural places, and to comprehend more clearly the 
dimensions of rural crime and appropriate policy 
responses. It will culminate in a special edition of an 
international peer-reviewed journal and a full-length 
monograph with an international publishing house.
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Technology and Domestic Violence: 
Experience, Perpetration and 

Responses

Dr Bridget Harris, Professor Kerry Carrington, & Dr 
Delanie Woodlock

Domestic violence (DV) is widely recognised as one 
of Australia’s most important social issues, with 
approximately one woman killed by her partner, 
weekly. This workshop will bring focus to an 
emerging trend in DV: the use of technology to stalk 
and abuse victim/survivors. Landmark studies have 
been conducted in Australia that have highlighted 
the significant impacts on wellbeing and risks to 
safety associated with this violence, but as yet there 
is no consensus in regards to the definitions, effects, 
legal and judicial remedies and social responses. 
By bringing together scholars, practitioners and 
technology experts, this workshop will produce 
knowledge that will improve policy and practice 
in protecting and empowering victims, with the 
ultimate aim of preventing this under-recognised 
violence from occurring.

Australian Indigenous Self-
Determination: Past Practices, Future 

Options

Professor Tim Rowse & Dr Laura Rademaker

The workshop addresses an issue of national 
importance: the position of Indigenous Australians 
in Australian society. Drawing on anthropology, 
political science, legal studies, sociology, linguistics, 
geography and history, the workshop will both 
describe what was done in the name of self-
determination and reveal historically contingent 
definitions of self-determination. Case-studies of 
Indigenous communities, policies and programs 
will reveal the varied public policy implications of 
the doctrine. Participants have combined working 
for Australian governments and for Indigenous 
organisations with University-based research and 
teaching. The results of the workshop will include 
evidence-based policy recommendations, to be 
disseminated publicly in book form.

A Photo credits: Chevanon (energy), Alvaro_cabrera (gender),  Stijn Dijkstra (plastic), NSW Police (rural police), Freepik (mobile phone), 
Shutterstock (red earth dust).
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Dr Emma Hutchison 
The University of Queensland

Dr Emma Hutchison is one of the outstanding 
Australian international relations scholars of 
her generation, internationally renowned for 
her research on emotions in world politics. 
Her first book, Affective Communities in World 
Politics (2016), was published in the prestigious 
Cambridge Studies in International Relations 
series, and has since won the 2017 Susan Strange 
Book Prize from the British International Studies 
Association and the 2018 Best Theory Book Award 
from the International Studies Association. Her 
highly cited articles in leading journals, such as 
International Theory and International Political 
Sociology, quickly established her as a leading 

voice in a new wave of scholarship on the role 
emotions play in shaping world politics. This was 
acknowledged recently by the premier journal 
World Politics when it commissioned her to co-
write one its prestigious review articles, a first for 
an Australian scholar. In 2017 Dr Hutchison won an 
Australian Research Council Discovery Early Career 
Research Award (DECRA), which follows her receipt 
of a UQ Research Fellowship (2016-2019), and a 
UQ Postdoctoral Fellowship for Women (2014-
2016). In 2018 she won a UQ Foundation Research 
Excellence Award, the University’s highest honour 
for Early Career Researchers. 

A Dr Emma Hutchison, Dr Tamsyn Rheenen, Dr Renee Zahnow with their Paul Bourke Award medals. 

2 0 1 8

Paul Bourke Award for 
Early Career Research
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Dr Renee Zahnow 
The University of Queensland

Renee Zahnow graduated from the University of 
Queensland with a PhD in Criminology in December 
2015. Since this time she has completed two 12 
month postdoctoral positions while also maintaining 
a teaching load. Renee has published 25 peer-
reviewed journal articles (with a further six currently 
under review); two peer reviewed published 
conference papers; two book chapters and several 
Government reports. One of these, The Queensland 
Alcohol-related violence and Night Time Economy 
Monitoring project: Interim Report, resulted in an 
immediate change in state policy to align with the 
report recommendations. In 2017, Renee completed 
a secondment at the Queensland Crime and 
Corruption Commission where she provided expert 
advice on the development of a community-based 
drug intervention to address methamphetamine 
use in Australia. Renee has presented her work at 
numerous international conferences in the USA, UK 
and Europe including an invited key speaker address 
at the 2016 Steroid Conference in Liverpool, UK.

Dr Tamsyn Van Rheenen 
The University of Melbourne

Dr Tamsyn Van Rheenen is an exceptional early career 
researcher whose work has advanced understanding 
of the brain and behaviour in severe mental illness. 
At an FTE of just 3 years post PhD, she has already 
authored 38 papers and 2 book chapters in leading 
international journals, and accrued competitive 
grant funding totalling >$700,000. The scientific 
and public impact of her work is apparent through 
considerable citations (relative to opportunity) and 
(inter)national media coverage, with her leadership 
potential and international visibility reflected in 
expert taskforce and national society appointments, 
editorial and speaking invitations, and multiple 
international collaborations. Her scientific excellence 
has been recognized with several prestigious awards, 
including a Discovery Award High Commendation 
from Research Australia, and an Association for 
Psychological Science Rising Star Award. Tamsyn’s 
outstanding track record combined with community 
engagement that transcends many of her early-
career peers, undoubtedly position her as an 
emerging leader and powerful role model for young 
researchers.

Past Award Recipients
 
 

2017: Mark Humphery-Jenner, Daniel     
            King, Amy King, Elise Sargeant

2016: Muireann Irish
2015: Philip Batterham
2014: Emma Kowal
2013: Anina Rich
2012: Paul Dux
2011: Linda Graham
2010: Christy Newman
2009: Mark A Bellgrove
2008: Murat Yucel
2007:  Jason Sharman
2006:  Andrew Leigh, Jennifer Hudson
2005: Thomas Suddendorf
2004: Alex Bellamy
2003: Lisa Maher
2002: Jason B Mattingley
2001:  Robert Hill, Kaarin Anstey
2000: Andrea Whittaker
1999: Richard Bryant
1998: Chandran Kukathas
1997: Jeff Borland
1996: Tony Aspromourgos
1995: Kay J Anderson
1994: Debbie Terry
1993: John Quiggin
1992: Robert Cribb
1991: Peter Higgs
1990: Vicki Lee
1989: Gregory Whitwell
1988: Wojciech Sadurski
1987: Richard Fox
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2019 AUSTRALIA DAY HONOURS

Companion AC in the General Division:

The late Emeritus Professor Patrick TROY AO, for 
eminent service to urban and regional planning, 
to environmental sustainability and social justice 
policy, and as a mentor and role model.

Officer (AO) in the General Division:

Professor Helen CHRISTENSEN, for distinguished 
service to medical research through the development 
of on-line mental health treatment programs.

Professor Mark DODGSON, for distinguished service 
to education in the field of business innovation 
strategy, as a researcher, advisor and author.

Professor Melanie WAKEFIELD, for distinguished 
service to medical research in the fields of population 
health and cancer prevention, and as a mentor.

Member (AM) in the General Division:

Professor Frank BONGIORNO, for significant service 
to tertiary education in the field of history.

Professor Lynette RUSSELL, for significant service to 
higher education, particularly Indigenous history, 
and to professional organisations.

2019 QUEEN’S BIRTHDAY HONOURS

Officer (AO) in the General Division:

Emeritus Professor Murray WELLS for distinguished 
service to higher education, particularly to 
accountancy, and to business administration.

Emeritus Professor Susan Caroline KIPPAX for 
distinguished service to higher education, and to 
community health, particularly through research into 
HIV prevention and treatment.

Member (AM) in the General Division:

Professor Margaret Anne ABERNETHY for significant 
service to higher education, accounting research, 
and to student access and equity.

Professor Victor James CALLAN for or significant 
service to higher education in the field of 
management.
Professor Gilah Chaja LEDER for significant service to 
higher education, and to the Jewish community of 
Victoria.

Emeritus Professor John Hurlstone POLLARD for 
significant service to community music events, and 
to education.

Dr Peter John READ for significant service to 
Indigenous history.

F E L L O W S

Awards
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In 2018, the Academy extended the honour of Jubilee Fellowship to four Fellows who were elected to the 
Academy in 1978.  Over 40 years, these Fellows have made significant contributions not only to the Academy 
but also to the social sciences in Australia and abroad. Reflections from these distinguished scholars can be 
found on the Academy’s website. 

2 0 1 8

Jubilee Fellows

A Professors Glenn Withers and Peter Sheehan. 

A Professors Glenn Withers and Robert O’Neill.   

Professor Robert O’Neill AO
BE (Melbourne), MA, DPhil (Oxford), FASSA, FAIIA
PANEL C: History

Emeritus Professor Richard Selleck
BA, Bed, PhD (Melbourne), FASSA
PANEL D: Education

Emeritus Professor Peter Sheehan AO
BA, PhD (Sydney), Honorary Fellow, FASSA
PANEL D: Psychology

Mr Bob Wallace
BCom (Hons) (Melbourne), BPhil (Oxford)
PANEL B: Economics
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F E L L O W S H I P

Demographics

655 
Fellows

33% 
Female

67% 
Male

31%
25%

20%
24%

A              B               C              D

PANELS

DISCIPLINES
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Professor David Alais
Professor of Experimental Psychology, School of Psychology, University of Sydney

Expertise: Visual perception, multisensory interactions, perceptual ambiguity

Professor Ian Anderson AO
Pro Vice-Chancellor (Engagement) and Foundation Chair of Indigenous Higher 
Education, University of Melbourne and Deputy Secretary of Indigenous Affairs, 
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet 

Expertise: Indigenous affairs (public policy, health, education)

Professor Martha Augoustinos
Professor, School of Psychology, University of Adelaide

Expertise: Social psychology, discursive psychology, racism, prejudice

Professor Christine Beasley
Professor, Department of Politics and International Studies, School of Social 
Sciences, University of Adelaide

Expertise: Social/political theory, gender and sexuality, men and masculinity, cultural 
studies, care theory

Emeritus Professor Martin Bell
Emeritus Professor, School of Earth and Environmental Sciences, University of 
Queensland

Expertise: Demography, internal migration, population mobility

Professor Denis Burnham
Chair in Auditory Research, The MARCS Institute for Brain, Behaviour and 
Development, Western Sydney University

Expertise: Speech perception, language development, infant-directed speech, lexical 
tone, auditory-visual speech

Professor David Burr
Professor of Psychology, University of Sydney and University of Florence

Expertise: Vision, perception, cognitive neuroscience, numerical cognition, 
psychophysics

2 0 1 8

New Fellows
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Professor Annemaree Carroll
Associate Dean (Research), Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences, University of 
Queensland

Expertise: Educational psychology, emotion regulation, social emotional learning, 
science of learning, intervention research

Professor Joshua Cinner
Professor of Social Science, ARC Centre of Excellence for Coral Reef Studies, James 
Cook University

Expertise: Fisheries, conservation, livelihoods, socioeconomic, vulnerability

Professor George Crowder
Professor, School of Social and Policy Studies, Flinders University

Expertise: Political theory, political philosophy, Isaiah Berlin, liberalism, value 
pluralism

Professor Denise Doiron
Professor of Economics, School of Economics, UNSW Sydney

Expertise: Health economics, labour, applied econometrics, program evaluation, 
social policy

Professor Robyn Dowling
Professor of Urbanism and Associate Dean, Research School of Architecture Design 
and Planning, University of Sydney

Expertise: Urban geography, urban governance, transport, energy, climate change

Professor Nick Enfield
Professor of Linguistics and Director of the Sydney Social Sciences and Humanities 
Advanced Research Centre, University of Sydney

Expertise: Linguistics, linguistic anthropology, social interaction, social agency, 
mainland Southeast Asia (especially Laos)
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Professor of Economics, Centre for Applied Macroeconomic Analysis, Crawford 
School of Public Policy, and Associate Dean Research, ANU College of Asia and the 
Pacific, the Australian National University

Expertise: Macroeconometrics, financial market econometrics, contagion, 
commodities

Professor Margaret Gardner AO
President and Vice-Chancellor, Monash University

Expertise: Leadership, management strategy, gender equity, industrial relations, 
tertiary education

Professor Jacob Goeree
Scientia Professor and Director, AGORA Centre for Market Design, School of 
Economics, UNSW Business School, University of New South Wales

Expertise: Market design, game theory, experimental economics

Professor Ferdinand Gul
Alfred Deakin Professor of Accounting and Finance, Faculty of Business and Law, 
Deakin University

Expertise: Financial accounting, auditing, corporate governance and corporate 
political activities

Professor John Handmer
Professor and Director, RMIT University Centre for Risk and Community Safety, 
School of Mathematical & Geospatial Sciences, RMIT University

Expertise: Risk, disasters, natural hazards, climate change adaptation

Professor Matthew Hornsey
Social Psychology, Faculty of Health and Behavioural Sciences, University of 
Queensland

Expertise: Persuasion, trust, intergroup relations, rejection of science, social 
psychology



46 Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia

Professor Jennifer Hudson
Professor of Psychology and Director, Centre for Emotional Health, Macquarie 
University

Expertise: Clinical child psychology, child and youth mental health, child and 
adolescent anxiety disorders

Professor Simon Jackman
Professor, Department of Government and International Relations and CEO of the 
United States Studies Centre, University of Sydney

Expertise: Elections, electoral systems, public opinion

Professor Stewart Jones
Professor of Accounting and Head of Discipline (Accounting), University of Sydney

Expertise: Corporate financial reporting, credit risk and corporate bankruptcy 
prediction, accounting regulation, corporate social responsibility reporting

Professor Anne Kavanagh
Professor of Women’s Health and Director, Gender and Women’s Health, Centre for 
Health Equity, Melbourne School of Population and Global Health, University of 
Melbourne

Expertise: Epidemiology, disability, health inequalities, health policy

Professor Andrew May
Professor of History, School of Historical and Philosophical Studies, University of 
Melbourne

Expertise: Urban history, cultural heritage, Melbourne, missionaries, North-East India

Professor Kerrie Mengersen
Distinguished Professor, Australian Laureate Fellow and Professor of Statistics, 
Science and Engineering Faculty, School of Mathematical Sciences, Statistical 
Science, Queensland University of Technology

Expertise: Applied statistics, biostatistics, environmetrics, biometrics
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Professor Cheri Ostroff
Research Professor, Centre for Workplace Excellence, School of Management, 
University of South Australia

Expertise: Organisational  behaviour, organisational culture and climate, human 
resource management systems, organisational effectiveness

Professor Sharon Pickering
Professor of Criminology and Dean of Arts, Monash University

Expertise: Criminalisation, migration, gender, trafficking, borders

Professor Rosemary Rayfuse
Scientia Professor of Law, Faculty of Law, UNSW Sydney

Expertise: Public International Law, Law of the Sea, International Environmental Law, 
Protection of the Marine Environment

Professor Kim Rubenstein
Professor, ANU Law School and ANU Public Policy Fellow, the Australian National 
University

Expertise: Citizenship, Nationality, Oral history, archives and law, Gender and the 
Constitution

Professor Elizabeth Savage
Professor, Economics Discipline Group, UTS Business School, University of 
Technology Sydney

Expertise: Applied microeconomics, health economics, public economics

Professor Derrick Silove AM
Foundation/Scientia Professor in Psychiatry, School of Psychiatry, UNSW Sydney

Expertise: Refugee and postconflict mental health, Global Mental Health, Psychiatric 
Traumatology, Mental health of deprived and marginalized populations
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Professor Julie Stout
Monash Institute of Cognitive and Clinical Neurosciences, School of Psychological 
Sciences, Faculty of Medicine, Nursing and Health Sciences, Monash University

Expertise: Dementia, movement disorders, Huntington’s disease, cognitive 
assessment in clinical trials, cognitive neuroscience

Professor Maggie Walter
Professor of Sociology and Pro Vice-Chancellor (Aboriginal Research and 
Leadership), University of Tasmania

Expertise: Sociology of race, methods and methodologies, inequality, Indigenous 
lifeworlds, Indigenous data 

Professor Peter Whiteford
Professor, Crawford School of Public Policy, ANU College of Asia and the Pacific, the 
Australian National University

Expertise: Social Security, welfare, Income inequality, redistribution, poverty

Professor Gillian Whitehouse
Professor of Political Science, School of Political Science and International Studies, 
Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences, University of Queensland

Expertise: Gender pay gap, gender egalitarian parental leave, precarious employment, 
gender regimes, employment rights

Professor Yi-chong Xu
Professor, Centre for Governance and Public Policy, School of Government and 
International Relations, Griffith University

Expertise: Nuclear energy, electricity, political economy, international organisations
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New Fellows

A  2018 New Fellows Group photo, 12 November 2018, Canberra.
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A C A D E M Y

FELLOWS
ABERNETHY, Margaret Anne AM  
Bec (Hons), PhD (La Trobe), FASSA 
Elected: 2011 Panel B  
State: VIC

 

ADAMS, Philip David  

BEc (Hons) (Monash), MCom 

(Melbourne), PhD (Economics) 

(Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

AGGLETON, Peter  

MA (Oxford), MEd (Aberdeen), PhD 

(London), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

AHLUWALIA, Davinder Pal  

BA (Advanced), MA (Saskatchewan), 

PhD (Flinders), FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel C  

State: Overseas 

 

AITKIN, Donald Alexander AO  

MA (New England), PhD (ANU), Hon 

DUniv (Canberra), Hon DLitt (UNE), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1975 Panel C (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: ACT 

ALAIS, David 

BA (Hons), Dip Arts (Sydney), PhD 

(Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 2018 Panel D  

State: NSW 

ALDRICH, Robert 

BA (Emory), MA, PhD (Brandeis), 

FAHA, FASSA Chev. O.Palmes Acad 

Elected: 2008 Panel C  

State: NSW

ALLARS, Margaret 

BA (Hons), LLB (Hons) (Sydney), 

DPhil (Oxon), FASSA 

Elected: 1998 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

ALLEN, Michael Richard  

BA (Dublin), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1981 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

ALTMAN, Dennis AM 

BA (Hons) (UTAS), MA (Cornell) Hon 

Dr. Letters (Macquarie), AM, FASSA

Elected: 2000 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

ALTMAN, Jon Charles AM 

BA, MA (Hons) (Auckland), PhD 

(ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2003 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

ANDERSON, Jock Robert 

BAgrSc (Hons), MAgrSc (UQ), PhD, 

DEc (New England), FASSA 

Elected: 1999 Panel B  

State: Overseas

ANDERSON, Kym AC 

BAgEc (Hons) (New England), MEc, 

Hon.Doc. (Adelaide), MA (Chicago), 

MA, PhD (Stanford), FASSA 

Elected: 1994 Panel B  

State: SA 

 

ANDERSON, Heather Margot 

BSc (Mathematics) (UNE), Grad Dip 

(Economics) (ANU), MEcon, PhD 

(Economics) (UC San Diego), FASSA

Elected: 2005 Panel B  

State: VIC

ANDERSON, Kay 

BA (Hons) (Adelaide), PhD 

(Geography) (UBC), FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

ANDERSON, Vicki 

BA (Hons), MA, PhD (Melbourne), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel D  

State: VIC 

ANDERSON, Warwick Hugh 

BMedSc, MB, BS, MD (Melbourne), 

MA, PhD (Pennsylvania), FASSA 

Elected: 2013 Panel C  

State: NSW 
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ANDERSON, Ian Philip Smith AO 

MBBS (Melbourne), PhD (La Trobe), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2018 Panel D  

State: ACT 

 

ANDREWS, Sally 

BA (Hons), PhD (UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 1998 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

ANDRICH, David 

BSc, MEd (UWA), PhD (Chicago), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1990 Panel D  

State: WA 

ANSTEY, Kaarin Jane 

BA (Hons) (Sydney), PhD (UQ), FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel D  

State: ACT

APPLEYARD, Reginald Thomas AM 

BA (UWA), MA, PhD (Duke), FASSA 

Elected: 1967 Panel B (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: WA 

 

APPS, Patricia 

MED (Yale), PhD (Cambridge), FASSA 

Elected: 1994 Panel B  

State: NSW 

ASHKANASY, Neal Mark OAM 

BE (Civil) (Monash), MEngSc (Water 

Eng) (UNSW), DipCompSci, BA (Hons) 

(Psychology), PhD (Psychology) (UQ), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel A  

State: QLD 

 

ASPROMOURGOS, Anthony 

Bec (Hons) (UQ), MComm (Econ) 

(Melbourne), MA (Pol Sci) (Chicago), 

PhD (Econ) (Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

ATHUKORALA, Prema-chandra 

BCom (Hons) (Ceylon), PhD (La 

Trobe), FASSA 

Elected: 2003 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

AUGOUSTINOS, Martha 

BA (Hons), PhD (Adelaide), FASSA

Elected: 2018 Panel D  

State: SA 

 

AUSTIN-BROOS, Diane 

BA, MA (ANU), MA, PhD (Chicago), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1990 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

BACCHI, Carol Lee 

BA (Hons), MA, PhD (Montreal), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2000 Panel C  

State: SA 

 

BADCOCK, David 

BA (Hons) (UTAS), DPhil (Oxon), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel D  

State: WA 

 

BAI, Xuemei 

PhD (Tokyo), MEng (Tokyo), BSc 

(Peking), FASSA  

Elected: 2017 Panel A  

State: ACT 

BAIRD, Marian Pam AO 

BEc (Hons), DipEd, PhD (Sydney), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

BALDRY, Eileen 

BA, Dip Ed, Dip TEFL (Sydney), MWP.

PhD (UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

BAMBER, Greg J 

Elected: 2012 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

BANKS, Gary Ronald AO 

BEc (Hons) (Monash), MEc (ANU), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

BARNETT, Jonathon Richard 

BPD, MAprelim (Melbourne), PhD 

(ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

BARNIER, Amanda Jane 

BA (Hons), PhD, FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

BAUM, Frances Elaine AO 

BA (Hons) (Wales), PhD 

(Nottingham), FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel A  

State: SA 
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BAXTER, Janeen 

BA (Hons), MA (ANU), PhD (UQ), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel A  

State: QLD 

 

BEASLEY, Christine 

BA, DipEd, MEd (Flinders); MA 

(Birmingham), PhD (Flinders), FASSA  

Elected: 2018 Panel C  

State: SA 

 

BEAUMONT, Joan Errington 

BA (Hons) (Adelaide), PhD (London), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

BECKETT, Jeremy 

BA (University College), MA, PhD 

(ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1995 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

BEHRENDT, Larissa 

LLB/B. Juris (UNSW), LLM, LLD 

(Harvard), FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel C  

State: NSW

BEILHARZ, Peter Michael 

BA, DipEd (Rusden College), PhD 

(Monash), FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

BELL, Stephen 

BSc (Hons), PhD (Griffith), FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel C  

State: QLD 

 

BELL, Martin 

BA (Hons), MA (Flinders), PhD (UQ), 

FASSA  

Elected: 2018 Panel A  

State: QLD 

 

BELLAMY, Alex 

BA (Hons) (Hull), MA (Staffs), PhD 

(Wales), FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel C  

State: QLD 

 

BENNETT, Jeffrey William 

BAgEc (Hons) (UNE), PhD (ANU), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

BENSON, John William 

BEc, MEd (Monash), MA, PhD 

(Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

BEWLEY, Ronald Anthony 

BA (Sheffield), PhD (UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 1995 Panel B  

State: NSW

BILLETT, Stephen Richard 

PhD (honoris causa) (Jyvasksla, 

Finland), Doctor of Philosophy 

(Griffith University), Master of 

Educational Studies (UQ), BA 

(UQ), Diploma of Teaching (TAFE) 

(Brisbane College of Advanced 

Education), FASSA  

Elected: 2015 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

BITTMAN, Michael Paul 

BA (Hons) (UNSW), PhD (RMIT), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

BLACKMORE, Jillian Anne AM 

BA (Hons), DipEd (Melbourne), 

MEd Studies (Monash), MA, PhD 

(Stanford), FASSA 

Elected: 2013 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

BLAINEY, Geoffrey Norman AC 

MA (Melbourne), DLitt (Ballarat), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1970 Panel C (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: VIC 

 

BLAKENEY, Michael Leslie 

BA, LLB, FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel C  

State: WA 

 

BLANDY, Richard John 

BEc (Adelaide), MA, PhD (Columbia), 

FASSA  

Elected: 1981 Panel B  

State: SA 

BLEIKER, Roland 

PhD (ANU), MA (UBC), BA (Toronto), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel C  

State: QLD 
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BLEWETT, Neal AC 

BA (UTAS), MA, DPhil (Oxford), DipEd, 

Hon LLD (UTAS), Hon DLitt (Hull), 

FRHS, FASSA 

Elected: 1998 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

BLOCH, Harry Benjamin 

BA (Michigan), MA, PhD (Chicago), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2012 Panel B  

State: WA 

 

BLOCH, Sidney AM

MB ChB (Cape Town), DPM, PhD 

(Melbourne), DPMSA, FRCPsych, 

FRANZCP, FASSA

Elected: 2017 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

BOAKES, Robert Alan 

BA (Hons) (Cantab), PhD (Harvard), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

BONGIORNO, Francis Robert AM 

BA (Hons) (Melbourne), PhD 

(ANU), GradCertHigherEd 

(UNE), FRHistS, FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

BOOTH, Alison L 

B.Arch, MTCP, MSc (Econ), PhD (LSE), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

BORLAND, Jeffrey 

BA (Hons) (Melbourne), PhD (Econ) 

(Yale), FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel B  

State: VIC

BORLAND, Ronald 

BSc (Hons) (Monash), MSc (Monash), 

PhD (Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

BOROWSKI, Allan 

B.Comm, Dip. Social Studies, MA 

(Hons) (Melbourne), PhD (Brandeis), 

FGSA, FAAG, FACSW, FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel A  

State: Overseas 

 

BOSSAERTS, Peter 

PhD (Management) (UCLA), FASSA  

Elected: 2017 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

BOSWORTH, Richard James Boon 

MA (Sydney), PhD (Cambridge), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1995 Panel C  

State: Overseas 

BOTTERILL, Linda Courtenay 

PhD (Political Science and 

International Relations) (ANU), Grad 

Dip Int Law (ANU), BA (Hons) (Griffith 

University), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

BRADLEY, David 

AB (Magna cum Laude) (Columbia), 

PhD (London), FAHA, FASSA 

Elected: 1993 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

BRAITHWAITE, Valerie 

BA (Hons), PhD (UQ), FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel D  

State: ACT

BRENNAN, Geoffrey H 

BEc, PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1985 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

BRENNAN, Deborah 

BA (Hons) (Sydney), MA (Macquarie), 

PhD (Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

BREWER, Neil 

BA (Hons), PhD (Adelaide), FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel D  

State: SA 

 

BROCK, Margaret 

BA (Hons), Dip.Ed, PhD (Adelaide), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel C  

State: SA 

BROOKFIELD, Harold Chillingworth 

BA, PhD (London), FASSA 

Elected: 1977 Panel A (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: ACT 
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BROOM, Dorothy Howard AM 

BA (Hons) (Carleton College), MA (U. 

Illinois), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel A  

State: ACT 

 

BROWN, Philip Ronald AM 

BCom (UNSW), MBA, PhD (Chicago), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1979 Panel B  

State: WA 

BROWN, Nicholas Peter 

BA (Hons) (ANU), PhD (History) 

(ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

BROWN, Rebekah Ruth 

BEng (Civil) (Hons) (Monash), PhD 

(Environmental Studies) (UNSW), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

BRYANT, Richard AC 

BA (Hons) (Sydney), MClinPsych, PhD 

(Macquarie), DSc (UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel D  

State: NSW 

BRYCE, Quentin Alice Louise AD, 

CVO 

BA, LLB (UQ), Hon LLD (Macquarie), 

Hon DLitt (Charles Sturt), Hon DUniv 

(Griffith), Hon DU (QUT), Hon LLD 

(UQ), Hon DUniv (JCU), Doctor of 

Laws (honoris causa) (Sydney), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel C (Honorary 

Fellow) 

State: QLD 

 

BRYSON, Lois 

BA, DipSocStud, DipEd (Melbourne), 

PhD (Monash), DUniv (Newcastle), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1998 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

BUCKLEY, Ross Philip 

LLD (Melbourne), PhD (UNSW), LLB 

(Hons) (UQ), BEcon (UQ), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

BURBANK, Victoria Katherine 

PhD (Rutgers), Postdoctoral Study 

(Harvard), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel A  

State: WA

BURGMANN, Verity 

BSc (Econ) (London), PhD (ANU), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1999 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

BURNHAM, Denis Kingsley 

BA (Hons) (UNE), PhD (Monash), 

FASSA  

Elected: 2018 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

BURNLEY, Ian Harry 

BA (UNZ), MA (Hons) (Canberbury), 

PhD (Victoria University of 

Wellington), FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

BURR, David Charles 

BSc (Hons) (UWA); PhD (Cambridge), 

FASSA  

Elected: 2018 Panel D  

 

BUTOW, Phyllis AM 

BA (Hons), DipEd (Macq), M.Clin.

Psych (ANU), PhD, MPH (Sydney), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

BYRNE, Don Glenn 

BA (Hons), PhD (Adelaide), FAPS, 

FASSA 

Elected: 1995 Panel D  

State: ACT 

 

CALLAN, Victor James AM 

BA (Hons) (UNSW), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel D  

State: QLD

CAMERON, Lisa Ann 

BComm, MComm, MA, PhD 

(Princeton), FASSA  

Elected: 2014 Panel B  

State: VIC 
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CAMILLERI, Joseph Anthony OAM 

BA (Melbourne), MA (Mon), PhD 

(London), FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

CAMPBELL, Tom D 

BA (Oxon), MA, PhD (Glasgow), FRSE, 

FASSA 

Elected: 1994 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

CANE, Peter 

BA, LLB (Sydney), MA, BCL, DCL 

(Oxford), FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

CAPLING, Ann 

BA (York), MA (Calgary), PhD 

(Toronto), FASSA 

Elected: 2014 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

CARR, Barry 

BA (Hons), MA, D.Phil (Oxon), FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

CARRINGTON, Kerry Lyn 

PhD (Macquarie), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel A  

State: QLD

CARROLL, Annemaree 

PhD, MEd (UWA), BSc (Hons) (USQ), 

BEd (QUT), GradDipSpecEd (Griffith), 

FASSA

Elected: 2018 Panel D  

State: QLD 

CASS, Bettina AO 

BA, PhD (UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 1989 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

CASTLES, Stephen 

MA, DPhil (Sussex), FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

CASTLES, Anne Edwina 

BSc (Hons) (ANU), PhD (Macquarie), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

CHALMERS, David 

BSc (Hons) (Adelaide), PhD (Indiana), 

FAHA, FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

CHAN, Janet B L 

BSc, MSc, MA (Toronto), PhD 

(Sydney), MArt, MFA (UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

CHAPMAN, Bruce AM 

BEc (ANU), PhD (Yale), FASSA 

Elected: 1993 Panel B  

State: ACT

CHAPMAN, Simon AO 

BA (Hons) (UNSW), PhD (Sydney), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

CHAPPELL, Louise Annette 

BA (Hons) (UNE), PhD (Sydney), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

CHARLESWORTH, Hilary AM 

BA, LLB (Melbourne), SJD (Harvard), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2003 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

CHENHALL, Robert Hunter 

BEc (Monash), MSc (Southampton), 

PhD (Macquarie), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

CHISHOLM, Anthony Hewlings 

BAgrSc (New Zealand), MAgrSc 

(Massey), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

CHRISTENSEN, Helen 

BA (Hons) (Sydney), M Psychol, PhD 

(UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel D  

State: NSW 

CHUA, Wai Fong AM 

BA (Hons), PhD (Sheffield), FCA, 

FCPA, FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel B  

State: NSW

CINNER, Joshua Eli 

BA (Colorado), MA (Rhode Island), 

PhD (JCU), FASSA 

Elected: 2018 Panel A  

State: QLD 
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CLARK, Gordon Leslie 

BEc, MA (Monash), MA (Oxford), PhD 

(McMaster), DSc (Oxford), FBA, FASSA 

Elected: 1993 Panel A  

State: Oxfordshire 

 

CLARK, Christopher Richard 

BA, BA (Hons) (Adelaide), PhD 

(Flinders), FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel D  

State: SA 

 

CLARKE, Philip 

BEc (Newcastle), MEc (Sydney), PhD 

(ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

CLEGG, Stewart Roger 

BSc (Hons) (Aston), PhD (Bradford), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1988 Panel A  

State: NSW 

CLEMENTS, Kenneth 

BEc (Hons), MEc (Monash), PhD 

(Chicago), FASSA  

Elected: 1998 Panel B  

State: WA 

 

COADY, C A J 

BA (Sydney), MA (Hons) (Melbourne), 

BPhil (Oxon), MA (Cambridge), FASSA 

Elected: 2000 Panel C  

State: VIC

COBB-CLARK, Deborah Ann 

BA (Michigan State), MA, PhD 

(Michigan), FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel B  

State: NSW 

COLTHEART, Max AM 

BA, MA, PhD (Sydney), DSc 

(Macquarie), DLitt h.c. (Macquarie), 

AM, FASSA, FAA, FBA 

Elected: 1988 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

CONDREN, Conal Stratford 

BSc, MSc, PhD (London), FAHA, 

FASSA 

Elected: 2001 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

CONNELL, Raewyn 

BA (Hons) (Melbourne), PhD 

(Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 1996 Panel A  

State: NSW 

CONNELL, John 

BA, PhD (London), FASSA 

Elected: 2001 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

CONNOR, Linda Helen 

PhD (Anthropology) (Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

CONSIDINE, Mark 

BA (Hons), PhD (Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel C  

State: VIC

COOKE, Fang Lee 

PhD (Manchester), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

CORBETT, Jennifer Marjorie 

BA (Hons) (ANU), MA (Oxon), PhD 

(Michigan), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

CORDEN, Warner Max AC 

MCom (Melbourne), PhD (London), 

MA (Oxford), HonDCom (Melbourne), 

FBA, FASSA 

Elected: 1977 Panel B (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: VIC 

 

CORNISH, Kim 

BSc (Hons) (Lancaster), PhD 

(London), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel D  

State: VIC 

COWLISHAW, Gillian 

BA (Hons), PhD (Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 2013 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

CRAIG, Lyn Patricia 

PhD (UNSW), BSocSc (Honours) 

(UNSW), BA (Sociology) (Massey), 

DipBusStuds (Massey), DipSocWk 

(Victoria University of Wellington), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

CRAIN, Stephen 

BA (UCLA), PhD (UC Irvine), FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel A  

State: NSW 
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CROWDER, George 

BA (Hons), LLB (Hons) (Victoria 

University of Wellington); DPhil 

(Oxford), FASSA 

Elected: 2018 Panel C  

State: SA 

 

CULLITY, Garrett Michael 

BA(Hons) (WA), BPhil, DPhil (Oxford), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2014 Panel C  

State: SA 

 

CUNNEEN, Christopher 

BA, DipEd (UNSW), MA, PhD (Sydney), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2014 Panel A  

State: NSW 

CURTHOYS, Ann 

BA (Hons) (Sydney), DipEd (Sydney 

Teachers College), PhD (Macquarie), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel C  

State: WA 

 

CUTLER, Elizabeth Anne 

BA, Dip Ed, MA (Melbourne), PhD 

(Texas), FASSA, HonFAHA 

Elected: 2009 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

DALY, Kathleen 

BA (summa cum laude), MEd, PhD 

(Sociology) (UMass), FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel C  

State: QLD 

 

DAMOUSI, Joy 

BA (Hons) (La Trobe), PhD (ANU), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel C  

State: VIC 

DANAHER, Peter 

BSc (Hons), MS, PhD, FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

DARIAN-SMITH, Kate 

BA (Hons), Dip Ed, PhD (Melbourne), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

DAVIES, Martin 

BA (Monash), DPhil (Oxford), FAHA, 

FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel C  

State: ACT 

DAVIES, Margaret 

BA (Hons), LLB (Hons) (Adelaide), MA, 

D.Phil (Sussex), FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel C  

State: SA 

 

DAVIS, Glyn Conrad AC 

BA (Hons) (UNSW), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2003 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

DAVIS, Megan 

Elected: 2017 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

DAVISON, Graeme John AO 

BA, DipEd (Melbourne), BA (Oxford), 

PhD (ANU), FAHA, FASSA 

Elected: 1985 Panel C  

State: VIC

DAWKINS, Peter John AO 

BSc (Hons) (Lough), MSc (London), 

PhD (Lough), FIPAA, FACEL(Hon), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2001 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

DAY, David Andrew 

BA (Hons) (Melbourne), PhD 

(Cambridge), FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

DE VAUS, David 

BA (Hons), Dip Ed, PhD (La Trobe), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

DEACON, Desley 

BA (English) (UQ), PhD (Sociology) 

(ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel C  

State: NSW 
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DEANE, William AC, KBE 

BA, LLB (Sydney), DipIntLaw (The 

Hague), QC, HonLLD (Sydney, 

Griffith, Notre Dame, Dublin, UNSW, 

UTS (Syd)), HonDUni (Sthn Cross, 

Aust Catholic Univ, QUT, Western 

Sydney), HON.DR Sac. Theol. (Melb 

Coll of Divinity), FASSA 

Elected: 2001 Panel C (Honorary 

Fellow) 

State: ACT 

 

DEGENHARDT, Louisa 

BA (Hons) (Psychology), MPsych 

(Clinical), PhD, FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

DEMUTH, Katherine 

BA (New Mexico), MA, PhD (Indiana), 

FRSN, FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel A  

State: NSW

DIEWERT, Walter Erwin 

BA (Hons), MA (Math) (British 

Columbia), PhD (Economics) (UC 

Berkeley), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel B  

State: Overseas

DIXON, Peter Bishop AO 

BEc (Monash), PhD (Harvard), FASSA 

Elected: 1982 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

DODGSON, Mark AO 

BSc (Middlesex), MA (Warwick), PhD 

(Imperial College), FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel A  

State: QLD 

DODSON, Michael AM 

BJuris, LLB (Monash), DLitt h.c (UTS), 

LLD h.c (UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

DOIRON, Denise Jeanne Marie 

BA (Universite de Moncton), MA, PhD 

(UBC), FASSA 

Elected: 2018 Panel B  

State: Overseas 

 

DOUGLAS, Heather 

BA (Monash), LLB (Monash), LLM 

(QUT), PhD (Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel C  

State: QLD 

 

DOVERS, Stephen Robert 

BAppSc (Canberra), BLetters, PhD 

(ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2013 Panel A  

State: NSW

DOWDING, Keith 

BA (Hons) (Keele), D.Phil (Oxford), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel C  

State: ACT 

DOWLING, Robyn 

BEc (Hons) (Sydney), MA, PhD (British 

Columbia), FASSA  

Elected: 2018 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

DOWSETT, Gary Wayne 

BA, DipEd (UQ), PhD (Macquarie), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel A  

State: VIC 

DRAHOS, Peter 

LLB/BA (Hons) (Adelaide), Grad.Dip 

in Legal Practice (South Australia), 

LLM (Hons) (Sydney), PhD (ANU), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel C  

State: Overseas 

 

DRYSDALE, Peter David AO 

BA (New England), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1989 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

DRYZEK, John Stanley 

BA (Hons) (Lancaster), MSc 

(Strathclyde), PhD (Maryland), FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

DUCKETT, Stephen 

BEc (ANU), MHA, PhD, DSc (NSW), 

DBA (Bath), FAHMS, FAICD, FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel B  

State: VIC

DUNNE, Tim 

BA (Hons) (E.Anglia), MPhil (Oxon), 

DPhil (Oxon), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel C  

State: QLD 

 

DUNPHY, Dexter AM 

BA (Hons), DipEd, Med (Sydney), PhD 

(Harvard), FASSA 

Elected: 2001 Panel A  

State: NSW 
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DUTTON, Michael Robert 

BA (Hons) (Griffith), Grad.Dip. 

Chinese (Beijing Languages 

Institute), PhD (Griffith), FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel C  

State: QLD 

 

ECKERSLEY, Robyn 

B Juris, LLB (UWA), M Phil 

(Cambridge), PhD (Tasmania), FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

EDWARDS, Anne Rosalie AO 

PhD, BA (Hons) (London), FASSA 

Elected: 2000 Panel A  

State: SA 

 

EDWARDS, Meredith AM  

BCom (Melbourne), PhD (ANU), 

FASSA, FIPPA 

Elected: 1994 Panel B  

State: ACT

EDWARDS, Louise 

BA (Auck), BA (Hons) (Murdoch), PhD 

(Griffith), FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel C  

State: NSW 

ELKINS, John OAM 

BSc, DipEd, BEd, PhD (UQ), FACE, 

FASSA 

Elected: 1996 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

ELLIOTT, Anthony 

BA (Hons) (Melbourne), PhD 

(Cambridge), FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel A  

State: SA 

ENFIELD, Nicholas James 

BA (Hons) (Asian Studies) (ANU), PhD 

(Linguistics) (Melbourne), FAHA, 

FASSA, FRSN 

Elected: 2018 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

ENGLISH, Lyndall Denise 

DipT, BEd, MEd (Maths) (BCAE), PhD 

(UQ), FASSA 

Elected: 2003 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

ETHERINGTON, Norman Alan AM 

BA, MA, MPhil, PhD (Yale), FASSA 

Elected: 1993 Panel C  

State: SA 

EVANS, Gareth John AC QC  

BA, LLB (Hons) (Melbourne), MA 

(Oxford), LLD h.c.(Melbourne; 

Carleton University, Canada; Sydney; 

Queen’s University, Ontario), FASSA, 

FAIIA 

Elected: 2012 Panel C (Honorary 

Fellow) 

State: VIC 

EVANS, Nicholas 

BSc (Hons), MA (Linguistics), PhD 

(ANU), FAHA, FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel A  

State: ACT

FEATHER, Norman Thomas AM 

BA, DipEd (Sydney), MA (Hons) (New 

England), PhD (Michigan), HonDLitt 

(UNE), HonDLitt (Flinders), Hon 

FAPsS, FASSA 

Elected: 1970 Panel D (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: SA 

 

FELS, Allan AO 

BEc (Hons), LLB (UWA), PhD (Duke), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

FENSHAM, Peter James AM 

MSc (Melbourne), DipEd (Monash), 

PhD (Bristol, Cambridge), FASSA 

Elected: 1985 Panel D  

State: VIC

FIEBIG, Denzil Gwydir 

BCom (Hons), MCom (Hons) (UNSW), 

PhD (Economics) (USC), FASSA 

Elected: 2003 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

FINCHER, Ruth AM 

BA (Hons) (Melbourne), MA 

(McMaster), PhD (Clark), FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

FINDLAY, Christopher AM 

BEc (Hons) (Adelaide), MEc, PhD 

(ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel B  

State: SA 
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FINN, Paul Desmond 

BA, LLB (UQ), LLM (London), PhD 

(Cambridge), FASSA 

Elected: 1990 Panel C  

State: SA

FINNANE, Mark 

BA (Hons) (UNSW), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2013 Panel C  

State: QLD 

 

FISHER, Brian Stanley AO, PSM 

BScAgr (Hons), PhD (Sydney), DSc 

Agr (Honoris Causa), FASSA 

Elected: 1995 Panel B  

State: ACT

FORBES, Dean 

BA (Flinders), MA (UPNG), PhD 

(Monash), FASSA 

Elected: 1994 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

FORGAS, Joseph Paul AM 

BA (Macquarie), DPhil, DSc (Oxford), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1987 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

FORSTER, Kenneth I 

MA (Melbourne), PhD (Illinois), FASSA 

Elected: 1984 Panel D  

State: Overseas 

 

FOSTER, John 

BA (Hons), Business (Coventry), MA 

(Econ), PhD (Econ) (Manchester), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2001 Panel B  

State: QLD 

 

FOX, James J 

AB (Harvard), BLitt, DPhil (Oxford), 

KNAW, FASSA 

Elected: 1992 Panel A  

State: ACT

FOX, Kevin John 

BCom, MCom (Canterbury), PhD 

(British Columbia), FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel B  

State: NSW

FRANCES, Raelene 

BA (Hons), MA (UWA), PhD (Monash), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

FRASER, Barry 

BSc (Melbourne), DipEd, BEd, PhD 

(Monash), FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel D  

State: WA 

 

FRECKELTON, Ian Richard Lloyd QC 

LLD (Melbourne), PhD (Griffith), 

BA(Hons), LLB (Sydney), Dip Th M 

(ANH), FASSA 

Elected: 2012 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

FREEBAIRN, John W 

BAgEc, MAgEc (New England), PhD 

(California, Davis), FASSA 

Elected: 1991 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

FREEBODY, Peter Raymond 

BA (Hons) (Sydney), PhD (Illinois), 

DipEd (Sydney Teachers’ College), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

FREESTONE, Robert 

BSc (UNSW), MA (Minnesota), PhD 

(Macquarie), FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel A  

State: NSW 

FREIBERG, Arie AM 

LLB (Hons), Dip.Crim (Melbourne), 

LLM (Monash), LLD (Melbourne), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

FRENCH, Robert Shenton AC 

BSc, LLB (UWA), Hon LLD (ECU), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel C (Honorary 

Fellow) 

State: WA 

 

FRIEL, Sharon 

PhD (Public Health), MSc (Health 

Promotion) (National University of 

Ireland, Galway), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel D  

State: ACT 

 

FRY-MCKIBBIN, Renée Anne 

PhD (Economics) (Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2018 Panel B  

State: ACT 
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GALLIGAN, Brian 

BCom, BEc (UQ), MA, PhD (Toronto), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1998 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

GALLOIS, Cynthia 

BSL (Georgetown), MA, PhD (Florida), 

MAPsS, FASSA 

Elected: 2000 Panel D  

State: QLD 

GAMMAGE, William Leonard AM 

BA, PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1995 Panel C  

State: ACT 

GANGADHARAN, Lata 

PhD (USC), MA (Delhi), BA (Hons) 

(Delhi), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

GANS, Joshua 

BEc (Hons) (UQ), PhD (Econ) 

(Stanford), FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel B  

State: Overseas 

 

GAO, Jiti 

BSc (Anhui, China), MSc, DSc 

(University of Science and 

Technology, China), PhD 

(Econometrics) (Monash), FASSA 

Elected: 2012 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

GARDAM, Judith 

LLB (UWA), LLB (Monash), LLM, PhD 

(Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel C  

State: SA 

 

GARDNER, Margaret Elaine AO 

BA (Economics) (Hons), PhD 

(Economics) (Sydney), DUniv 

(Honorary Doctorate) (Griffith), 

FASSA, FAIM, GAICD  

Elected: 2018 Panel A  

State: VIC 

GARNAUT, Ross Gregory AC 

BA, PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1991 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

GARRETT, Geoffrey 

BA (Hons) (ANU), MA, PhD (Duke 

University), FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel C  

State: PA 

GARTON, Stephen 

BA (Sydney), PhD (UNSW), FAHA, 

FRAHS, FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

GATENS, Moira 

BA (Hons) (NSW), PhD (Sydney), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1999 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

GEFFEN, Gina Malke AM 

BA (Rand), PhD (Monash), DSc hon 

(Flinders), FAPS, FASSBI, FASSA 

Elected: 1990 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

GELBER, Katharine Patricia 

PhD (Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel C  

State: QLD 

 

GIBSON, Diane Mary 

BA (Hons), PhD (UQ), FASSA 

Elected: 2001 Panel A  

State: ACT

GIBSON, Katherine Dorothea 

BSc (Hons) (Sydney), MA, PhD (Clark 

University), FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

GIBSON, Christopher Robert 

BA (Hons) (Sydney), PhD (Sydney), 

FIAG, FGS, FASSA    

Elected: 2017 Panel A  

State: NSW 

GIBSON, Cristina 

PhD (Business) (California), BA 

(Psychology) (Scripps College), 

FASSA  

Elected: 2017 Panel A  

State: WA 

 

GILL, Graeme 

BA (Hons), MA (Monash), PhD 

(London), FASSA 

Elected: 1994 Panel C  

State: NSW 
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GILLAM, Barbara 

BA (Sydney), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1994 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

GITTINS, Ross Roderick AM 

BCom (Newcastle), Hon DLitt 

(Macquarie), Hon DSc (Economics) 

(Sydney), FCA, FRSN, FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel B  

State: NSW

GLEESON, Brendan 

BRTP (Hons) (Melbourne), MURP 

(S.Calif ), DPhil (Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

GLOW, Peter 

BA (Melbourne), PhD (London), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1974 Panel D (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: VIC 

 

GODDEN, Lee Carol 

PhD (Law) (Griffith), GDLP 

(ANU), BLegS (Macquarie), MA 

(Geography) (Melbourne), GradDip 

(Education) (Melbourne State 

College), BA (Hons) (Melbourne), 

FASSA  

Elected: 2017 Panel C  

State: VIC

GOEREE, Jacob Klaas 

BS (Theoretical Physics, Cum Laude), 

PhD (Theoretical Physics) (Utrecht), 

BA, PhD (Economics, Cum Laude) 

(Amsterdam), FASSA  

Elected: 2018 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

GOLDSMITH, Andrew John 

LLB (Adelaide), LLM (LSE), MA 

(Criminology) (Toronto), MA (Social 

Theory) (Monash), SJD (Toronto), 

LLD (LSE), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel C  

State: SA

GOLDSWORTHY, Jeffrey 

LLM (Hons) (Adelaide), LLM (Illinois), 

MA, PhD (UC Berkeley), LLD 

(Adelaide), FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

GOODALL, Heather 

BA (Hons), PhD (Sydney), Grad.Dip in 

Adult Education (Community) (Inst. 

of Technical and Teacher Education, 

Sydney CAE), FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

GOODIN, Robert Edward 

BA (Indiana), DPhil (Oxon), FBA, 

FASSA 

Elected: 1990 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

GOODMAN, David S G 

BA (Hons) (Manchester), DipEcon 

(Peking), PhD (London), FASSA 

Elected: 2000 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

GOOT, Murray 

BA (Hons) (Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 2003 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

GRAFTON, Rupert Quentin 

BAgEc (Massey), MS (AgEc) (Iowa 

State), PhD (Econ) (British Columbia), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2013 Panel B  

State: ACT 

GRANT, Simon Harold 

BEc (Hons), BSc (ANU), PhD 

(Harvard), FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

GRANT, David 

BA (Syd), MSc, PhD (London), FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

GRATTAN, Michelle AO 

BA (Hons), FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

GRAY, Sidney John 

BEc (Hons) (Sydney), PhD 

(Lancaster), FASSA  

Elected: 2006 Panel B  

State: NSW 
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GRAYCAR, Adam AM 

BA, PhD, DLitt (UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 1998 Panel A  

State: SA 

 

GREGORY, Robert George AO 

BCom (Melbourne), PhD (London), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1979 Panel B  

State: ACT

GREIG, Donald Westlake 

MA, LLB (Cambridge), LLD (ANU), 

Barrister Middle Temple and 

Supreme Court of New South Wales, 

Register of Practitioners of the High 

Court and Federal Court of Australia, 

FASSA 

Elected: 1992 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

GRIFFITHS, William Edward 

BAgEc (New England), PhD (Illinois), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1995 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

GRIMSHAW, Patricia Ann AO 

BA, MA (Auckland), PhD (Melbourne), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1992 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

GRUNDY, Bruce David 

PhD (University of Chicago), BCom 

(Hons) (UQ), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

GUL, Ferdinand Akthar 

BA (Econs) (Malaya), MCom 

(Accounting and Finance) 

(Liverpool),  PhD (Accounting) (UNE), 

DEcons (Accounting and Finance) 

(Monash), FASSA, FCA, FCPA 

Elected: 2018 Panel B  

State: VIC

GUNNINGHAM, Neil 

LLB, MA (Criminology) (Sheffield), 

PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

GUNSTONE, Richard F 

BSc (Melbourne), BEd, PhD (Monash), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2003 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

HAAKONSSEN, Knud 

CandArt, MagArt (Copenhagen), 

PhD (Edinburgh), DrPhil 

(Copenhagen), FBA, FRSE, FASSA  

Elected: 1992 Panel C  

State: Thuringia 

 

HADIZ, Vedi Renandi 

PhD (Murdoch), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

HAEBICH, Anna Elizabeth 

BA (Hons) (UWA), BA (Fine Arts) 

(Curtin), PhD (Murdoch), FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel C  

State: WA 

 

HAINES, Fiona Sally 

BA (Hons) (Melbourne), PhD 

(Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

HALFORD, Graeme Sydney 

MA (New England), PhD (Newcastle), 

FAPS, FASSA 

Elected: 1986 Panel D  

State: QLD 

HALL, Wayne Denis AM 

BSc (Hons), PhD (UNSW), AM, FASSA, 

FAHMS  

Elected: 2002 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

HALL, Jane 

BA (Macquarie), PhD (Sydney), 

FASSA, FAHMS  

Elected: 2005 Panel B  

State: NSW 

HANCOCK, Keith Jackson AO 

BA (Melbourne), PhD (London), 

HonDLitt (Flinders), HonDCom 

(Melbourne), Honorary Fellow (LSE), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1968 Panel B (Honorary 

Fellow, Jubilee Fellow) 

State: SA 

 

HANDMER, John 

BA (Hons) (ANU), MA (Toronto), PhD 

(ANU), Diploma in Law (LPAB-NSW), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2018 Panel A  

State: ACT 
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HARCOURT, Geoff Colin AC 

BCom (Hons), MCom (Melbourne), 

PhD (Cambridge), LittD (Cambridge), 

LittD (Honorary, De Montfort 

University), DCom (Honorary, 

University of Melbourne), D.h.c.rer.

pol. (Honorary, University of 

Fribourg, Switzerland), AcSS (2003), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1971 Panel B (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: NSW 

HARDING, Ann AO 

BEc (Hons) (Sydney), PhD (London), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1996 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

HARDY, Cynthia 

BSc (Management Science), PhD 

(Warwick, UK), FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

HARPER, Ian Ross 

BEcon (Hons) (UQ), MEc, PhD (ANU), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2000 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

HARRIS, Stuart Francis AO 

BEc (Hons) (Sydney), PhD (ANU), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1982 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

HÄRTEL, Charmine E.J.

PhD (Industrial and Organizational 

Psychology) (CSU), MA (Industrial 

and Organizational Psychology) 

(CSU), BA (Psychology) (Hons) (UCB), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel A  

State: QLD 

 

HASLAM, Nick 

BA (Hons) (Melbourne), PhD (UPenn), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2013 Panel D  

State: VIC 

HASSAN, Riaz Ul AM 

BA (Punjab), MA (Dacca), PhD (Ohio 

State), FASSA 

Elected: 1996 Panel A  

State: SA 

 

HATTON, Timothy J 

BA, PhD (Warwick), FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

HAZARI, Bharat Raj 

BA (Hons), MA (Delhi), AM, PhD 

(Harvard), FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

HEAD, Brian William 

BA (Hons), MA (Monash), PhD 

(London - LSE), FASSA 

Elected: 2012 Panel C  

State: QLD 

 

HEAD, Lesley 

BA (Hons), PhD (Monash), FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel A  

State: NSW

HEATHCOTE, Andrew 

BSc (Hons) (UTAS), PhD (Queens 

University, Canada), FASSA 

Elected: 2012 Panel D  

State: TAS 

 

HEMELRYK DONALD, Stephanie 

Jane 

BA (Hons) (Oxford), MA (Soton), DPhil 

(Sussex), DipTh (Drama Studio), 

FRSA, FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel A  

State: VIC 

HENRY, Ken AC 

BEc (Hons) (UNSW), PhD 

(Canterbury, NZ), FASSA 

Elected: 2012 Panel B (Honorary 

Fellow) 

State: NSW 

 

HENSHER, David Alan 

BCom (Hons), PhD (NSW), FCIT, 

Comp IE Aust, FAITPM, MAPA, FASSA 

Elected: 1995 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

HESKETH, Beryl 

B Soc Sci, BA (Hons) (Cape Town), 

MA (Victoria Uni of Wellington), PhD 

(Massey), FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel D  

State: NSW 
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HEWISON, Kevin John 

BA, DipEd (WAIT), BA (Hons), PhD 

(Murdoch), FASSA 

Elected: 2014 Panel C  

State: WA 

 

HEWSON, John Robert AM 

BEc (Hons) (Sydney), MA (USASK), 

MA, PhD (JHU), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel B  

State: NSW

HICKIE, Ian 

BM, BS, MD (UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel D  

State: NSW 

HIGMAN, Barry William 

BA (Sydney), PhD (Hist) (University 

of the West Indies), PhD (Geog) 

(Liverpool), FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

HILL, Hal Christopher 

BEc (Hons), MEc (Monash), DipEd (La 

Trobe), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

HILL, Lisa 

BA, PolSci (Hons) (Tasmania), DPhil 

(Oxford), FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel C  

State: SA 

 

HOCKING, Jenny 

BSc (Monash), BEc (Monash), PhD 

(Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel C  

State: VIC 

HOGG, Michael 

BSc (Birmingham), PhD (Bristol), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1999 Panel D  

State: Overseas 

 

HOLDEN, Richard 

BEc (Hons) (Sydney), AM, PhD 

(Harvard), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel B  

State: NSW

HOLMES, Leslie Templeman 

BA (Hull), MA, PhD (Essex), FASSA 

Elected: 1995 Panel C  

State: VIC 

HOLMES, John Harvey 

MA, DipEd (Sydney), PhD (New 

England), FASSA 

Elected: 2000 Panel A  

State: QLD 

 

HOLTON, Robert John 

BA, DPhil (Sussex), MA (Trinity 

College, Dublin), FASSA 

Elected: 1995 Panel A  

State: SA 

 

HOMEL, Ross James AO 

BSc, MSc (Sydney), PhD (Macquarie), 

HonFAEC, FANZSOC, FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel A  

State: QLD 

 

HORNER, David Murray AM 

Dip Mil Stud (Merit) (RMC Duntroon), 

MA (Hons) (UNSW), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

HORNSEY, Matthew

BA (Hons), PhD (UQ), FASSA

Elected: 2018 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

HUDSON, Jennifer Leanne 

BA (Hons), MClinPsych, PhD 

(Macquarie), FASSA, FAPS 

Elected: 2018 Panel D  

State: NSW

HUMPHREYS, Michael S 

BA (Reed College), PhD (Stanford), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1991 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

INNES, John Michael 

MA (Aberdeen), PhD (Birmingham), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel D  

State: SA 

 

IRONMONGER, Duncan Standon AM 

BCom, MCom (Melbourne), PhD 

(Cambridge), FASSA 

Elected: 2001 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

IRVINE, Dexter Robert Francis 

BA (Hons) (Sydney), PhD (Monash), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1996 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

IRVING, Helen 

BA (Hons) (Melbourne), MPhil 

(Cambridge), LLB (Hons), PhD 

(Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 2013 Panel C  

State: NSW 
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ISAAC, Joseph Ezra AO 

BA (Hons), BCom (Melbourne), PhD 

(London), Hon DEcon (Monash), 

Hon DCom (Melbourne), Hon LLD 

(Macquarie), Honorary Fellow (LSE), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1971 Panel B (Honorary 

Fellow, Jubilee Fellow) 

State: VIC 

 

IZAN, Izan H Y 

BEcon (Hons) (Monash), MBA, PhD 

(Chicago), FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel B  

State: WA

JACKMAN, Simon 

BA (Hons) (UQ), PhD (Political 

Science) (Rochester), FASSA 

Elected: 2018 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

JACKSON, Frank C AO 

BA, BSc (Melbourne), PhD (La Trobe), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1998 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

JACKSON, Henry James 

BA, MA (Auckland), MA (Clinical 

Psychology) (Melbourne), PhD 

(Monash), FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

JALLAND, Patricia 

BA (Bristol), PGCE (London), MA, PhD 

(Toronto), FASSA 

Elected: 1988 Panel C  

State: ACT 

JEFFREY, Robin Bannerman 

BA (Victoria, Canada), DPhil (Sussex), 

FAHA, FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

JEFFREY, Craig Jonathan 

BA (Cambridge), MA (Cambridge), 

PhD (Cambridge), Professional 

Cert in University Teaching (ILT 

Accredited), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

JETTEN, Jolanda 

Honours (Radboud University 

Nijmegen), PhD (Amsterdam), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel D  

State: QLD

JOHNSON, Carol Ann 

BA (Hons) (Adelaide), MA (Econ) 

(Manchester), PhD (Adelaide), FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel C  

State: SA 

 

JOLLY, Margaret 

BA (Hons) (Sydney), PhD (Sydney), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1999 Panel A  

State: ACT 

 

JONES, Frank Lancaster 

BA (Sydney), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1974 Panel A (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: QLD

JONES, Gavin W 

BA (New England), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1983 Panel A  

State: WA 

 

JONES, Barry AC 

MA, LLB (Melbourne), Dlitt (UTS), 

DLitt (Wollongong), DSc (Macq), FAA, 

FAHA, FTSE, FRSA, FASSA  

Elected: 2003 Panel C (Honorary 

Fellow) 

State: VIC 

 

JONES, Stewart 

BCA (Hons), PhD (Victoria University 

of Wellington), FASSA 

Elected: 2018 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

JONSON, Peter David 

BCom, MA (Melbourne), PhD (London 

School of Economics), FASSA 

Elected: 1989 Panel B  

State: VIC

JORM, Anthony Francis 

BA (UQ), MPsychol, PhD (NSW), 

GDipComp (Deakin), DSc (ANU), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1994 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

JUPP, James AM 

MSc (Econ), PhD (London), FASSA 

Elected: 1989 Panel C  

State: ACT
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KANE, John 

BSc (UQ), BSocSc (Bristol University), 

PhD (London School of Economics 

and Political Science), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel C  

State: QLD 

 

KAPFERER, Bruce 

BA (Sydney), PhD (Manchester), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1981 Panel A 

State: Overseas 

KASHIMA, Yoshihisa 

BL (Tokyo), BA (UCSC), MA (Illiniois), 

PhD (Illiniois), FASSA 

Elected: 2013 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

KAUR, Amarjit 

BA (Hons), MA, DipEd (Malaya), 

Cert. SE Asian Studies, MPhil, PhD 

(Columbia), FASSA 

Elected: 2000 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

KAVANAGH, David 

BA (Hons), Dip Psychol (Sydney), MA, 

PhD (Stanford), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel D  

State: QLD

KAVANAGH, Anne Marie 

MBBS (Flinders); PhD (Epidemiology 

and Population Health) (ANU), FASSA  

Elected: 2018 Panel D  

State: VIC 

KEANE, Michael P 

BS (Massachusetts Institute of 

Technology), MA, PhD (Econ) (Brown 

University), FASSA 

Elected: 2012 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

KEATING, Michael AC 

Bcom (Hons) (Melbourne), PhD 

(ANU), DUniv Hon (Griffith), FIPAA, 

FASSA 

Elected: 1995 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

KEEVES, John Philip AM 

BSc (Adelaide), DipEd (Oxford), 

MEd (Melbourne), PhD (ANU), Fil Dr 

(Stockholm), FACE, FASSA 

Elected: 1977 Panel D (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: SA 

 

KELLY, Paul 

BA, DipEd (Sydney), Doctor of Letters 

(Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

KENWAY, Jane Edith 

BA (UWA), B.Ed (Hons), PhD 

(Murdoch), FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

KESSLER, Clive S 

BA (Sydney), PhD (London), FASSA 

Elected: 2000 Panel A  

State: NSW

KING, Maxwell Leslie 

BSc (Hons), MCom, PhD 

(Canterbury), FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

KING, John E 

BA (Hons) (Oxford), FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

KING, Stephen Peter 

BEc (Hons) (University Medal) (ANU), 

MEc (Monash), AM, PhD (Harvard), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

KINGSTON, Beverley Rhonda 

BA (UQ), PhD (Monash), FASSA 

Elected: 1994 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

KIPPAX, Susan Caroline AO 

BA (Hons), PhD (Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 2000 Panel A  

State: NSW 
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KIRBY, Michael Donald AC CMG 

BA, LLM, BEc (Sydney), Hon D Litt 

(Newcastle, Ulster, JCU), Hon LLD 

(Macquarie, USyd, National LSU, 

Bangalore, India, Buckingham, ANU, 

UNSW, Murdoch, Melbourne, Indiana, 

UTS, Bond, Colombo, Victoria Univ, 

Deakin, Monash, Queen’s University 

Ontario, Wollongong); Hon D Univ 

(S.Aust., SCU, Griffith, La Trobe), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1996 Panel C (Honorary 

Fellow) 

State: NSW 

 

KIRKBY, Diane 

BA (UNSW), MA, PhD (UCal Santa 

Barbara), FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

KIRSNER, Paul Kim 

BCom (Melbourne), BSc, PhD 

(London), FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel D  

State: WA 

 

KITCHING, Gavin Norman Kitching 

BSc (Econ) (Hons) (Sheffield), DPhil 

(Oxford), FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

KOHN, Robert 

BSc (Melbourne), M.Econ, PhD (ANU), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

KOMPAS, Tom 

PhD (University of Toronto), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

KRYGIER, Martin Evald John 

BA (Hons), LLB (Sydney), PhD (ANU), 

Knights Cross Poland, FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

KULIK, Carol T 

PhD (Business Administration; 

Organizational Behavior) 

(Illinois), BSc (Industrial-

Organizational Psychology) (Illinois), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel A  

State: SA 

 

LAKE, Marilyn AO 

BA (Hons), MA (UTAS), PhD (History) 

(Monash), HonDLitt (UTAS), FAHA, 

FASSA 

Elected: 1999 Panel C  

State: VIC 

LANGTON, Marcia AM 

BA (Hons) (ANU), PhD (Macquarie), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2001 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

LANSBURY, Russell AO 

BA, DipEd, MA (Melbourne), PhD 

(London), Hon DLitt (Macquarie) Hon 

DTech (Lulea), FASSA 

Elected: 1999 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

LAWRENCE, Geoffrey Alan 

BSc Agr (Sydney), Dip Soc Sci (UNE), 

MS (Sociology) (Wisconsin-Madison), 

PhD (Griffith), FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel A  

State: QLD 

 

LAWSON, Stephanie Anne 

Dip Teach, BA, PhD (New England), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

LEDER, Gilah AM 

BA, DipEd (Adelaide), MEd, PhD 

(Monash), FASSA 

Elected: 2001 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

LEIGH, Andrew MP 

BA (Hons), LLB (Hons) (Sydney), MPA, 

PhD (Harvard), FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

LEWIS, Mervyn Keith 

BEc (Hons), PhD (Adelaide), FASSA 

Elected: 1986 Panel B  

State: SA

LILLIS, Anne Maree 

B.Com (Melbourne), M.Com 

(Melbourne), PhD (Melbourne), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel B  

State: VIC 
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LINGARD, Robert Leslie 

Cert Teach (now QUT), BA, BEdSt 

(UQ), MA (Durham UK), PhD (UQ), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel A  

State: QLD 

 

LIPP, Ottmar Volker 

DipPsych, Dr Phil (Psychology) 

(Germany), Grad Cert Ed (Higher Ed) 

(UQ), FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel D  

State: WA 

 

LLOYD, Peter John AM 

MA (Victoria University of 

Wellington), PhD (Duke), FASSA 

Elected: 1979 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

LOCKIE, Stewart 

BAppSc (Agric) (Hons) (UWS), PhD 

(Charles Sturt), FASSA 

Elected: 2012 Panel A  

State: QLD 

 

LOGAN, William Stewart 

BA (Hons), MA (Melbourne), PhD 

(Monash), DipEd (Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

LONGWORTH, John William 

HDA (Western Sydney), BScAgr, PhD 

(Sydney), GradDipFP (Sec Inst), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1992 Panel B  

State: QLD

LOUGHRAN, Jeffrey John 

BSc, DipEd, MEd Studies, PhD, DLitt, 

FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

LOUVIERE, Jordan Joseph 

BA (Distinction) (Lafayette, 

Louisiana), MA (University of 

Nebraska), Masters Cert in Urban 

Transportation, PhD (Iowa), FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

LOVIBOND, Peter 

BSc (Psychology), MSc (Clin Psych), 

PhD (UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

LOWE, David Michael 

BA (Hons) (Monash) , PhD 

(Cambridge), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

LUPTON, Deborah 

BA (ANU), LittB (ANU), MPH (Sydney), 

PhD (Sydney), Doctor of Social 

Science (hons causa) (Copenhagen), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel A  

State: ACT 

 

LUSZCZ, Mary A 

BA (Dayton), MA (George Peabody), 

PhD (Alabama), FGSA, FAPS, AAGF, 

FASSA 

Elected: 2001 Panel D  

State: SA 

 

MACINTYRE, Stuart Forbes AO 

BA (Melbourne), MA (Monash), PhD 

(Cambridge), FAHA, FASSA 

Elected: 1987 Panel C (Honorary 

Fellow) 

State: VIC

MACINTYRE, Andrew James 

BA (Hons), MA, PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

MACINTYRE, Martha 

BA (Hons) (Melbourne), Certificate 

of Social Anthropology (Cambridge), 

PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2012 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

MACKIE, Vera Christine 

BA (Hons), MA (Monash), PhD 

(Adelaide), FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

MACKINNON, Alison Gay AM 

BA, DipEd (Melbourne), MEd, PhD 

(Adelaide), PhD (Hon) (Umea 

University, Sweden), FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel C  

State: SA 

 

MACKINNON, Andrew 

BSc (Hons) (Melbourne), PhD 

(Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel D  

State: VIC 
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MACLEOD, Roy 

AB (Harvard), PhD (Cambridge), LittD 

(Cambridge), FAHA, FSA, FRHistS, 

FASSA 

Elected: 1996 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

MACLEOD, Colin 

BSc (Glas), Mphil (London), Dphil 

(Oxon), FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel D  

State: WA

MACMILLAN, Malcolm Bruce 

BSc (UWA), MSc (Melbourne), DSc 

(Monash), FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

MADDOX, William Graham 

BA, MA (Sydney), BScEcon, MSc 

(London), DipEd (Sydney), HonDLitt 

(UNE), FASSA 

Elected: 1998 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

MADSEN, Jakob Brochner 

Cand.Oecon University of Aarhus, 

PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel B  

State: WA 

 

MAGAREY, Susan Margaret AM 

BA (Hons), DipEd (Adelaide), MA, PhD 

(ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel C  

State: SA 

 

MAHER, Lisa AM 

PhD, MA (Rutgers University), BA 

(UQ), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

MALCOLM, Elizabeth 

BA (Hons) (UNSW), MA (Sydney), PhD 

(Trinity College, Dublin), FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

MALEY, William AM 

BEc, LLB, MA (ANU), PhD (UNSW), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel C  

State: ACT

MANDERSON, Lenore Hilda 

BA (Asian Studies) (Hons), PhD 

(ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1995 Panel A  

State: Overseas 

 

MANN, Leon AO 

MA, DipSocSt (Melbourne), PhD 

(Yale), FAPsS, Hon Fellow and Life 

Governor (Hebrew University), Hon 

D.Sc (Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 1975 Panel D (Honorary 

Fellow, Jubilee Fellow) 

State: VIC 

 

MANNE, Robert 

BA (Hons) (Melbourne), BPhil 

(Oxford), FASSA 

Elected: 1999 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

MARCEAU, Felicity Jane 

BA (London), PhD (Cambridge), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1989 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

MARGINSON, Simon 

BA (Hons) (Melbourne), PhD 

(Melbourne), MAE, FASSA, FACE 

Elected: 2000 Panel A  

 

MARKUS, Andrew 

BA (Hons) (Melbourne), PhD 

(LaTrobe), FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

MARSH, Herbert 

BA (Hons) (Indiana), MA, PhD (UCLA), 

FASSA DSc (UWS), FASSA 

Elected: 1994 Panel D  

State: NSW

MARTIN, Nicholas 

BSc (Hons) (Adelaide), PhD 

(Birmingham), FASSA 

Elected: 2003 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

MARTIN, Andrew James 

BA (Hons) (Psych) (Sydney), MEd 

(Hons) (Ed Psych) (Sydney), PhD (Ed 

Psych) (UWS), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel D  

State: NSW 
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MASON, Anthony AC, KBE 

BA, LLB, HonLLD (Sydney), HonLLD 

(ANU), HonLLD (Melbourne), HonLLD 

(Griffith), HonLLD (Monash), HonLLD 

(UNSW), HonLLD (Deakin), Hon DCL 

(Oxford), FASSA 

Elected: 1989 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

MASULIS, Ronald William 

BA (Hons) (Northeastern), MBA, PhD 

(Chicago), FASSA 

Elected: 2014 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

MATTINGLEY, Jason 

BSc (Hons) (Monash), MSc 

(Melbourne), PhD (Monash), FASSA, 

FAPS 

Elected: 2007 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

MAY, Andrew James 

BA (Hons), PhD (Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2018 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

MAYNARD, John Mervyn 

Dip Aboriginal Studies (Newcastle), 

BA (SA), PhD (Newcastle), FASSA 

Elected: 2014 Panel C  

State: NSW

MAZEROLLE, Lorraine 

BA (Hons) (Flinders), MA, PhD 

(Rutgers), FASSA 

Elected: 2014 Panel A  

State: QLD 

 

McADAM, Jane 

BA (Hons), LLB (Hons) (Sydney), 

DPhil (Oxford), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

McALEER, Michael John  

BEc (Hons) (Monash), MEc (Monash), 

PhD (Queen’s, Canada), FIEMSS, 

FMSSANZ, FJE, DFIETI, FASSA 

Elected: 1996 Panel B  

State: WA 

 

McALLISTER, Ian 

BA (Hons) (CNAA), MSc, PhD 

(Strathclyde), FASSA 

Elected: 1992 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

McCALLUM, John 

BEcon (UQ), BEcon Hons Psych (UQ), 

MPhil (Oxford), DPhil (Oxford), FASSA 

Elected: 2003 Panel A  

State: ACT 

 

McCALMAN, Iain AO 

BA, MA (ANU), PhD (Monash), FAHA, 

FRHS, FASSA 

Elected: 1992 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

McCALMAN, Janet Susan AC 

BA (Hons) (Melbourne), PhD (ANU), 

FAHA, FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel C  

State: VIC

McCONKEY, Kevin Malcolm AM 

BA (Hons), PhD (UQ), Hon FAPS, 

FAICD, FAmericanPA, FAmericanPS, 

FASSA 

Elected: 1996 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

McDONALD, Ian Martin 

BA (Leicester), MA (Warwick), PhD 

(Simon Fraser), FASSA 

Elected: 1991 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

McDONALD, Skye 

BSc (Hons) (Monash), MSc 

(Melbourne), PhD (Macquarie), FASSA 

Elected: 2014 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

McDONALD, Peter AM 

BCom (Hons) (UNSW), PhD (ANU), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1998 Panel A  

State: ACT 

 

McEACHERN, Douglas 

BA (Hons), MA (Adelaide), PhD 

(Leeds), FASSA 

Elected: 2001 Panel C  

State: SA 

 

McGAW, Barry AO 

BSc, BEd (UQ), MEd, PhD (Illinois), 

FACE, FAPS, FASSA 

Elected: 1984 Panel D  

State: VIC 
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McGORRY, Patrick AO 

MBBS (Hons) (Sydney), PhD 

(Monash), HonMD (Melbourne), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel D  

State: VIC

McGRATH, Ann AM 

BA (History) (Hons) (UQ), PhD (La 

Trobe), FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

McGUIRK, Pauline Mary 

BA (Hons) (Dublin), H.Dip.Edu 

(Dublin), PhD (Human Geography) 

(Dublin), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

McKENZIE, Beryl 

BA (Melbourne), PhD (Monash), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1993 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

McKIBBIN, Warwick James AO 

Bcom (Hons) (NSW), AM (Harvard), 

PhD (Harvard), FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

McKONE, Elinor 

Elected: 2017 Panel D  

State: ACT 

 

McLAREN, Keith Robert 

BEc (Hons), MEc (Monash), MA, PhD 

(Northwestern), FASSA 

Elected: 2000 Panel B  

State: VIC 

McLENNAN, Andrew 

BA (Chicago), PhD (Princeton), FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel B  

State: QLD 

 

McLEOD, Julie 

BA (Hons), Dip Ed (Melbourne), MEd, 

PhD ( LaTrobe), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel A  

State: VIC 

McNICOLL, Geoff 

BSc (Melbourne), MA, PhD 

(California, Berkeley), FASSA 

Elected: 1993 Panel A  

State: Overseas 

 

McPHEE, Peter AM 

BA (Hons), DipEd, MA, PhD, Hon DLitt 

(Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2003 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

McSHERRY, Bernadette 

LLB (Hons), BA(Hons)(Political 

Science), LLM (Melbourne), PhD 

(York University, Canada), Grad Dip 

(Psychology) (Monash), Barrister and 

Solicitor, Supreme Court of Victoria 

and High Court of Australia, FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

MEMMOTT, Paul Christopher 

BArch (Hons), PhD (UQ), FASSA 

Elected: 2014 Panel A  

State: QLD 

 

MENEZES, Flavio 

BEc (UERJ), MEc (FGV/EPGE), PhD 

(Illinois), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel B  

State: QLD 

 

MENG, Xin 

B Econ (Beijing Economics 

University), M Econ (CASS), Grad Dip 

in Econ, M Econ, PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

MENGERSEN, Kerrie 

BA (Hons) (Mathematical Statistics 

and Computing), PhD (Statistics) 

(UNE); GradDipHigherEd (QUT), 

FAAS, FASSA, QAAS  

Elected: 2018 Panel B  

State: QLD 

MICHIE, Patricia T 

BA (Hons) (UNE), PhD (Macquarie), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2013 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

MILBOURNE, Ross AO 

BCom, MCom (NSW), PhD (UC 

Berkeley), FASSA 

Elected: 1994 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

MILLS, Martin 

BEcon (UQ), Dip Ed (Charles Sturt), 

BEd (Hons) (UQ), PhD (UQ), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel A  

State: QLD 
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MILNER, Anthony AM 

BA (Monash), MA, PhD 

(Cornell), FRHistS, FASSA 

Elected: 1995 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

MITCHELL, Philip Bowden AM 

MB BS (Hons) (Sydney), MD (UNSW), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

MOSKO, Mark S 

BA (magna cum laude) (California), 

MA, PhD (Minnesota), FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

MÜHLHÄUSLER, Peter 

BA (Hons) (Stellenbosch), MPhil 

(Reading), PhD (ANU), MA (Oxon), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1992 Panel A  

State: SA 

MULVEY, Charles 

MA (Aberdeen), FASSA 

Elected: 1998 Panel B  

State: WA 

 

NAFFINE, Ngaire May 

LLB, PhD (Adelaide), FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel C  

State: SA 

 

NAIRN, Tom Cunningham 

Diploma of Art (Edinburgh College of 

Art), MA (Hons) (Edinburgh), FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel C  

State: Overseas 

 

NAJMAN, Jake 

BA (Hons), PhD (UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel A  

State: QLD 

 

NEAVE, Marcia AO 

LLB Hons (Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 1989 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

NEUMANN, Klaus 

PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel C

State: Overseas  

 

NEVILE, John AM 

BA (UWA), MA, PhD (UC Berkeley), 

Hon DSc (NSW), FASSA 

Elected: 1972 Panel B (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: ACT

NEWTON, Peter Wesley 

BA (Hons), MA (Newcastle), PhD 

(Canterbury), FASSA 

Elected: 2014 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

NG, Yew-Kwang 

BCom (Nanyang), PhD (Sydney), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1981 Panel B 

State: Overseas 

 

NICHOLAS, Stephen James 

BA (Syracuse), MA (Iowa) PhD 

(honoris causa) Superior University, 

FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel B  

State: Overseas 

 

NICKELS, Lyndsey 

BA (Hons) (Reading), PhD (London), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2014 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

NIEUWENHUYSEN, John AM 

BA (Hons), MA (Natal), PhD (London), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1996 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

NILAND, John Rodney AC 

BCom, MCom Hon DSc (UNSW), 

PhD (Illinois), Hon Doctor of Letters 

(Singapore Management University), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1987 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

NOLAN, Melanie Claire 

BA (Canterbury), MA (Hons) 

(Canterbury), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel C  

State: ACT

NOLLER, Patricia 

BA (Hons), PhD (UQ), FASSA 

Elected: 1994 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

O’DONOGHUE, Thomas Anthony 

BA (National Council of Educational 

Awards, Ireland), MA (University 

College Dublin), MEd (Trinity College 

Dublin), PhD (National University of 

Ireland), FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel D  

State: WA 
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O’FAIRCHEALLAIGH, Ciaran 

BA (Hons), MA, PhD, FASSA 

Elected: 2013 Panel C  

State: QLD 

 

O’NEILL, Robert John AO 

BE (Melbourne), MA, DPhil (Oxford),  

FASSA, FAIIA 

Elected: 1978 Panel C (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: NSW 

 

OFFICER, Robert AM 

BAgSc (Melbourne), MAgEc (New 

England), MBA (Chicago), PhD 

(Chicago), FASSA 

Elected: 1988 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

OLEKALNS, Mara 

BA (Hons), PhD (Adelaide), FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

OPPENHEIMER, Melanie Nivison 

PhD (Macquarie), MLitt (UNE), Acting 

Diploma (Webber Douglas Academy 

of Dramatic Art, London), BA & DipEd 

(UNE), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel C  

State: SA

ORFORD, Anne Margaret 

BA (UQ), LLB (Hons) (UQ), LLM 

(Lond), PhD (Adelaide), LLD (hc) 

(Lund), LLD (hc) Gothenburg, FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

OSTROFF, Cheri 

BA (Hons) (Texas), MA (Organizational 

Psychology), PhD (Organizational 

Psychology) (Michigan State), FASSA  

Elected: 2018 Panel A  

State: SA 

 

OVER, Raymond 

BA, PhD (Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 1975 Panel D (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: VIC 

 

PACHANA, Nancy Ann 

AB (Hons) (Princeton), MA, PhD (Case 

Western Reserve), FASSA 

Elected: 2014 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

PAGAN, Adrian Rodney AO 

BEc (UQ), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1986 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

PAISLEY, Fiona 

BA (Hons) (Monash), DipEd (Monash), 

MEd (Melbourne), PhD (La Trobe), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel C  

State: QLD 

 

PAKULSKI, Jan 

MA (Warsaw), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel A  

State: TAS

PALMER, Ian 

BA (Hons) (ANU), PhD (Monash), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel A  

State: VIC 

PANNELL, David James 

BSc (Agric) (Hons), BEc, PhD (UWA), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2012 Panel B  

State: WA 

 

PARKER, Gordon AO 

MB, BS (Sydney), MD, PhD, DSc 

(UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

PARKER, Sharon Kaye 

BSc (Hons) (UWA), PhD (Sheffield), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2014 Panel A  

State: WA 

 

PARKINSON, Martin Lee AC, PSM 

BEc (Hons) (Adelaide), MEc (ANU), MA 

(Princeton), PhD (Princeton), FASSA

Elected: 2016 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

PATAPAN, Haig 

BEcon, LLB (UQ); MA, PhD (Toronto), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel C  

State: QLD 

 

PATTISON, Philippa AO 

BSc, PhD (Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 1995 Panel D  

State: VIC 
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PAUWELS, Anne 

Licentiate Germanic Philology, 

Aggregaat Hoger Onderwijs 

(Antwerp, Belgium), MA, PhD 

(Monash), FASSA 

Elected: 1995 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

PAXINOS, George AO 

BA (California), PhD (McGill), DSc 

(NSW), FASSA 

Elected: 1996 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

PEEL, Mark 

BA (Hons), MA (Flinders), MA (John 

Hopkins), PhD (Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel C 

State: Overseas 

 

PEETZ, David 

B Economics (Hons), PhD, FASSA 

Elected: 2013 Panel A  

State: QLD 

 

PETERSEN, Alan Robert 

BA, MA, PhD, FAcSS, FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

PETERSON, Candida 

BA (Adelaide), PhD (California), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

PETERSON, Nicolas 

BA (Kings College, Cambridge), PhD 

(Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel A  

State: ACT

PETTIT, Philip AC 

MA (National University of Ireland), 

MA (Cambridge), PhD (Queen’s), 

Hon DLitt (National University of 

Ireland), Hon DLitt (Queen’s, Belfast), 

Hon DPh (Lund, Sweden), Hon PhD 

(Crete), Hon PhD (Montreal), Hon 

PhD (Athens), FASSA 

Elected: 1987 Panel C  

State: Overseas 

 

PICKERING, Sharon 

BA (Melbourne); MA (Soton); PhD 

(Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2018 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

PIGGOTT, John 

BA (Sydney), MSc, PhD (London), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1992 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

PINCUS, Jonathan James 

BEc (Hons) (UQ), MA, PhD (Stanford), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1996 Panel B  

State: SA 

 

PIRKIS, Jane 

BA (Hons) (UTas), MAppEpid (ANU), 

PhD (Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

PLATOW, Michael 

BA (UCLA), PhD (UC Santa Barabara), 

MHigherEd (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2012 Panel D  

State: ACT 

 

POCOCK, Barbara Ann AM 

BEcon (Hons), PhD (Adelaide), FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel B  

State: SA

PODGER, Andrew Stuart AO 

BSc (Hons) (Sydney), FASSA  

Elected: 2011 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

POLLARD, John Hurlstone AM 

BSc (Sydney), PhD (Cambridge), FIA, 

FIAA, FASSA 

Elected: 1979 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

POOLE, Millicent Eleanor 

BA, BEd (UQ), MA (New England), 

PhD (La Trobe), FASSA 

Elected: 1992 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

POTTS, Jason 

PhD (Economics) (Lincoln), FASSA

Elected: 2017 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

POWELL, Alan Anthony AM 

BScAgr, PhD (Sydney), DEcon 

(honoris causa) (Monash), FASSA 

Elected: 1973 Panel B (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: VIC 

 

POWELL, Joseph Michael 

MA (Liverpool), PhD, DLitt (Monash), 

FASSA, FBA 2002  

Elected: 1985 Panel A  

State: VIC 
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POYNTER, John Riddoch AO OBE  

MA (Oxford), BA, PhD (Melbourne), 

Chevalier dans l’Ordre des Palmes 

Academiques, FAHA, FASSA 

Elected: 1971 Panel C (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: VIC

PREST, Wilfrid 

BA (Melbourne), DPhil (Oxford), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1988 Panel C  

State: SA 

 

PRIOR, Margot Ruth AO 

BMus, BA (Melbourne), MSc, PhD 

(Monash), DSc (Honoris Causa) 

(Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 1992 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

PROBYN, Elspeth 

BA (University of British Columbia), 

GradDip (Media Theory and 

Production), MA, PhD (Concordia 

University), FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

PUSEY, Michael Reginald 

BA (Melbourne), DEd (Harvard), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1994 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

QUIGGIN, John Charles 

BA (Hons) (Maths), BEc (Hons) (Econ), 

MEc (ANU), PhD (New England), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1996 Panel B  

State: QLD 

QUINLAN, Michael Garry 

BEc (Hons), PhD (Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

RANDOLPH, Bill 

BSc (Hons), PhD (London School of 

Economics), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel A  

State: NSW

RAO, DS Prasada 

BA, MA (Andhra University), Dip 

Econometrics and Planning, PhD 

(Indian Statistical Institute), FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel B  

State: QLD 

 

RAPEE, Ron Michael AM  

BSc (Psych), MSc (Psych), PhD 

(UNSW), FASSA, FRSN 

Elected: 2012 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

RAPHAEL, Beverley AM 

MBBS, MD (Sydney), MD (hon) 

(Newcastle), DPM, MANZCP, MRC 

Psych, FRANZCP, FRC Psych, FASSA 

Elected: 1986 Panel D  

State: ACT 

 

RAVENHILL, Frederick John 

BSc (Econ) (Hons) (Hull), AM 

(Indiana), MA (Dalhousie), PhD (UC, 

Berkeley), FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel C  

State: Overseas 

 

RAYFUSE, Rosemary Gail 

LLB (Queen’s), LLM (Cambridge), PhD 

(Utrecht),  LLD (h.c.) (Lund), FASSA   

Elected: 2018 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

READ, Peter John Reath AM 

BA (Hons) (ANU), DipEd (Sydney 

Teachers’ College), MA (Toronto), 

Certificate in Radio, Film & Television 

(Bristol), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2003 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

REID, Elizabeth Anne AO 

BA (Hons) (ANU), BPhil (Oxford), 

FASSA  

Elected: 1996 Panel C (Honorary 

Fellow) 

State: ACT 

 

REID, Janice Clare AC 

BSc (Adelaide), MA (Hawaii), MA 

(Stanford), PhD (Stanford), Hon DLitt 

(UWS), FASSA 

Elected: 1991 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

REILLY, Sheena 

B App Sc (Curtin), PhD (University of 

London, UK), FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

REUS-SMIT, Christian 

BA (Hons), MA (La Trobe), Dip Ed 

(Melbourne), MA, PhD (Cornell), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel C  

State: QLD 
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REYNOLDS, Henry 

BA (Hons), MA (Tasmania), DLitt 

(James Cook), Honorary DLitt 

(Tasmania), FASSA 

Elected: 1999 Panel C  

State: TAS 

 

RHODES, Roderick Arthur William 

BSc (BFD), Blitt (Oxon), PhD (Essex), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel C  

 

RHODES, Gillian 

BSc (Canterbury NZ), MSc (Hons) 

(Auckland), PhD (Stanford), FASSA 

Elected: 2013 Panel D  

State: WA 

 

RICHARDSON, Susan AM 

BCom (Hons) (Melbourne), PhD (La 

Trobe), Honorary Fellow 2009, FASSA 

Elected: 1994 Panel B (Honorary 

Fellow) 

State: SA 

 

RICHARDSON, Rick 

PhD (Kent State University), MA (Kent 

State University), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

RICKETSON, Staniforth 

BA (Hons), LLB (Hons) (Melbourne), 

LLM, LLD (London), FASSA 

Elected: 2003 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

RIMMER, Malcolm 

MA (Oxford), MA (Warwick), FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel B  

State: VIC 

RIMMER, Peter James AM 

BA (Hons), MA (Manchester), PhD 

(Canterbury), Grad Cert Education 

(Cambridge), DLitt (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1992 Panel A  

State: ACT 

 

RIZVI, Fazal Abbas 

Dip Teaching, BEd (Canberra), 

MEd (Manchester, UK), PhD (Kings 

College, University of London), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

ROACH ANLEU, Sharyn 

BA (Hons), MA (UTAS), PhD 

(Connecticut), LLB (Hons) (Adelaide), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel A  

State: SA 

 

ROBERTS, John Heath 

BA (Hons), MCom (Melbourne), MSc, 

PhD (MIT), FASSA 

Elected: 2013 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

ROBINS, Garry 

BSc (Hons), BA (Hons), PhD 

(Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

ROBINSON, Kathryn 

BA (Hons) (Anthropology) (Sydney), 

PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel A  

State: ACT 

 

ROBISON, Richard 

BA (ANU), MA, PhD (Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel C  

State: WA 

 

RODAN, Garry 

BA (Social Sciences) (WA Institute 

of Technology), BA (Hons), PhD 

(Murdoch), FASSA 

Elected: 2012 Panel C  

State: WA 

 

ROLFE, John 

BComm (UQ), BEcon (Hons) (UQ), 

PhD (UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel B  

State: QLD 

 

ROOM, Robin Gerald Walden 

PhD (Sociology), MA (Sociology), 

MA (English), (UC, Berkeley),BA 

(Princeton), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

ROSENTHAL, Doreen Anne AO 

BA (Hons), PhD (Melbourne), DSc 

(Honoris causa), FASSA  

Elected: 1998 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

ROWE, David 

BA (Hons) (Sociology) (Nottingham), 

MA (Sociology) (York), PhD 

(Sociology) (Essex), FAHA, FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel A  

State: NSW 
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ROWSE, Tim 

BA (Hons), PhD (Sydney), MA (Hons) 

(Flinders), FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

RUBENSTEIN, Kim 

BA, LLB (Hons) (Melbourne), LLM 

(Harvard), FASSA

Elected: 2018 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

RUBINSTEIN, William David 

BA, MA (Swarthmore College), PhD 

(Johns Hopkins), FASSA 

Elected: 1992 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

RUSSELL, Lynette AM 

BA (Hons) (La Trobe), PhD 

(Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2012 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

SAIKAL, Amin AM 

BA, PhD (ANU), AM, FASSA  

Elected: 2013 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

SANDERS, Matthew Roy 

BA, MA, PostGradDip (Auckland), PhD 

(Clinical Psychology) (UQ), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

SANDERSON, Penelope Margaret 

BA (Hons) (UWA), MA, PhD (Toronto), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel D  

State: QLD

SAUNDERS, Cheryl AO 

BA, LLB (Hons), PhD (Melbourne), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1994 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

SAUNDERS, Peter Gordon 

BSc (Hons), DipEc (Southhampton), 

PhD (Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 1995 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

SAVAGE, Elizabeth 

BSc (Arch) (Hons) (Sydney), MSc 

(Econ) (LSE), FASSA  

Elected: 2018 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

SAWER, Marian AO 

BA (Hons), MA, PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1996 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

SCATES, Bruce 

BA (Hons), PhD (Mon), DipEd 

(Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2014 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

SCHEDVIN, Carl Boris 

PhD (Sydney), HonDCom 

(Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 1987 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

SCHWARTZ, Steven AM 

BA (Brooklyn), MSc, PhD (Syracuse), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1991 Panel D  

State: NSW

SCOTT, Anthony 

BA (Hons) (Newcastle-upon-Tyne), 

MSc (York), PhD (Aberdeen), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

SEDDON, Terri 

BSc (Hons) (Newcastle-upon-Tyne), 

PGCE (Bristol), GradDip (Sydney 

Teachers College), BA (Hons), PhD 

(Macquarie), FASSA 

Elected: 2013 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

SELLECK, Richard Joseph Wheeler 

BA, BEd, PhD (Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 1978 Panel D (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: VIC 

 

SHARPE, Ann Louise  

BA (Hons) (Sydney), MPsych 

(Sydney), PhD (London), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

SHAVER, Sheila 

AB (Stanford), PhD (La Trobe), FASSA 

Elected: 1998 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

SHEEHAN, Peter Winston AO 

BA, PhD (Sydney), FASSA  

Elected: 1978 Panel D (Honorary 

Fellow, Jubilee Fellow) 

State: QLD 
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SHERGOLD, Peter AC 

BA (Hons) (Hull), MA (Illinois), PhD 

(London), FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel B  

State: ACT

SHLOMOWITZ, Ralph 

BA, BCom (Cape Town), BCom (Hons) 

(Econ) (Witwatersrand), MSc (Econ) 

(LSE), PhD (Chicago), FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel B  

State: SA 

 

SIDDLE, David Alan Tate 

BA, PhD (UQ), FASSA 

Elected: 1991 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

SILOVE, Derrick Michael AM 

MB ChB (Hons) (Cape Town), MD 

(UNSW), FASSA, FRANZCP  

Elected: 2018 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

SIMNETT, Roger AO 

BEc (Hons), MEc (Monash), PhD 

(UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

SINCLAIR, William Angus 

MCom (Melbourne), DPhil (Oxford), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1974 Panel B (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: VIC 

 

SINGER, Peter Albert David AC 

MA (Melbourne), BPhil (Oxon), FASSA 

Elected: 1989 Panel C  

State: VIC

SKILBECK, Malcolm AO 

BA (Sydney), MA (Illinois), Academic 

Diploma of Education and PhD 

(London), DLitt (Hon) (NUI), FASSA 

Elected: 1988 Panel D  

State: VIC

SLAUGHTER, Virginia 

BA (Sarah Lawrence College, New 

York), PhD (UC Berkeley), GradCert 

(Higher Ed) (UQ), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

SMITH, Robert Henry Tufrey AM 

BA (New England), MA 

(Northwestern), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1974 Panel A (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: QLD 

 

SMITH, Laurajane 

BA (Hons) (Sydney), PhD (Sydney), 

GradDip (HigherEd)(UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

SMITHSON, Michael 

BSc (Harvey Mudd), PhD (Oregon), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1998 Panel D  

State: ACT 

 

SMYTH, John 

BComm (Melbourne), DipEd 

(Monash), BEd Studies (UQ), MEd 

Admin (with Merit) (UNE), M Policy 

& Law (La Trobe), PhD (Education) 

(University of Alberta), FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel A  

State: VIC 

SODERSTROM, Naomi Siegel 

BA (Psychology) (Reed College), MSc 

(Accounting & Information Systems) 

(Northwestern), PhD (Accounting 

& Information Systems) 

(Northwestern), FASSA  

Elected: 2017 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

SOUTAR, Geoffrey Norman 

BEc (Hons) (UWA), MA (Cornell), PhD 

(Cornell), FANZMAC, FANZAM, FAIM, 

FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel B  

State: WA 

 

SPEARRITT, Peter 

BA (Hons) (Sydney), PhD (ANU), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1996 Panel C  

State: QLD 

 

SPENCE, Susan Hilary AO 

BA (Hons), MBA (Sydney), PhD 

(Birmingham), FASSA 

Elected: 1995 Panel D  

State: QLD 

 

STANLEY, Fiona Juliet AC 

MBBS (UWA), MSc (London), MD 

(UWA), Hon DSc (Murdoch), Hon DSc 

(QUT), Hon DUniv (Edith Cowan), 

Hon MD (Melbourne), FFPHM, 

FAFPHM, FRACP, FRANZCOG, FAA, 

FASSA 

Elected: 1996 Panel D  

State: WA 
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STANTON, David Ian AM 

BEc (Hons) (UWA), MSc (Soc Admin) 

(LSE), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

STERN, David Ian 

BA (Hebrew University of Jerusalem), 

MSc (LSE), PhD (Boston), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

STILWELL, Franklin 

BSc (Southampton), Grad Dip Higher 

Ed (Sydney), PhD (Reading), FASSA 

Elected: 2001 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

STIMSON, Robert John AM 

BA, Litt.B (New England), PhD 

(Flinders), FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel A  

State: QLD

STONE, Diane Lesley 

BA (Hons) (Murdoch), MA, PhD (ANU), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2012 Panel C  

State: Overseas 

 

STONE, Adrienne Sarah Ackary 

BA, LLB (UNSW); LLM, JSD 

(Columbia), FASSA, FAAL

Elected: 2017 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

STOUT, Julie Camille 

BS (Ohio State); MA, PhD (Duke 

University), FASSA

Elected: 2018 Panel D  

State: VIC 

STRANGE, Carolyn 

BA (Hons) (Western Ontario), MA 

(History) (Ottawa), PhD (US History 

and Women’s History) (Rutgers), 

FASSA

Elected: 2016 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

SUTTON, Peter 

BA (Hons) (Sydney), MA (Hons) 

(Macquarie), PhD (UQ), FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel A  

State: SA 

 

SWAIN, Shurlee Lesley 

Dip Soc Studs, BA (Hons), PhD 

(Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

SWAIT, Joffre Dan Jr 

BSc (Civil Engineering) (OSU); MSc 

(Civil Engineering) (OSU); PhD 

(Transportation Systems Analysis) 

(MIT), FASSA  

Elected: 2017 Panel B  

State: Overseas

SWAN, Peter Lawrence AO  

BEc (Hons) (ANU), PhD (Econ) 

(Monash), FRSN, FASSA  

Elected: 1997 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

SWELLER, John 

BA, PhD (Adelaide), FASSA 

Elected: 1993 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

TAFT, Ronald AM 

BA (Melbourne), MA (Columbia), PhD 

(California), FASSA 

Elected: 1964 Panel D (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: VIC 

 

TAFT, Marcus 

BSc (Hons), PhD (Monash), FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

TAYLOR, John 

BA (Hons) (Newcastle-upon-Tyne), 

PhD (Liverpool), FASSA 

Elected: 2013 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

TAYLOR, Philip Kenneth 

PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel A  

State: ACT 

 

TAYLOR, Stephen 

BCom (Hons) (UNSW), MEc (Hons) 

(Macquarie), PhD (UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel B  

State: NSW

TEESSON, Maree AC 

BSc (Psychology) (Hons) (UNSW), 

PhD (Psychiatry) (UNSW), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

TEN, Chin-Liew 

BA (Malaya), MA (London), FAHA, 

FASSA 

Elected: 2000 Panel C  

State: VIC 
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TERRY, Deborah Jane AO 

BA (ANU), PhD (ANU), FAPS, FASSA 

Elected: 2003 Panel D (Honorary 

Fellow) 

State: WA 

 

THOMPSON, Janna Lea 

BA (Minnesota), BPhil (Oxford), DipEd 

(Tert.) (Monash), FAHA, FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

THOMSON, Alistair 

BA (Hons) (Melbourne), MA, DPhil 

(Sussex), FASSA 

Elected: 2014 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

THORNTON, Margaret Rose 

BA (Hons) (Sydney), LLB (UNSW), 

LLM (Yale), FASSA 

Elected: 1998 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

THROSBY, Charles David AO 

BScAgr, MScAgr (Sydney), PhD 

(London), FASSA 

Elected: 1988 Panel B  

State: NSW

TIGGEMANN, Marika 

BA (Hons), PhD (Adelaide), FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel D  

State: SA 

 

TISDELL, Clement Allan 

BCom (NSW), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1986 Panel B  

State: QLD 

 

TONKINSON, Robert 

MA (UWA), PhD (British Columbia), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1988 Panel A  

State: WA 

 

TOURKY, Rabee 

BEc (Hons) (UQ), PhD (Economics) 

(UQ), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

TREWIN, Dennis AO 

BSc (Hons) (Melbourne), BEc (ANU), 

MSc (London), PH D (JCU) (Hon), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2008 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

TRINDER, John Arthur 

BPsychol (UWA), MA (Cincinnati), 

PhD (Cincinnati), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

TROTMAN, Ken 

BCom, MCom (Hons), PhD (UNSW), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1998 Panel B  

State: NSW

TRUE, Jacqui 

PhD, MA, BA (Hons), BA, FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

TURKINGTON, Darrell Andrew 

BCA (Wellington NZ), MCom 

(Canterbury NZ), MA, PhD (Berkeley), 

BA (Wellington NZ), BA (UWA), FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel B  

State: WA 

 

TURNER, Bryan S 

PhD (Leeds), DLitt (Flinders), Litt.D 

(Cambridge), FASSA 

Elected: 1987 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

TURNOVSKY, Stephen John 

MA (Wellington), PhD (Harvard), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1976 Panel B (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: WA 

 

TWOMEY, Christina Louise 

BA (Hons), PhD (Melbourne), FAHA, 

FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

TYTLER, Russell William 

MSc (Melbourne), MEd (Melbourne), 

PhD (Monash), FASSA  

Elected: 2017 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

VAHID, Farshid 

BSc, MSc (LSE), PhD (UC San Diego), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2014 Panel B  

State: VIC 
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VAN KRIEKEN, Robert Michael 

BA (Hons) (UNSW), PhD (UNSW), LLB 

(Hons) (Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

VILLE, Simon Philip 

BA (Hons), PhD (London), FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

VINEY, Rosalie 

BEc (Hons) (UTAS), MEc (UTAS), PhD 

(Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 2016 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

WADE, Tracey Diane 

BSc (Adelaide), (Hons) (Flinders), 

M.Clin.Psych (ANU), PhD (Flinders), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel D  

State: SA 

 

WAJCMAN, Judy 

BA (Hons) (Monash), MA (Sussex), 

PhD (Cambridge), FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel A  

State: Overseas 

 

WAKEFIELD, Melanie AO 

BA, GradDip (Applied Psychology), 

MA, PhD (Adelaide), FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

WALDBY, Catherine 

BA (Hons) (Sydney), PhD (Murdoch), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel A  

State: ACT

WALKER, David Robert 

BA (Hons) (Adelaide), PhD (ANU), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2001 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

WALLACE, John Gilbert AM, PSM 

MA, MEd (Glasgow), PhD (Bristol), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1980 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

WALLACE, Robert Henry 

BCom (Hons) (Melbourne), BPhil 

(Oxford), FASSA 

Elected: 1978 Panel B  (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: SA 

 

WALLER, Peter Louis AO 

LLB (Melbourne), BCL (Oxford), 

Barrister and Solicitor (Victoria), Hon 

LLD (Monash), FASSA 

Elected: 1977 Panel C (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: VIC 

 

WALMSLEY, Dennis James 

MA (Cambridge), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1994 Panel A  

State: NSW 

 

WALTER, James Arnot 

BA (Hons) (Melbourne), MA (La 

Trobe), PhD (Melbourne), FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

WALTER, Margaret May 

BA (Social Welfare) (CSU); BSW 

(Hons), PhD (Sociology) (UTAS), 

FASSA    

Elected: 2018 Panel A  

State: TAS

WANNA, John 

BA (Hons), PhD (Adelaide), FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

WARD, R. Gerard  

MA (New Zealand), PhD (London), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1971 Panel A (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: ACT 

 

WARR, Peter 

BSc (Sydney), MSc (London), PhD 

(Stanford), FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel B  

State: ACT 

 

WATERHOUSE, Richard 

BA (Hons) (Sydney), MA, PhD (John 

Hopkins), FASSA FAHA

Elected: 2006 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

WATERS, Malcolm 

BA (Hons) (Kent), MA, PhD (Carleton), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel A  

State: TAS 
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WATSON, Jane 

BA (Sterling College), MA 

(Oklahoma), PhD (Kansas State), 

FASSA 

Elected: 2007 Panel D  

State: TAS 

 

WEATHERBURN, Don PSM 

BA (Hons), PhD (Sydney), FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel C  

State: NSW

WEBB, Leslie Roy AO 

BCom (Hons) (Melbourne), PhD 

(London), OMRI, Hon DUniv (QUT), 

Hon DLitt (USQ), Hon DUniv (Griffith), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1986 Panel B  

State: QLD 

 

WEBBER, Michael John 

BA (Cambridge), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1990 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

WEBER, Ronald Arthur Gerard 

BCom Hons (UQ), MBA, PhD 

(Minnesota), CPA, FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel B  

State: QLD 

 

WEBSTER, Elizabeth Margery 

BEc (Hons) (Monash), MEc (Monash), 

PhD (Cambridge), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

WEISS, Linda 

BA (Hons) (Griffith), PhD (LSE), Dip 

in Italian Language (Universita’ per 

Stranieri, Perugia), FASSA 

Elected: 2004 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

WELLER, Patrick Moray AO 

BA, MA (Oxford), PhD (ANU), DLitt 

(Griffith), FASSA 

Elected: 1996 Panel C  

State: QLD 

 

WELLS, Murray Charles AO 

MCom (Canterbury), PhD (Sydney), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1984 Panel B  

State: NSW

WESTBROOK, Reginald Frederick 

MA (Glasgow), DPhil (Sussex), FASSA 

Elected: 2002 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

WESTERN, Mark Chakrit 

BA (Hons), PhD (UQ), FASSA 

Elected: 2011 Panel A  

State: QLD 

 

WHEATCROFT, Stephen G 

BA (Hons) (Keele), PhD 

(Birmingham), FASSA 

Elected: 2005 Panel C  

State: VIC 

 

WHELDALL, Kevin William AM 

BA Hons (Psychology) (Manchester), 

PhD (Birmingham), FASSA 

Elected: 2006 Panel D  

State: NSW 

 

WHITE, Richard Thomas AM 

BSc, BEd (Melbourne), PhD (Monash), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1989 Panel D  

State: VIC 

 

WHITE, Robert Douglas 

BA (Hons) (Queen’s University, 

Ontario), MA (Carlton), LLM 

(Tasmania), PhD (ANU), FASSA  

Elected: 2014 Panel A  

State: TAS 

 

WHITEFORD, Peter 

BA (History) (Hons) (UQ), BLitt 

(Sociology) (ANU), PhD (York), FASSA

Elected: 2018 Panel B  

State: ACT

WHITEHOUSE, Gillian 

BA (Hons), PhD (UQ), FASSA,  

Elected: 2018 Panel C  

State: QLD 

 

WIERZBICKA, Anna 

MA (Warsaw), PhD (Polish Academy 

of Sciences), Habilitation (Polish 

Academy of Sciences), FASSA  

Elected: 1996 Panel A  

State: ACT 

 

WILKINSON, Adrian 

BSc (Econ) LSE, MSc (LSE ), PhD 

(Dunelm), FASSA 

Elected: 2015 Panel A  

State: QLD 
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WILLIAMS, Nancy Margaret 

BA (Stanford), MA, PhD (UC Berkeley), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1997 Panel A  

State: QLD 

 

WILLIAMS, Ross Alan AM 

BCom (Melbourne), MSc (Econ), PhD 

(London), FASSA 

Elected: 1987 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

WILLIAMS, George AO 

BEc, LLB(Hons) (Macquarie), Grad 

Dip in Legal Practice (UTS), LLM 

(UNSW), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 2013 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

WITHERS, Glenn Alexander AO 

BEc (Hons) (Monash), AM, PhD 

(Harvard), FRSN, FASSA  

Elected: 1988 Panel B  

State: ACT

WONG, John Yue-wo 

BA (Hons) (HKU), DPhil (Oxon), 

FASSA, FAHA, FRHistS, FOSA, FRIAP  

Elected: 2001 Panel C  

State: NSW 

 

WOOD, Robert 

BBus (Curtin), PhD (Washington), 

FASSA FSIOP, FIAAP, FANZAM 

Elected: 2006 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

WOODEN, Mark Peter 

BEc (Hons) (Flinders), MSc (Econ) 

(London - LSE), FASSA 

Elected: 2010 Panel B  

State: VIC 

 

WOODLAND, Alan Donald 

BA, PhD (New England), FASSA 

Elected: 1985 Panel B  

State: NSW 

 

WOOLLACOTT, Angela 

BA (ANU), BA (Hons) (Adelaide), MA, 

PhD (History) (University of California 

Santa Barbara), FASSA FRHistS, 

FASSA, FAHA  

Elected: 2006 Panel C  

State: ACT 

 

WRIGHT, Frederick Kenneth 

BMetE, DCom (Melbourne), FCPA, 

FASSA 

Elected: 1977 Panel B (Jubilee 

Fellow) 

State: VIC 

 

WYN, Johanna

BA (Hons) (Victoria University of 

Wellington, NZ), MA (Research) 

(UNE), PhD (Monash), FAcSS, FASSA 

Elected: 2012 Panel A  

State: VIC

XU, Yi-chong 

BA, MA, PhD, FASSA  

Elected: 2018 Panel C  

State: QLD 

 

YATES, Lynette Shirley 

BA (Hons), MA, DipEd (Melbourne), 

MEd (Bristol), PhD (La Trobe), 

Honorary Filosofie Hedersdoktor 

(Umea, Sweden 1999), FASSA 

Elected: 2009 Panel A  

State: VIC 

 

YEATMAN, Anna 

BA (Hons), MA, PhD, FASSA 

Elected: 2001 Panel C  

State: TAS 

 

YOUNG, Christabel Marion 

BSc (Hons) (Adelaide), PhD (ANU), 

FASSA 

Elected: 1994 Panel A  

State: ACT 

 

YOUNG, Michael Willis 

BA (Hons) (London), MA (London), 

MA (Cantab), PhD (ANU), FASSA 

Elected: 1989 Panel A  

State: ACT 

 

YOUNG, Michael Denis 

MAgSc, BEc (Adelaide), FASSA 

Elected: 1998 Panel B  

State: SA 

 

ZUBRICK, Stephen Rade 

PhD, MSc, AM, BSc (summa cum 

laude), FASSA 

Elected: 2017 Panel D  

State: WA
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FELLOWS
PANEL A
 
SOCIOLOGY

AGGLETON, Peter 
BALDRY, Eileen  
BAUM, Fran 
BAXTER, Janeen 
BEILHARZ, Peter 
BITTMAN, Michael 
BLACKMORE, Jill 
BOROWSKI, Allan 
BROOM, Dorothy 
BRYSON, Lois 
CARRINGTON, Kerry 
CASS, Bettina 
CASTLES, Stephen 
CHAN, Janet 
CONNELL, Raewyn 
CRAIG, Lyn 
CUNNEEN, Chris 
DE VAUS, David 
DOWSETT, Gary 
DUNPHY, Dexter 
EDWARDS, Anne 
ELLIOTT, Anthony 
GIBSON, Diane 
GRAYCAR, Adam 
HAINES, Fiona 
HASSAN, Riaz 
HEMELRYK DONALD, Stephanie 
HOLTON, Bob 
HOMEL, Ross 
JONES, Frank 
KENWAY, Jane 
KESSLER, Clive 
KIPPAX, Sue 
LAWRENCE, Geoffrey 
LINGARD, Bob 
LOCKIE, Stewart 
LUPTON, Deborah 
MARCEAU, Jane 
MARGINSON, Simon 
MAZEROLLE, Lorraine 
McCALLUM, John 

McLEOD, Julie 
MILLS, Martin 
NAJMAN, Jake 
PAKULSKI, Jan 
PETERSEN, Alan 
PROBYN, Elspeth 
PUSEY, Michael 
RIZVI, Fazal 
ROACH ANLEU, Sharyn 
ROOM, Robin 
ROWE, David 
SEDDON, Terri 
SHAVER, Sheila 
SMYTH, John 
TURNER, Bryan 
VAN KRIEKEN, Robert 
WAJCMAN, Judy 
WALDBY, Catherine 
WALTER, Maggie 
WATERS, Malcolm 
WESTERN, Mark 
WHITE, Rob 
WYN, Johanna 
YATES, Lyn

 
ANTHROPOLOGY

ALLEN, Michael 
ALTMAN, Jon 
AUSTIN-BROOS, Diane 
BECKETT, Jeremy 
BURBANK, Victoria 
CONNOR, Linda 
COWLISHAW, Gillian 
FOX, James 
JOLLY, Margaret 
KAPFERER, Bruce 
MACINTYRE, Martha 
MANDERSON, Lenore 
MEMMOTT, Paul 
MOSKO, Mark 
PETERSON, Nic 
REID, Janice 
ROBINSON, Kathryn 
SUTTON, Peter 

TAYLOR, Philip 
TONKINSON, Bob 
WILLIAMS, Nancy 
YOUNG, Michael

 
GEOGRAPHY

ANDERSON, Kay 
BAI, Xuemei 
BARNETT, Jon 
BELL, Martin 
BROOKFIELD, Harold 
BROWN, Rebekah 
BURNLEY, Ian 
CINNER, Joshua 
CLARK, Gordon 
CONNELL, John  
DOVERS, Steve 
DOWLING, Robyn 
FINCHER, Ruth 
FORBES, Dean 
FREESTONE, Rob 
GIBSON, Katherine 
GIBSON, Chris 
GLEESON, Brendan 
HANDMER, John 
HEAD, Lesley 
HOLMES, John 
JEFFREY, Craig 
LOGAN, Bill 
McGUIRK, Pauline 
NEWTON, Peter 
POWELL, Joe 
RANDOLPH, Bill 
RIMMER, Peter 
SMITH, Robert 
STIMSON, Bob 
TAYLOR, John 
WALMSLEY, Jim 
WARD, Gerard 
WEBBER, MICHAEL

 



86 Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia

MANAGEMENT

ASHKANASY, Neal 
BAIRD, Marian 
BAMBER, Greg 
CLEGG, Stewart 
COOKE, Fang Lee 
DODGSON, Mark 
GARDNER, Margaret 
GIBSON, Cristina 
GRANT, David 
HARDY, Cynthia 
HÃ¤RTEL, Charmine 
KULIK, Carol 
LANSBURY, Russell 
OSTROFF, Cheri 
PALMER, Ian 
PARKER, Sharon 
PEETZ, David 
QUINLAN, Michael 
WILKINSON, Adrian 
WOOD, Robert

 
LINGUISTICS

BRADLEY, David 
CRAIN, Stephen 
DEMUTH, Katherine 
ENFIELD, Nick 
EVANS, Nick 
MÃ¼HLHÃ¤USLER, Peter 
PAUWELS, Anne 
WIERZBICKA, Anna

 
DEMOGRAPHY

JONES, Gavin 
McDONALD, Peter 
McNICOLL, Geoff 
POLLARD, John 
YOUNG, Christabel

 
 

PANEL B
 
ACCOUNTING

ABERNETHY, Maggie 
BROWN, Philip 
CHENHALL, Rob 
CHUA, Wai Fong 
GRAY, Sid 
GUL, Ferdinand 
IZAN, Izan 
JONES, Stewart 
LILLIS, Anne 
OFFICER, Bob 
SIMNETT, Roger 
SODERSTROM, Naomi 
TAYLOR, Stephen 
TROTMAN, Ken 
WEBER, Ron 
WELLS, Murray 
WRIGHT, Ken

 
ECONOMICS

ADAMS, Philip 
ANDERSON, Jock 
ANDERSON, Kym 
ANDERSON, Heather 
APPS, Patricia 
ASPROMOURGOS, Tony 
ATHUKORALA, Chandra 
BANKS, Gary 
BENNETT, Jeff 
BENSON, John 
BEWLEY, Ron 
BLANDY, Richard 
BLOCH, Harry 
BOOTH, Alison 
BORLAND, Jeffrey 
BOSSAERTS, Peter 
BRENNAN, Geoffrey 
CAMERON, Lisa 
CHAPMAN, Bruce 
CHISHOLM, Anthony 
CLARKE, Philip 
CLEMENTS, Ken 
COBB-CLARK, Deborah 
CORBETT, Jenny 
CORDEN, Max 
DAWKINS, Peter 
DIEWERT, Erwin 
DIXON, Peter 
DOIRON, Denise 
DRYSDALE, Peter 
DUCKETT, Stephen 

EDWARDS, Meredith 
FELS, Allan 
FIEBIG, Denzil 
FINDLAY, Christopher 
FISHER, Brian 
FOSTER, John 
FOX, Kevin 
FREEBAIRN, John 
FRY-MCKIBBIN, RenÃ©e 
GANGADHARAN, Lata 
GANS, Joshua 
GARNAUT, Ross 
GITTINS, Ross 
GOEREE, Jacob 
GRAFTON, Quentin 
GRANT, Simon 
GREGORY, Robert 
GRIFFITHS, Bill 
GRUNDY, Bruce 
HALL, Jane 
HANCOCK, Keith 
HARCOURT, Geoff 
HARDING, Ann 
HARPER, Ian 
HARRIS, Stuart 
HAZARI, Bharat 
HENRY, Ken 
HENSHER, David 
HEWSON, John 
HILL, Hal 
HOLDEN, Richard 
IRONMONGER, Duncan 
ISAAC, Joe 
JONSON, Peter 
KEANE, Michael 
KEATING, Michael 
KING, Max 
KING, John 
KING, Stephen 
KOHN, Robert 
KOMPAS, Tom 
LEIGH, Andrew 
LEWIS, Mervyn 
LLOYD, Peter 
LONGWORTH, John 
LOUVIERE, Jordan 
MADSEN, Jakob 
MASULIS, Ron 
McALEER, Michael 
McDONALD, Ian 
McKIBBIN, Warwick 
McLAREN, Keith 
McLENNAN, Andy 
MENEZES, Flavio 
MENG, Xin 
MILBOURNE, Ross 
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MULVEY, Charles 
NEVILE, John 
NG, Yew-Kwang 
NICHOLAS, Stephen 
NIEUWENHUYSEN, John 
NILAND, John 
PAGAN, Adrian 
PANNELL, David 
PARKINSON, Martin 
PIGGOTT, John 
POCOCK, Barbara 
PODGER, Andrew 
POTTS, Jason 
POWELL, Alan 
QUIGGIN, John 
RAO, Prasada 
RICHARDSON, Sue 
RIMMER, Malcolm 
ROLFE, John 
SAUNDERS, Peter 
SAVAGE, Elizabeth 
SCOTT, Tony 
STANTON, David 
STERN, David 
SWAN, Peter 
THROSBY, David 
TISDELL, Clem 
TOURKY, Rabee 
TURKINGTON, Darrell 
TURNOVSKY, Stephen 
VAHID, Farshid 
VINEY, Rosalie 
WALLACE, Bob 
WARR, Peter 
WEBB, Roy 
WEBSTER, Beth 
WHITEFORD, Peter 
WILLIAMS, Ross 
WITHERS, Glenn 
WOODEN, Mark 
WOODLAND, Alan 
YOUNG, Mike

 
ECONOMIC HISTORY

APPLEYARD, Reg 
HATTON, Tim 
KAUR, Amarjit 
PINCUS, JJ 
SCHEDVIN, Boris 
SHERGOLD, Peter 
SHLOMOWITZ, Ralph 
SINCLAIR, Gus 
VILLE, Simon

 

MARKETING

DANAHER, Peter 
ROBERTS, John 
SOUTAR, Geoff 
SWAIT, Joffre

 
STATISTICS

GAO, Jiti 
MENGERSEN, Kerrie 
TREWIN, Dennis

 
 

PANEL C
 
POLITICAL SCIENCE

AHLUWALIA, Pal 
AITKIN, Don 
ALTMAN, Dennis 
BACCHI, Carol 
BEASLEY, Chris 
BELL, Stephen 
BELLAMY, Alex 
BLEIKER, Roland 
BLEWETT, Neal 
BOTTERILL, Linda 
BRENNAN, Deborah 
BURGMANN, Verity 
CAMILLERI, Joseph 
CAPLING, Ann 
CHAPPELL, Louise 
CONDREN, Conal 
CONSIDINE, Mark 
CROWDER, George 
DAVIS, Glyn 
DOWDING, Keith 
DRYZEK, John 
DUNNE, Tim 
DUTTON, Michael 
ECKERSLEY, Robyn 
GALLIGAN, Brian 
GARRETT, Geoffrey 
GELBER, Kath 
GILL, Graeme 
GOODMAN, David 
GOOT, Murray 
GRATTAN, Michelle 
HADIZ, Vedi 
HEAD, Brian 
HEWISON, Kevin 
HILL, Lisa 
HOCKING, Jenny 
HOLMES, Leslie 
JACKMAN, Simon 
JEFFREY, Robin 
JOHNSON, Carol 
JONES, Barry 
JUPP, James 
KANE, John 
KELLY, Paul 
KITCHING, Gavin 
LANGTON, Marcia 
LAWSON, Stephanie 
MACINTYRE, Andrew 
MADDOX, Graham 
MALEY, William 
MANNE, Robert 
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McALLISTER, Ian 
McEACHERN, Doug 
NAIRN, Tom 
O’FAIRCHEALLAIGH, Ciaran 
PATAPAN, Haig 
RAVENHILL, John 
REUS-SMIT, Chris 
RHODES, Rod 
ROBISON, Richard 
RODAN, Garry 
SAIKAL, Amin 
SAWER, Marian 
STILWELL, Frank 
STONE, Diane  
TRUE, Jacqui 
WALTER, James 
WANNA, John 
WEISS, Linda 
WELLER, Patrick 
WHITEHOUSE, Gillian 
XU, Yi-chong 
YEATMAN, Anna

 
HISTORY

ALDRICH, Robert 
ANDERSON, Warwick 
BEAUMONT, Joan 
BLAINEY, Geoffrey 
BONGIORNO, Frank 
BOSWORTH, Richard 
BROCK, Peggy 
BROWN, Nick 
CARR, Barry 
CURTHOYS, Ann 
DAMOUSI, Joy 
DARIAN-SMITH, Kate 
DAVISON, Graeme 
DAY, David 
DEACON, Desley 
EDWARDS, Louise 
ETHERINGTON, Norman 
FINNANE, Mark 
FRANCES, Rae 
GAMMAGE, Bill 
GARTON, Stephen 
GOODALL, Heather 
GRIMSHAW, Patricia 
HAAKONSSEN, Knud 
HAEBICH, Anna 
HIGMAN, Barry 
HORNER, David 
JALLAND, Pat 
KINGSTON, Beverley 
KIRKBY, Diane 

LAKE, Marilyn 
LOWE, David 
MACINTYRE, Stuart 
MACKIE, Vera 
MACKINNON, Alison 
MACLEOD, Roy 
MAGAREY, Susan 
MALCOLM, Elizabeth 
MARKUS, Andrew 
MAY, Andrew 
MAYNARD, John 
McCALMAN, Iain 
McCALMAN, Janet 
McGRATH, Ann 
McPHEE, Peter 
MILNER, Anthony 
NEUMANN, Klaus 
NOLAN, Melanie 
O’NEILL, Robert 
OPPENHEIMER, Melanie 
PAISLEY, Fiona 
PEEL, Mark 
POYNTER, John 
PREST, Wilfrid 
READ, Peter 
REYNOLDS, Henry 
ROWSE, Tim 
RUBINSTEIN, William 
RUSSELL, Lynette 
SCATES, Bruce 
SMITH, Laurajane 
SPEARRITT, Peter 
STRANGE, Carolyn 
SWAIN, Shurlee 
THOMSON, Alistair 
TWOMEY, Christina 
WALKER, David 
WATERHOUSE, Richard 
WHEATCROFT, Stephen 
WONG, John 
WOOLLACOTT, Angela

 
LAW

ALLARS, Margaret 
BEHRENDT, Larissa 
BLAKENEY, Michael 
BRYCE, Quentin 
BUCKLEY, Ross 
CAMPBELL, Tom 
CANE, Peter 
CHARLESWORTH, Hilary 
DALY, Kathleen 
DAVIES, Margaret 
DAVIS, Megan 

DEANE, William 
DODSON, Michael 
DOUGLAS, Heather 
DRAHOS, Peter 
EVANS, Gareth 
FINN, Paul 
FRECKELTON, Ian 
FREIBERG, Arie 
FRENCH, Robert 
GARDAM, Judith 
GODDEN, Lee 
GOLDSMITH, Andrew 
GOLDSWORTHY, Jeff 
GREIG, Don 
GUNNINGHAM, Neil 
IRVING, Helen 
KIRBY, Michael 
KRYGIER, Martin 
MASON, Anthony 
McADAM, Jane 
McSHERRY, Bernadette 
NAFFINE, Ngaire 
NEAVE, Marcia 
ORFORD, Anne 
PICKERING, Sharon 
RAYFUSE, Rosemary 
RICKETSON, Sam 
RUBENSTEIN, Kim 
SAUNDERS, Cheryl 
STONE, Adrienne 
THORNTON, Margaret 
WALLER, Louis 
WEATHERBURN, Don 
WILLIAMS, George

 
PHILOSOPHY

CHALMERS, David 
COADY, Tony 
CULLITY, Garrett 
DAVIES, Martin 
GATENS, Moira 
GOODIN, Bob 
JACKSON, Frank  
PETTIT, Philip 
REID, Elizabeth 
SINGER, Peter 
TEN, Chin-Liew 
THOMPSON, Janna
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PANEL D
 
PSYCHOLOGY

ALAIS, David 
ANDERSON, Vicki 
ANDREWS, Sally 
ANSTEY, Kaarin 
AUGOUSTINOS, Martha 
BADCOCK, David 
BARNIER, Amanda 
BOAKES, Bob 
BORLAND, Ron 
BRAITHWAITE, Valerie 
BREWER, Neil 
BRYANT, Richard 
BURNHAM, Denis 
BURR, David 
BUTOW, Phyllis 
BYRNE, Don 
CALLAN, Victor 
CASTLES, Anne 
CLARK, Richard 
COLTHEART, Max 
CORNISH, Kim 
CUTLER, Anne 
FEATHER, Norm 
FORGAS, Joseph 
FORSTER, Kenneth 
GALLOIS, Cindy 
GEFFEN, Gina 
GILLAM, Barbara 
GLOW, Peter 
HALFORD, Graeme 
HALL, Wayne 
HASLAM, Nick 
HEATHCOTE, Andrew 
HESKETH, Beryl 
HOGG, Michael Hogg 
HORNSEY, Matthew 
HUDSON, Jennie 
HUMPHREYS, Michael 
INNES, Michael 
IRVINE, Dexter 
JACKSON, Henry 
JETTEN, Jolanda 
KASHIMA, Yoshihisa 
KAVANAGH, David 
KIRSNER, Kim 
LIPP, Ottmar 
LOVIBOND, Peter 
LUSZCZ, Mary 
MACLEOD, Colin 
MACMILLAN, Malcolm 
MANN, Leon 

MATTINGLEY, Jason 
McCONKEY, Kevin 
McDONALD, Skye 
McKENZIE, Beryl 
McKONE, Elinor 
MICHIE, Pat 
NICKELS, Lyndsey 
NOLLER, Pat 
OLEKALNS, Mara 
OVER, Ray 
PACHANA, Nancy 
PARKER, Gordon 
PATTISON, Philippa 
PAXINOS, George 
PETERSON, Candi 
PLATOW, Michael 
PRIOR, Margot 
RAPEE, Ron 
RHODES, Gill 
RICHARDSON, Rick 
ROBINS, Garry 
ROSENTHAL, Doreen 
SANDERS, Matt 
SANDERSON, Penelope 
SCHWARTZ, Steven 
SHARPE, Louise 
SHEEHAN, Peter 
SIDDLE, David 
SLAUGHTER, Virginia 
SMITHSON, Mike 
SPENCE, Sue 
STOUT, Julie 
TAFT, Ron 
TAFT, Marcus 
TEESSON, Maree 
TERRY, Deborah 
TIGGEMANN, Marika 
TRINDER, John 
WADE, Tracey 
WESTBROOK, Fred 
WHELDALL, Kevin 
ZUBRICK, Steve

 
SOCIAL MEDICINE

ANDERSON, Ian 
BLOCH, Sidney 
CHAPMAN, Simon 
CHRISTENSEN, Helen 
DEGENHARDT, Louisa 
FRIEL, Sharon 
HICKIE, Ian 
JORM, Tony 
KAVANAGH, Anne 
MACKINNON, Andrew 

MAHER, Lisa 
MARTIN, Nick 
McGORRY, Patrick 
MITCHELL, Philip 
PIRKIS, Jane 
RAPHAEL, Beverley 
REILLY, Sheena 
SILOVE, Derrick 
STANLEY, Fiona 
WAKEFIELD, Melanie

 
EDUCATION

ANDRICH, David 
BILLETT, Stephen 
CARROLL, Annemaree 
ELKINS, John 
ENGLISH, Lyn 
FENSHAM, Peter 
FRASER, Barry 
FREEBODY, Peter 
GUNSTONE, Richard 
KEEVES, John 
LEDER, Gilah 
LOUGHRAN, John 
MARSH, Herb 
MARTIN, Andrew 
McGAW, Barry 
O’DONOGHUE, Tom 
POOLE, Millicent 
SELLECK, Richard 
SKILBECK, Malcolm 
SWELLER, John 
TYTLER, Russell 
WALLACE, Iain 
WATSON, Jane 
WHITE, Richard



Obituaries
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Obituaries
DR JOHN MARK BEATON (1944-
2018). BA, MA (UCLA), PhD (ANU), FASSA

Dr John Mark Beaton passed away in the early hours 
of 6 November 2018 at his home in Canberra. At the 
time of his death, just 10 days past his 74th birthday, 
John was nearing the end of his 17th year as the 
Executive Director of the Academy of the Social 
Sciences in Australia. 

John led a life and made a contribution that bridged 
hemispheres. He was born in Colorado, and raised 
and educated in California, where he began his 
anthropological research and academic career. 
He also spent many years traversing Australia 
undertaking excavations and field work, holding 
academic posts, surfing, and eventually making his 
home here.

He earned his BA and MA degrees in Anthropology 
from UCLA. His 1973 MA thesis sought to use the 
prey choice model in an analysis of changes in the 
taxonomic composition of coastal California shell 
middens. This research resulted in the finding that 
human predation pressure could have predictable, 
quantitatively structured, archaeologically testable 
effects on resource availability and consumer 
choice. Shortly thereafter, he applied for and was 
awarded a PhD scholarship in Jack Golson’s ANU 
Prehistory department. His 1977 dissertation, 
entitled Dangerous Harvest: Investigations in late 
pre-historic occupation of upland south-east central 
Queensland, documented the Late Holocene role of 
cycads in central Queensland economies and linked 
their exploitation to the development of ceremonial 
practices both there and more broadly across the 

tropical north. 

From 1978-83, he held the position of Research 
Fellow at, what was at the time, the Australian 
Institute of Aboriginal Studies, before returning 
briefly to ANU until 1985. John spent much of the 
late 1980’s and 1990’s as an Anthropology Professor 
at the University of California (Davis) before once 
again returning to Australia in 1997 to Direct the 
University of California Australia Study Centre in 
Melbourne. He was appointed Executive Director of 
the Academy of the Social Sciences in 2001 and held 
this position until his death. He was much loved by 
the staff of the Academy and is greatly missed. John 
was posthumously awarded Honorary Fellowship of 
the Academy in recognition of his contribution to the 
field of Anthropology and considerable impact on 
furthering advocacy for the social sciences in his time 
as Executive Director. 

It is also worth noting that John was a respectable 
cricketer (especially for an American) and played 
various formal roles in the ANU Cricket Club, 
including 16 seasons as Club President, services 
ultimately recognised with the award of a lifetime 
honorary membership. He loved baseball and cricket 
in equal measure, played flamenco guitar, was an 
excellent woodworker, and enjoyed dogs, guns, Irish 
whiskey and good company. He used to watch Cops 
on late-night TV to see if he recognised anyone, and 
would always put nature documentaries on for the 
dogs while he cooked dinner. 

He is survived by his former wives, Esther Beaton 
(nee Horvath) and Susan Beaton (nee Britton), and 
his two children, Laura and Daniel. For those who 
encountered John when speaking of his children, 
he could be nothing by gleeful and proud to tell 
you about them. He would often refer to them as 
his “greatest achievement”, and on this, there was 
never any dispute. In his life John also brought 
countless creatures into his household, the ever-
present hounds but also notably twin yellow-crested 
cockatoos named Sydney and Adelaide (who 
now reside at wildlife park in California) and the 
occasional turtle. In addition to the human members 
of his family, John is survived by three “house-
wolves” – Walter, Rusty, and Odie (the defacto 
Academy mascot). They are being well-cared for in 
his absence.

John had a gift for language, always using exactly 
the right word for his intention, referencing EB 
White and New Yorker cartoons often, and was fond 
of saying “that’s no way to run an airline” or “that 
dog won’t hunt” if something wasn’t up to scratch. 
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He dispensed infinite “benefit of the doubt” and 
encouraged others to extend their abilities and 
confidence. Those who had the pleasure of knowing 
John are the better for it, and in his children and 
those students, researchers, cricketers and staff that 
he mentored - his legacy will be carried on. 

Authored by: Liz West (ASSA Deputy Director) with 
assistance from Laura and Daniel Beaton and reference 

to J. F. O’Connell (2019) John Beaton (1944–2018): an 
archaeological retrospective, Australian Archaeology, 85:1, 

110-113.

PROFESSOR ROSS DAY (1927-2018) 
BSc (Western Australia), PhD (Bristol), DUniv (La 
Trobe), HonDSc (La Trobe), FASSA, FAPsS, FAA

Ross Day was born in the small town of Albany 
(Western Australia) in 1927, and passed away in 
Sale (Victoria) in 2018. He completed his secondary 
education at Albany High School in 1945 and then 
enrolled in a BSc (Hons) at the University of Western 
Australia in 1946. There he was greatly influenced, 
in his second year as an undergraduate, by the 
experimental psychologist Tim Marshall, who was 
working on dark adaptation in vision, and who 
became Ross’s Honours supervisor (this resulted in 
Ross’s lifelong interest in visual perception and visual 
illusions.) Ross graduated with First Class Honours 
(finishing top of his Honours class) in 1949. During 
his third year, he was offered a graduate assistant 
position in psychology, which he held throughout his 
honours year. 

While he was an undergraduate, he met Grecian 
Snook, also an undergraduate there; she was also 
a member of the Australian Women’s Army, which 
paid a stipend of a little over three pounds a week, 
without which she could not have afforded to attend 
university. She became a historian, and also became 
Ross’s wife. After more than sixty years of a close and 
happy marriage, Grecian Day passed away in October 
2017.

After Ross had completed his honours year, he 
wanted to move to the UK, and, with Tim Marshall’s 
assistance, obtained two job offers there, one in 
Manchester and one in Bristol; he chose the latter 
and moved to the University of Bristol, first as an 
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assistant lecturer (1950-51) and then research 
fellow (1951-55). Whilst at the University of Bristol, 
he completed a PhD on visual tracking, funded by 
Britain’s Air Ministry (1952-54). During this period 
in England he married Grecian, and the first of their 
three children was born there.

He returned to Australia as lecturer, then senior 
lecturer, then reader (1955-1964) in the Psychology 
Department at the University of Sydney.
In 1965, Monash University established a new 
Department of Psychology and offered him the 
Foundation Chair in Psychology, which he accepted. 
He held this position until his retirement in 1992 
and, as well as establishing a strong experimental 
psychology department, he served as Associate Dean 
of the Faculty of Science (1981-83). After retirement 
he became adjunct professor in psychology at La 
Trobe University, where he established a lab and 
continued to work on perceptual illusions.

The department he established at Monash was 
Australia’s first department of experimental 
psychology, and many of those who worked there 
at or after its inception have commented on what an 
exciting and intellectually vigorous place it was to 
work – thanks to Ross. This was not only because of 
the intellectual leadership he provided, and his clear 
and incisive lecturing style, but also because of his 
personality – his affability, his infectious enthusiasm, 
his penchant for black humour, and his literary 
interests (Waugh and Wodehouse were particular 
favourites of his). He and Grecian provided frequent 
opportunities for colleagues to wine, dine and 
converse at their house, making life in the Monash 
department socially as well as intellectually highly 
enjoyable.

Ross’s intellectual style can be illustrated by the 
following example. The Falls of Foyers are a waterfall 
on the Rover Foyers, which feeds Loch Ness in 
Scotland. A Mr R. Addams, visiting the falls in 1834, 
noticed that if he looked at the downward-moving 
water of the falls for some time and then switched 
his gaze to the rocky face adjoining the falls, those 
rocks seem to be moving upwards, and published 
an account of his experience in the London and 
Edinburgh Philosophical Magazine and Journal 
of Science. This effect came to be known as the 
movement after-effect, and was much studied by 
Ross. He recounts that one afternoon when he was 
in the lab with his PhD student Ed Strelow observing 
the effect, they wondered what it would look like 
in the dark. They therefore switched the lights off 
so that all that could be seen was a little aperture 
with bars in it moving down. When they stopped 

the motion, they were surprised to find that no 
after-effect was seen. This was at the end of a long 
and tiring day in the lab, so Ross was distrustful 
of the observation. He suggested that they should 
return fresh the next morning (which happened 
to be a Saturday). They confirmed then that the 
movement aftereffect was not observed if there 
was no patterned surround to the moving object, a 
result which disconfirmed what was then a common 
explanation of the effect. He and Strelow published 
this work in Nature in 1971. A few years later, in 1977 
while visiting Nicholas Wade, a former PhD student 
in Dundee, he and Wade went on a celebratory 
expedition to Loch Ness, and a photograph exists of 
Ross standing beside the Falls (holding up a copy of a 
book Visual Perception).

When taking up his post at Monash, Ross had insisted 
that the Psychology Department be located within 
the Faculty of Science rather than, as was standard 
at the time, the Faculty of Arts. This practice was 
subsequently adopted in many other Australian 
universities, to the great benefit of Australian 
experimental psychology, which also benefited 
from his insistence, when he was a member of the 
Australian Research Grants Committee (now the 
Australian Research Council), that psychology be 
treated on a par with other sciences. 

Ross was President of the Australian Psychological 
Society (APS) in 1966-1967, was a member of the APS 
Council for ten years, edited the Australian Journal 
of Psychology for four years, and was made an 
honorary Fellow of the APS in 1992. 

His distinguished contributions to science were 
recognized by his election as Fellow of the Academy 
of the Social Sciences in Australia in 1967 and as 
Fellow of the Australian Academy of Science in 1990 – 
the first psychologist to be elected to that Academy.

Authored by: Emeritus Professor Max Coltheart AM 
FASSA FAA
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PROFESSOR MARDI DUNGEY (1966-
2019) BEc, BEc Hons (UTas), PhD (ANU), FASSA

On January 12, 2019, Professor Mardi Dungey, one of 
Australia’s leading macroeconomists, passed away 
at the age of just 52. Mardi made major contributions 
to society through her research, her supervision of 
students, her mentoring of junior academics, her 
many professional contributions to the economics 
profession and academia more generally. She was 
also a wonderful co-author to 75 people from around 
the world. Mardi was Professor of Economics and 
Finance in the School of Economics and Finance at 
the University of Tasmania; Senior Research Fellow, 
Centre for Financial Analysis & Policy at the Judge 
Business School in the University of Cambridge 
and Adjunct Professor in the Centre for Applied 
Macroeconomic Analysis, Crawford School of Public 
Policy at the Australian National University. 

She held editorial positions with the Journal of 
Financial Stability, Journal of Banking and Finance, 
Multinational Finance Journal, Journal of Applied 
Econometrics and the Journal of Asian Economics. 
In 2013,  Mardi was elected a Fellow of the Academy 
of Social Sciences in Australia in recognition of her 
contributions to academic scholarship in Australia.
Mardi’s academic career began with a Bachelor of 
Economics degree with Honours from the University 
Tasmania in 1989, during which time, she held a 
highly prestigious cadetship at the Reserve Bank 
of Australia. Upon completion, Mardi joined the 
International Department at the Reserve Bank where 
she worked for four and a half years. However, 
research was Mardi’s passion. In 1994 Mardi moved 
to the ANU Research School of Social Sciences to 

undertake a PhD in Economics with ASSA Fellow 
Professor Adrian Pagan. She completed her PhD in 
1998. Her thesis on “International Influences on the 
Australian Economy” was an important contribution 
to empirical research on the Australian economy. A 
paper from her thesis co-authored with Adrian Pagan 
won the award for the best paper published in the 
Economic Record in 2000. This paper continues to 
be highly cited almost 20 years later and serves as 
a benchmark for modelling small open economies 
such as Australia. 

In 1998 Mardi left ANU and accepted a Lecturer 
position at La Trobe University. Her time at La Trobe 
coincided with the aftermath of the Asian Financial 
Crisis. This event sparked her interest in modelling 
financial market crises and contagion and the 
linkages between finance and the macroeconomy. 
She was one of the first researchers to take such 
linkages seriously. Mardi returned to ANU in 2000 
as a Fellow in the Economics Department in the 
Research School of Pacific and Asian Studies 
(RSPAS). Mardi was a dynamo who significantly 
contributed to the RSPAS economics department 
through her supervision of PhD students and 
administrative leadership in all student matters. She 
was a key person at important strategic meetings 
at the University. Mardi had an unusual balance of 
common sense, outstanding academic ability and 
entrepreneurial flair. She was innovative in her role 
as the PhD student coordinator and contributed 
enormously to her colleagues’ research by offering 
generous advice on econometric issues. She was 
instrumental in establishing the Centre for Applied 
Macroeconomic Analysis (CAMA) in 2003 and was the 
inaugural Deputy Director of CAMA. She remained 
active in CAMA as co-Director of the Program in 
Finance and the Macroeconomy until her death. 

In 2005 Professor John Eatwell recruited Mardi to 
Cambridge University after seeing her present her 
work on bond market contagion at a conference run 
by the Bank for International Settlements in Basel. 
She became the Deputy Director of the Cambridge 
Endowment for Research in Finance (CERF).  In 
2008 Mardi returned to Australia as Professor of 
Economics and Finance at the University of Tasmania 
where she built up a powerhouse of upcoming talent 
in the faculty and the student body.  The networks 
Mardi built and her willingness to create public 
goods for all to benefit from is another of Mardi’s key 
contributions. Internationally renowned economists 
who became Mardi’s friends, coauthors and students 
would come to Australia to visit Mardi in Hobart. 
She shared the benefits throughout the Australian 
economics community through their attendance 
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at conferences, workshops and joint visiting 
opportunities.

Mardi was a global researcher. During her career, 
she held visiting positions at the International 
Monetary Fund, University of Cambridge, Princeton 
University, the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta, 
the Asian Development Bank and the Australian 
and New Zealand Treasuries. She was also heavily 
engaged with advising the Australian Treasury on 
econometrics and mentored several generations of 
Treasury officials. She worked on the Treasury’s new 
macroeconomic model (EMMA), which was presented 
at the last workshop that she organised, but that she 
was too ill to attend. 

Mardi always made time to inspire the upcoming 
generations. Under her initiative, Mardi visited 
primary schools in Tasmania to teach children basic 
economics. She would inspire the students by taking 
a huge box of foreign currency to school, to let them 
work out exchange rates. She would run a stock 
market game over several weeks, where the students 
chose and followed companies on the Australian 
Securities Exchange. 

In addition to her intellectual contributions, her 
energy and enthusiasm for knowledge, Mardi 
will best be known as a generous colleague. She 
contributed mightily to improving the opportunities 
for junior academics and countless students, both 
men and women in the economics profession. 
Australia has lost a valuable contributor to 
macroeconomics, policymaking and society. 

Authored by: Professor Renee Fry-McKibbin FASSA and 
Professor Warwick McKibbin FASSA. 

EMERITUS PROFESSOR  
JOHN R V PRESCOTT (1931-2018)
B.Sc., M.A., Dip.Ed. (Durham), Ph.D. (Lon.), M.A. (Melb.), 
FASSA

J.R.V. Prescott, familiarly known as Victor, was born in 
Newcastle-upon-Tyne 1931 and educated in England. 
He completed his first degree, an Honours B.Sc. at 
King’s College, Durham University, in 1952, followed 
by two years’ National Service in the Royal Artillery 
before returning to King’s College (which in 1963 
became the University of Newcastle upon Tyne) to 
complete a Diploma in Education, after which he 
taught at Washington Grammar School in County 
Durham, where he was known to the students as ‘The 
Duke’, after the Duke of Edinburgh. 

In September 1953 he married Dorothy Francis 
Allen, his college sweetheart. In September 1956 
he was appointed as a lecturer in the Department 
of Geography, University of Ibadan, Nigeria, where 
he remained until mid-1961, the year after Nigerian 
independence. Whilst in Nigeria he gained an M.A. 
from Durham and a Ph.D. from the University of 
London. His M.A. thesis was on the boundary of 
Ulster, Northern Ireland, and his doctorate on 
Nigeria’s political boundaries. Most of his African 
papers were produced in the years 1956 to 1961 and 
are either of Nigerian or Zimbabwean (Rhodesian) 
interest. 

In August 1961 the Prescott family migrated to 
Australia where Victor was appointed a lecturer 
in geography at the University of Melbourne. The 
remainder of his academic career was at Melbourne 
where he was awarded a personal chair in geography 
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in 1986. In 1983 he spent a year as academic-in-
residence at the Department of Foreign Affairs in 
Canberra, working for the Foreign Minister, Bill 
Hayden. The work undertaken was an analysis of the 
geographical terms in the United Nations Convention 
on the Law of the Sea. He was also asked by Foreign 
Affairs in June that year to go to the Solomon 
Islands to consult with local leaders about maritime 
boundaries. In 1995, Victor became President of 
the Academic Board and Pro-Vice Chancellor at the 
University of Melbourne, a position which he held 
until his retirement in December 1996, at which 
point he became Professor Emeritus. Victor was 
known for his fairness in supporting students who 
had suffered problems at the departmental level. He 
smoothed many paths through his wise judgement. 
His reserved mien belied his very strong humorous 
leanings and he was a raconteur extraordinaire, with 
a ready store of jokes and limericks appropriate to 
the situation. 

Victor regarded himself as a political geographer, 
the seed being planted early in his years as a student 
at King’s College where he was fortunate enough 
to have Professor John House, later of Oxford 
University, as a lecturer. His early work focussed on 
electoral geography but swiftly changed to boundary 
studies. His first book, The Geography of Frontiers 
and Boundaries, in a series edited by Professor 
Gordon East, appeared in 1965. This title and two 
others were reissued by Routledge in 2016 after a 
lapse of 50 years. 

Two sources of inspiration for him were the creation 
of the International Boundaries Research Unit (IBRU) 
at Durham University in 1989, and meeting Jonathan 
Charney in 1992. Charney successfully persuaded 
the American Society of International Law to fund 
a systematic analysis of international maritime 
boundaries. The death of Charney in 2002, after 
the completion of four volumes, was a blow to all 
contributors but fortunately by this stage the pattern 
of publishing had been well established and the work 
continues. 

Victor considered himself fortunate in his co-authors, 
Clive Schofield and Gillian Triggs, who respectively 
co-authored The Maritime Political Boundaries of 
the World (2006) and International Frontiers and 
Boundaries (2008). He was also fortunate in having 
a cartographer par excellence, Chandra Jayasuriya 
who drew the many maps illustrating these works. 
After his retirement he consulted to foreign 
governments on maritime boundary cases and 
appeared before the International Court of Justice 
and the Supreme Court of the United States. In 

Australia, Victor appeared in cases involving native 
title claims to seas and the seabed in hearings 
before a Land Rights Commissioner in the Northern 
Territory. 

He had excellent relations with the Foreign Offices 
in both Malaysia and Indonesia, giving workshops 
and lectures to their staff. He enjoyed this work 
enormously, encountering several bright and 
enquiring students which gave him great pleasure. 
He also greatly enjoyed his time with the Chinese 
in Tianjin at the Asia-Pacific Development Research 
Centre in 1999. 

Apart from his academic work Victor was a 
psephologist, an analyst of elections, who called 
both national and state elections for the Australian 
Broadcasting Commission (ABC) election television 
coverage from the mid-sixties until the late eighties. 
He started this work using only a slide rule in the 
years before computers became the norm, his 
forecasts being 100% correct. 

His other work for the ABC consisted of writing 
political commentaries, News Commentaries and 
Notes on the News which were broadcast weekly for 
twenty years. Those were the days when the radio 
was listened to more than TV and his distinctive voice 
was recognised in many remote places, including in 
Namibia where a student of his challenged him in an 
off-road eatery. 

Victor is survived by his wife, Dorothy, daughter 
Margaret, and son, Philip. He had 2 grandchildren 
Matthew and Elise, and 4 great grandchildren, Tyson, 
Beau, Maddison and Leni.

Authored by: Mrs Dorothy Prescott. As published in the 
Journal of the Australian and New Zealand Map Society 

Inc. The Globe, Number 85, 2019.
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EMERITUS PROFESSOR  
ERIC RICHARDS (1940-2018)	
BA, PhD (Nottingham), FRHistS, FASSA, FAHA

On 21 September 2018 Emeritus Professor Eric 
Richards, who had been a Professor of History at 
Flinders University from 1975, died suddenly while in 
London, aged 78. This was as sad as it was shocking 
for his family, colleagues and friends. Eric will be 
remembered as one of the great Australian historians 
of the last 50 years and one of the great gentlemen 
of our profession. 
Born into a rural family in North Wales on 3 August 
1940, Eric’s family had experienced the suffering 
of the Great Depression and the Second World 
War, and were forced to leave the land, moving 
first to Wrexham, the largest town in North Wales, 
and finally Shropshire, just over the border in the 
West Midlands of England. After studying his BA 
(1962) and while undertaking his PhD (1967) at the 
University of Nottingham, Eric became a Lecturer in 
Economics at the University of Adelaide from 1964-7 
(having arrived as a ten-pound ‘Pom’ in 1963!), then a 
Lecturer in History (as par of the first intake of staff) 
at the University of Stirling from 1967-71, before 
returning to Adelaide as Lecturer in Economic History 
at Flinders University in 1971. He quickly climbed 
the ranks, going from Lecturer, to Senior Lecturer, to 
Reader, and finally Professor and Chair in History in 
1975. He was for many years the Head of the History 
Department and a prominent member of faculty, 
sitting on all sorts of committees, while he also 
had numerous visiting professorships, at Warwick, 
Glasgow, Florence, Cardiff, Cleveland Ohio, Canberra 
and London (at both Birkbeck and King’s College). His 
reluctant retirement in 2012 meant, as he stated, that 

he was now on ‘permanent sabbatical’ as an Emeritus 
Professor.  

Eric will be specifically remembered for his 
influential works on history of British migration 
and the Highland Clearances. In a career which 
started with his first publication in 19$% and ended 
with his last publication in 2019, Eric published 11 
authored books (12 if we count), %% book chapters, 
%% journal articles in peer reviewed journals. 
These are phenomenal statistics, especially when 
one considers the fact that for most of his career 
there did not exist an internet, a digital camera, or 
a computer! Eric will be especially remembered for 
his ground-breaking, and beautifully written books: 
The Leviathan of Wealth: The Sutherland Fortune 
in the Industrial Revolution (1973); A History of the 
Highland Clearances: Vol. I. Agrarian Transformation 
and the Evictions, 1745-1886 (1982), winner of the 
Scottish Arts Council book award; A History of the 
Highland Clearances: Vol. 2. Emigration, Protest, 
Reasons (1985); (with Monica Clough) Cromartie: 
Highland Life 1650-1914 (1989); Patrick Sellar and the 
Highland Clearances: Eviction, Homicide and the Price 
of Progress (1999), recipient of the Scottish History 
Book of the Year; The Highland Clearances: People, 
Landlords and Rural Turmoil (2000 & numerous 
editions); Britannia’s Children: Emigration from 
England, Scotland, Wales and Ireland since 1600 
(2004); Debating the Highland Clearances (2007); 
Destination Australia: Migration to Australia since 1901 
(2008), winner of the NSW Premier’s Literary Prize; 
and The Highland Clearances (2013). His most recent 
book, The Genesis of International Mass Migration: 
The British Case, 1750-1900, published in July 2018, 
adds to his corpus of highly influential books in 
fields that he was instrumental in making front and 
centre of Australian and British historical scholarship. 
Special mention must also be made of his leadership 
in the publication of the influential six volumes in 
the Visible Immigrants series. He published several 
landmark articles, particularly those in Economic 
History Review (1972, 1973 & 1974), History (1974), 
Past and Present (supplement 6, 1982, 60+ pages), 
Journal of British Studies (1993), Australian Journal 
of Politics and History (1995), (with A. Tindley) 
Agricultural History Review (2012), and most recently 
in History. The Journal of the Historical Association 
(2018). Then there are his numerous book chapters, 
including ones still forthcoming.

There were several important tributes to Eric during 
his life, such as those by Professor John MacKenzie 
Imperial Expectations and Realities: El Dorados, 
Utopias and Dystopias and another by Professor 
Philip Payton in Emigrants and Historians: Essays 
in Honour of Eric Richards. There was a Festschrift 
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and the Eric Richards Symposium in British and 
Australasian History, held first in Adelaide in 2017 and 
next in Armidale, NSW, in 2019. Eric was rightly proud 
of the events honouring him and he was also proud 
of his selection as Carnegie Trust Visiting Professor in 
2014 at Scotland’s newest university, the University 
of the Highlands and Islands. 

Eric was on a typical working holiday when he passed 
away. He had given a keynote at the University of 
Picardie, Jules Verne, at Amiens, at the conference 
‘Colonial and Wartime Migration, 1815-1918’. From 
all reports he was in top form and he was his usual 
engaging self with other delegates. After a short 
holiday in the south of France, he went to London, 
no doubt to visit an archive or two, and later his old 
town of Shropshire.

Eric was a great role model for many. Whenever 
the opportunity arose at a conference or simply 
when introduced to another historian, young or 
old, Eric was the great encourager, the one who 
always showed an interest in your work, and the one 
who would ask that all important question. Eric’s 
contribution to the History discipline was rewarded 
with numerous awards, including the Australian 
Centenary Medal for services to the Arts and to 
Australian society in 2003, as well as numerous ARC 
grants, including the last one in 2017. 

Eric was a towering figure in the history of migration 
and diaspora histories and the history of the 
Highland Clearances over the last 50 years. He will 
be remembered as a prolific researcher, an inspiring 
mentor and role model, an eloquent speaker, 
and as a genuinely sincere, sensitive and humble 
human being, with a passion for playing tennis, 
only matched by his love for his discipline and its 
progress. Although his dance on earth has come to 
an end, he lives on through his work and the biennial 
Eric Richards Symposium in British and Australasian 
History, which will be next hosted by the University 
of Canterbury, Christchurch. Eric is survived by his 
wife Ngaire Naffine, Professor of Law, University of 
Adelaide, daughters Lou and Sally and grandchildren 
Stephanie and Bodie. Rest in peace Eric, you shall be 
missed and remembered fondly. 

Authored by: Associate Professor Andrekos Varnava, 
FRHistS, Flinders University.

EMERITUS PROFESSOR  
PATRICK TROY AC (1936-2018)	
BE (UWA), DipTP (London), MEngSci (UNSW), D 
Arch(honoris causa) (Melbourne), D Univ (Griffith), 
FASSA, MICE, FRAPI

Patrick Troy was a passionate advocate for better 
Australian cities. This was the continuous thread 
through his activities as an engineer, town planner, 
urban studies academic, senior federal public 
servant, author and activist.

The pinnacle of his influence was during the Whitlam 
government period in the 1970s. Pat left his job at 
the Australian National University to become deputy 
secretary of the newly established Department of 
Urban and Regional Development, with Tom Uren 
as its minister. Pat recruited and led the team that 
created policies for urban improvement and more 
balanced regional development. The intention was 
to make the cities more efficient, equitable and 
sustainable.

Emphasis was put on developing new growth 
centres, including Bathurst-Orange and Albury-
Wodonga. Land commissions were established, 
mandated to release more public land to make 
housing more affordable. Big parts of Glebe and 
Woolloomooloo were bought for upgraded public 
housing so that working class people could still 
live in the inner city. The western suburbs were 
connected to the main sewer system, becoming fully 
flushed for the first time.

There was much more in the pipeline, too. The flurry 
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of activity brought the federal government into urban 
policy areas previously neglected by the states. 
Nothing quite like it has been seen since. Pat Troy’s 
guiding hand was on all of it.

Not all the plans came to fruition. Cities and regions 
aren’t easily transformed. It takes 20 years or 
more, and requires cross-party collaboration that 
is rarely seen in Australian politics. When Malcolm 
Fraser’s Coalition government replaced Whitlam’s 
government in 1975, DURD was abolished and 
business as usual resumed.

Although deeply disappointed, Pat didn’t give up 
after DURD’s demise. He put his energies into making 
the ANU’s Urban Research Unit into the premier 
place for urban policy studies in Australia. He wrote 
and edited numerous books and reports, organised 
research projects and conferences, was active in the 
media and advised governments and whoever would 
listen.

Pat Troy was born in Geraldton, WA and then grew 
up in Fremantle. His dad Paddy was a waterside 
worker and the best-known Communist unionist in 
Western Australia. Paddy spent three months in jail 
for a minor political infringement. The Fremantle 
house where the family lived was a meeting place for 
activists and refuge for people needing help. To hear 
Pat talk about it, there was seldom a dull moment.
After qualifying as an engineer, Pat was sponsored 
by the Federation of British Industry to undertake 
further study and work in the UK. On arrival in 
London, his sponsors interrogated him closely 
because Australian security authorities had told 
them that he was a potential trouble-maker. True to 
form, ASIO had made a simple error, confusing Pat 
with his dad.

After returning Down Under, Pat worked for the 
NSW State Planning Authority and studied highway 
engineering at the University of NSW. He moved to 
Canberra to join the Urban Studies Unit at the ANU 
in 1966 and was already well-established there, 
with strong personal Labor Party links, when the 
opportunity to work with the Whitlam government 
arose.

Both before and after his stint with Whitlam and 
Uren, he and his colleagues made the urban research 
program at the ANU a seedbed for talent. Many of its 
young researchers later became senior professionals 
and professors in their chosen fields. Pat also 
mentored PhD students from all around Australia 
who attended his residential workshops. He initiated 
a series of annual conferences on Australian cities for 

urban researchers and practitioners.

Pat’s contributions were officially recognised by 
his election to the Academy of Social Sciences in 
Australia and his being  made an officer in the Order 
of Australia.

However, the fad for managerial restructuring started 
to infect universities in the1980s and put his Urban 
Research Program under threat. The academic 
bureaucrats, in their ‘‘wisdom’’, eventually closed 
it in the 1990s. Pat never forgave them for what he 
considered to be an act of sheer bastardry.

Still, he maintained his academic connection with 
the ANU, becoming an emeritus fellow in the Centre 
for Resource and Environmental Studies. He also had 
honorary positions at Western Sydney University 
and the University of NSW where he continued to 
foster excellence in research. His life was that of a 
prominent public intellectual. Together with Hugh 
Stretton, author of Ideas for Australian Cities, he 
was Australia’s greatest champion for seeking social 
justice through planning for better cities.

It was not all hard work. His home in Canberra with 
Sandy was a place of renowned hospitality, with fine 
food and plentiful good wines to be shared. Pat was a 
renowned raconteur. Some thought him increasingly 
grumpy in his later years but then there was a lot to 
be grumpy about.

What had happened to cities since the DURD era 
was a source of much chagrin. He thought that the 
fashion for urban consolidation was creating cites 
that are too dense, inequitable and unsustainable. 
The scourge of ‘‘economic rationalism’’ in public 
policy and its over-reliance on markets to ‘‘solve’’ 
social problems was a yet more general source of 
dismay.

But Pat never gave up hope of making a difference, 
even after his diagnosis with cancer more than a 
decade ago. Until his quite sudden end, he was 
actively researching, writing and lobbying. He 
maintained his strong physical presence.

Pat leaves his partner Sandy, brothers and sisters, 
many children and grandchildren.

All who care about the quality of urban life have 
much to thank him for.

Authored by: Professor Frank Stilwell FASSA
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ABN 59 957 839 703

FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 
30 JUNE 2019

COMMITTEE’S REPORT

Your committee members submit the audited financial statements of the Academy of the Social Sciences in 
Australia Inc for the financial years ended 30 June 2019.

Committee Members

The names of the committee members throughout the year and as at the date of this report are:

Professor Jane Hall			   Professor Sharyn Roach Anleu
Professor Wai-Fong Chua		  Professor Harry Bloch (to Dec 2018)
Professor Richard Holden 		  Professor Kevin Fox (from Jan 2019)
Dr John Beaton (to Nov 2018)		  Professor James Walter (to Dec 2018)
Ms Liz West (from Nov 2018)		  Professor Kate Darian-Smith (from Jan 2019)
Professor Kevin McConkey	

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Association during the financial year ended 30 June 2019 was the advancement of 
knowledge and research in the various social sciences.

Significant Changes

No significant changes in the nature of the principal activities occurred during the financial year ended 
30 June 2019.

Operating Result

The surplus of the Association for the financial year ended 30 June 2019 was $85,928 (2018: $98,636 surplus).

Signed in accordance with the resolution of the Members of the Committee.

Chris Hatherley					    Wai-Fong Chua
Executive Director				    Treasurer
Dated this 27th day of August 2019		  Dated this 27th day of August 2019

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FORM PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 
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AccountAbility (ACT) Pty Ltd  
ACN: 088 095 354 
 

PO Box 776, Mitchell  ACT  2911 
 

Telephone: 02 6170 6870 
Facsimile:  02 6260 7499 
Email:  admin@accountabilitywft.com.au 
www.accountabilitywft.com.au 
 
Liability limited by a scheme approved under 
Professional Standards Legislation 
 

 
 
 
AUDITORS’  INDEPENDENCE  DECLARATION  UNDER  SECTION  60.40  OF  THE 
AUSTRALIAN  CHARITIES  AND  NOT‐FOR‐PROFITS  COMMISSION  ACT  2012  TO  THE 
COMMITTEE  OF  THE  ACADEMY  OF  THE  SOCIAL  SCIENCES  IN  AUSTRALIA 
INCORPORATED 
 
I  declare  that,  to  the  best  of  my  knowledge  and  belief,  during  the  year  ended 
30 June 2019 there have been: 
 
(a)  no contraventions of the auditors’ independence requirements as set out in 

the Australian Charities and Not‐for‐profits Commission Act 2012 in relation 
to the audit, and 

(b)  no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation 
to the audit. 

 
AccountAbility 
 

 
 
Anthony Wilson 
Registered Company Auditor 
Canberra, ACT  
27 August 2019 
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Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia Inc
Statement of Profit & Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2019

NOTES Budget Full Year Full Year
$ $ $

Revenue
Member Subscriptions 3  205,650  188,399  185,764
Symposium & Annual Dinner 4  24,000  30,004  16,464
Grants & Commissions 5  872,801  1,008,593  856,694
Donations 6  2,000  3,550  3,777
Profit on Sale of Assets 7  -  416  -
Other Revenue 8  31,099  24,427  32,623

Total Revenue:  1,135,550  1,255,389  1,095,322

Expense
Staff Related Expenses 9  645,178  558,017  650,809
Office Expenses 10  100,200  163,908  93,051
Member Related Expenses 11  12,673  7,280  8,900
Program Activities 12  187,380  236,985  140,230
AGM & Symposium 13  86,039  90,621  59,810
Depreciation & Amortisation 14  4,000  6,048  2,614
Net Write Off of Assets 15  -  360  -
Committee & Program Expenses 16  77,000  87,931  25,729
Other Expenses 17  14,300  18,311  15,543

Total Expense:  1,126,770  1,169,461  996,686

Net Profit/(Loss):  8,780  85,928  98,636

Other Comprehensive Income  -  -  -

Total Comprehensive Income  8,780  85,928  98,636

2018-19 2017-18

Page 1 of 23

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FORM PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 
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Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia Inc
Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2019

NOTES Budget Full Year Full Year
$ $ $

Assets
Current Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents 18  -  1,411,591  1,562,366
Receivables 19  -  23,079  31,596
Prepayments 20  -  24,777  29,502
Other Assets 21  -  2,210  15,725

Total Current Assets:  -  1,461,657  1,639,189

Non Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 22  -  20,814  6,959

Total Non Current Assets:  -  20,814  6,959

Total Assets:  -  1,482,472  1,646,148

Liabilities
Trade & Other Payables 23  -  5,456  6,407
Employee Related Liabilities 24  -  31,275  175,339
Unearned Income 25  -  466,916  688,319
Tax Related Liabilities 26  -  4,369  2,842

Total Liabilities:  -  508,017  872,908

Net Assets:  -  974,454  773,240

Equity
Retained Earnings  -  773,240  674,604
Strategic Initiatives Reserve  -  115,286  115,286
Current Year Surplus/Deficit  -  85,928  98,636
Contributed Equity  -  -

Total Equity:  -  974,454  888,526

2018-19 2017-18

Page 2 of 23
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105Annual Report 2018-19

Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia Inc
ABN 59 957 839 703

FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 30 JUNE 2019

FI
N

AN
CI

AL
S

Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia Inc
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2019

NOTES Budget Full Year Full Year
$ $ $

Operating Activities
Cash Received
Member subscriptions  -  195,912  -
Symposium & Annual Dinner  -  30,004  -
Grants  -  961,359  -
Donations  -  3,550  -
Net GST Received from ATO  -  -  -
Other cash received  -  40,152  -

Total Cash Received  -  1,230,978  1,319,255

Cash Used
Staff Related  -  (694,726)  -
Office  -  (160,133)  -
Member Related  -  (9,490)  -
Programs  -  (236,985)  -
Symposium & Annual Dinner  -  (90,621)  -
Committee Related  -  (87,931)  -
Net GST Paid to ATO  -  (5,828)  -
Other Cash used  -  (76,191)  -

Total Cash Used  -  (1,361,905)  (1,184,159)

27  -  (130,927)  135,096

Investing Activities
Cash Received
Sale of Furniture  -  91  -
Sale of IT Assets  -  325  -

Total Cash Received  -  416  -

Cash Used
Purchase of Furniture  -  (2,362)  -5,619
Purchase of IT Assets  -  (17,902)  -

Total Cash Used  -  (20,264)  (5,619)

Net Cash Movement - Investing Activities  -  (19,848)  (5,619)

Nil financing activities  -  -  -

Net cash movement  -  (150,775)  129,477
Prior year closing balance  -  1,562,366  1,432,889
Closing cash balance  -  1,411,591  1,562,366

Net Cash Movement - Operating 
Activities

2018-19 2017-18

Page 3 of 23
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Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia Inc
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
as at 30 June 2019

 

Notes

2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18
$ $ $ $

Opening balance as at 1 July 2018

Balance c/f from previous period 2n. & 35  115,286  115,286  773,240  674,604  888,526  789,890

Net Profit/(Loss)  -  -  85,928  98,636  85,928  98,636

Other comprehensive income  -  -  -  -  -  -

Transfers To/(From) Reserves  -  -  -  -  -

Closing balance as at 30 June 2019  115,286  115,286  859,168  773,240  974,454  888,526

Strategic Initiatives Reserve

Retained earnings Total equityStrategic Initiatives 
Reserve

In reviewing the accounting treatment of the Stategic Initiative Fund, previously held as an Unearned Income liability, it was 
determined that this fund was not a liability.  The correct accounting treatment was determined to be that it should form part of Equity 
and be available for use as and when the Academy, through the Executive Committee, determines. 

Page 4 of 23
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Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

Note 2 Basis of Preparation

a. Income Tax

b. Property, Plant and Equipment

Capitalisation Threshold

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared 
in accordance with the reuirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits 
Commission Act 2012 ,  Australian Accounting Standards Reduced Disclosure Requirements, 
Australian Accounting Interpretations and the Act.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded 
would result in a financial report containing relevant and reliable informtion about the 
transactions, events and conditions to which they apply.  Compliance with Australian 
Accounting Standards ensures that the financial statements and notes also comply with the 
International Financial Reporting Standards.  Material accounting policies adopted in the 
preparation of these financial statements are preseneted below and have been consistently 
applied unless otherwise stated.

These financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on 
historical costs modified, where applicable, by the measurement at Fair Value of selected non 
current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities.

These financial statements covers the Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia Inc ('the 
Academy') as an individual entity.  The Academy is an association incoporated in the 
Australian Captial Territory under the Associations Incorporation Act (ACT) 1991 ('the Act') .

No provision for Income Tax has been raised as the Academy is exempt from tax under 
Subdivision 50-B of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 .

Property, plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis less depreciation and 
impairment losses.
The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by directors to ensure that it 
is not in excess of the recoverable amount from these assets.  The recoverable amount is 
assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows that will be received from the assets' 
employment and subsequent disposal.  The expected net cash flows have been discounted to 
their present day values in determining the recoverable amounts.

The cost of fixed assets constructed within the association includes the cost of materials, 
direct labour, borrowing costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the association and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All 
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial 
period in which they are incurred.

The Capitalisation Threshold for all assets is $250.00 per unit.  In addition, the asset is 
expected to have a useful life of at least 12 months.  Assets with a unit acquisition value of 
less than the Capitalisation Threshold will be expensed at the time of acquisition.

Page 5 of 23
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Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Depreciation

Class of Fixed Asset Rate
Furniture 16.66%
IT Assets 33.33%

c. Leases

d. Financial Instruments
Initial recognition and measurement

Gains or losses on disposal of an assets are determined by comparing the proceeds from 
sale with the carrying amount.  The gain/loss is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss 
and Other Comprehensive Income. 

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, including buildings and capitalised lease assets, 
is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset’s useful life commencing from the time 
the asset is held ready for use.  Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of 
either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.  

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

The residual value and useful life of all assets is reviewed annually and, if appropriate, 
adjusted accordingly.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to it's recoverable amount if the 
asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Leases of assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the 
asset, but not the legal ownership, are transferred to the Academy are classified as Finance 
Leases.

Finance Leases are capitalised by recording the asset and a liability at the ower of the amount 
equal to the fair value of the leased assets or the present value of the sum of the minimum 
lease payments and taking into account any guaranteed residual values.  Lease payments 
are allocated between the reduction in the residual lease liability and the interest expense for 
the period. 

Any assets held under a finance lease are depreciated on a straight line basis over the 
estimated useful life of each assets.

Leases of assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the 
asset remain with the lessor are classified as Operating Leases.  In this case, the lease 
payments are charged as an expense at the time the lease payments are made.

Lease incentives arising through an operating lease are recognised as a liability and are 
amortised on a straight line basis over the life of the lease.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Academy becomes a party 
to a contractual provision in regard to the instrument.  For financial assets, this is equivalent 
to the date that the Academy commits itself to either purchase or sell the asset (ie trade date 
accounting is adopted).

Page 6 of 23
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Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Classification and subsequent measurment

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(i)

(ii)

less principal repayments; 

Financial instruments are initially measured at Fair Value plus any related transaction costs 
except where the instrument is classified 'at fair value through profit or loss' in which case, 
transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss immediately.

Financial instruments are subsequently measured at either Fair Value, Amortised Cost using 
the effective interest rate method or At Cost.  Fair Value represents the amount for which an 
asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties.  
Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine Fair Value.  In 
other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted.

Amortised Cost  is calculated as:
the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial 
recognition;

plus or minus the cummulative amortisation of the difference, if any, between the 
amount initially recognised and the maturity amount calculated using the effective 
interest rate method; and
less any reduction in value due to assessed impairment

The Effective Interest Method  is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the 
relevant period and is equivalent to the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash 
payments or receipts (including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) 
throught the expected life or, when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term, of 
the the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial 
liability.  Revisions to the expected future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the 
carrying value with consequential recognition of a revenue or expense.

The Academy does not designate any interest in subsidiaries, associates or joint venture 
entities as being subject to the requirements of accounting standards specifically applicable to 
financial instruments.

Financial assets at Fair Value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified at 'Fair Value through profit or loss' when they are held 
for trading for the purpose of short-term profit taking, where they are Derivatives not 
held for hedging purposes, or when they are designated as such to avoid an 
accounting mis-match or to enable performance evaluation where an association of 
financial assets is managed by key management personnel on a Fair Value basis in 
accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy.  Such assets 
are subsequently measured at Fair Value with changes in the carrying value being a 
revenue or an expense.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market and are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

Page 7 of 23
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Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi) Fair value

(vii) Impairment

(viii) Derecognition

Held-to-maturity investments are classified as non-current assets except for those 
which are expected to mature within 12 months after the end of the reporting period 
and which are classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables are included in current assets, except for those which are not 
expected to mature withing 12 months after the end of the reporting period and which 
are classified as non-current assets.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets that have fixed 
maturities and fixed or determinable payments and it is the Academy's intention to 
hold these investments to maturity.  They are subsequently measured at Amortised 
Cost using the effective interest rate method.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non derivative financial assets that are either not 
capable of being classified into othe categories of financial assets due to their nature 
or they are designated as such by management.  They comprise investments in the 
equity of other entities where there is neither a fixed maturity nor fixed nor 
determinable payments. 

Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets except for those 
which are expected to be disposed of within 12 months after the end of the reporting 
period and which are classified as current assets.

Financial liabilities

Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Fair Value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments.  
Valuation techniques are applied to determine the Fair Value for all unlisted securities, 
including any recent "arms length" transactions, reference to similar instruments and 
option pricing models.

At the end of each reporting period, the Academy assesses whether there is objective 
eveidence that a financial instrument has been impaired.  In the case of available-for-
sale financial instruments, a prolonged decline in the value of the instrument is 
considered to determine whether impairment has arisen.  Impairment losses are 
recognised as an expense.

Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual right to the receipt of cash 
flows expires or the asset is transferred to another party whereby the Academy no 
longer has any significant continuing involvement in the risks and benefits associated 
with the asset.

Page 8 of 23
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Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

e. Impairment of Assets

f. Employee Benefits

g. Cash and Cash Equivalents

h. Accounts Receivable and Other Debtors

In determining the liability, consideration is given to known employee wage increases and the 
probability that the employee may not satisfy the vesting requirements.  Those cash outflows 
are discounted using market yields on national government bonds with terms to maturity that 
match the expected timing of the cash outflow.

Annual Leave liabilities are treated as current in line with the Academy's leave policies that 
expect employees to take their annual leave within 12 months of accruing the leave 
entitlement.

Where the value of the Employee Entitlement cannot be reliably be determined, no 
recognition of the entitlement will be made.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at-call, other short term 
highly liquid investments with maturity within 12 months of the end of the reporting period, 
including Term Deposits with a fixed maturity date within 12 months of the end of the 
reporting period, and any bank overdrafts.  Bank overdrafts, where they exist, are shown 
within borrowings under the current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

Accounts receivable and other debtors include annual membership fees receivable from 
members as well as amounts receivable from customers of the Academy for goods and/or 
services provided in the ordinary course of business.  Receivables expected to be received 
within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets.  All other 
receivables are classified as non current assets.

Provision is made for the Academy's liability for employee benefits arising from services 
rendered by employees to the end of the reporting period.  Employee benefits that are 
expected to be paid within 12 months from the end of the reporting period have been 
measured at the amounts that are expected to be paid when the liability is settled.  Employee 
benefits that are expected to be paid more than 12 months from the end of the reporting 
period have been mesured at the present value of the the estimated future cash outflows to 
be made for those benefits.

Financial liabilities are derecognised where the related obligations are either 
discharged, cancelled or expire.  The difference between the carrying valuse of the the 
financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the Fair Value 
consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities assumed, is 
recognised as an expense.

At the end of each reporting period, the Academy reviews the carrying value of its tangible 
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have 
been impaired.  If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the 
higher of the asset's Fair Value less costs to sell and the Value-in-Use, is compared to the 
asset's carrying value.  Any excess of the asset's carrying value over it's recoverable amount 
treated as an expense.
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Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

i. Revenue and Other Income

j. Goods and Services Tax (GST)

k. Comparative Figures

l. Trade and Other Payables

Cash flows are presented in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis except for the 
GST components relating to Inesthing and Financing activities.  In this case, the GST 
components are disclosed under the Operating cash flows.

Accounts receivable are initially recognised at Fair Value less any provision for impairment.  
Refer to Note 1 e. further details on the determination of impairment loss.

Revenue is measured at Fair Value of the consideration received or receivable after taking 
into account any discounts and volume rebates applicable.  Any consideration deferred is 
treated as the provision of finance and is discounted at a rate of interest that is generally 
accepted in the market for similar arrangements.  The difference between the amount initially 
recognised and the amount ultimately received is treated as interest revenue.

Revenue from the sale of goods and/or provision of services is recognised at the point of 
delivery as this corresponds to the transfer of the significant risks and rewards of ownership 
of the goods and/or services to the customer and the cessation of all involvement with those 
goods and/or services by the Academy.

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method which, for floating rate 
financial assets, is the rate inherent in the instrument.  Dividend revenue is recognised when 
the right to receive the dividend has been established.

Government grant income is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the activity 
related to the grant as at the end of the reporting period.  The residual portion of the grant is 
recognised as Unearned Income. 

Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognised net of the applicable amount of 
GST except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian 
Taxation Office.  In thiese circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of 
acquisition of the asset or as part of the item of expense.  Receivables and payables in the 
Statement of Financial Position are inclusive of GST.

When required by the Australian Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been 
adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year.

Trade and other payables represent an outstanding liability at the end of the reporting period 
for goods and/or services received by the Academy during the reporting period and which 
remain unpaid.  The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally 
being paid within 30 days of the recognition of the liability.
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m. Provisions

n. Strategic Initiatives Reserve

o. Key Estimates and Judgements

p. New Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods

AASB 15 requires that revenue only be recognised when there is a clear and unrevocable 
right to retain the funds.  Where funds are received that are tied to a future delivery of service 
and/or goods, the revenue is not to be recognised until those services and/or goods are 
delivered.  As this is the model under which the Academy has operated for some time, the 
change to AASB 15 is unlikely to have effect.

AASB 16 does provide relief for Not-For-Profit entities such that the lease payments for the 
national office at 26 Balmain Crescent, Acton, ACT can be treated as a lease expense (the 
Academy is not required to treat the lease as a Finance Lease).

AASB 16 also allows a Not-For-Profit entity to set a theshhold value for equipment under 
lease, such as an office Multi Function Device.  Assets under lease and below this threshold 
do not have to be treated as a Finance Lease.  In this regard, the Academy will be applying a 
$10,000 threshold for leased equipment. 

Provisions are recognised when the Academy has a legal or constructive obligation, as the 
result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of econoimic benefits, normally 
cash, will results and that outflow can be reliably measured.  Provisions so recognised 
represent the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation as at the end of 
the reporting period.

The Academy holds a Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts.  This is calculated using 
historical debt write-offs.  The Write Off of debts has only been in regard to Fellows being 
suspended for unpaid memberships fees and, based on this historical data, the provision has 
been determined to be 5% of the outstanding balance of membership fees as at 30 June 
each year.

The Academy assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by the evaluation of 
conditions and events specific to the group that may be indicative of imapirment triggers.  
Recoverable amounts for the releavnt assets are reassessed using value-in-use calculations 
which incorporate various key assumptions.

Two new Accounting Standards, or changes to existing Accounting Standards, come into 
effect as at 1 July 2019.  These standards are AASB 16 - Leases  and AASB 15 - Revenue .

The Strategic Initiatives Reserve (previously Strategic Initiatives Fund held as an Unearned 
Income Liability) identifies funds set aside from Retained Earnings by the Excutive 
Committee.  The Executive Committee may commit some or all of the Reserve to fund 
specific projects and activities that are outside the on-going activities of the Academy.
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Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

2017-18

Budget  Full Year  Full Year 
$ $ $

Note 3 Subscriptions
Member Subscriptions  205,650  188,399  185,764

Total Subscriptions:  205,650  188,399  185,764

Note 4 Symposium & Annual Dinner
Symposium  18,000  22,004  11,555
Annual Dinner  6,000  8,000  4,909

Total Symposium & Annual Dinner:  24,000  30,004  16,464

Note 5 Grants & Commissions
Dept. Education HERP Grant  862,601  871,271  856,694
Commissioned Services  -  38,471  -
Other Grant Payments  10,200  98,852  -

Total Grants & Commissions:  872,801  1,008,593  856,694

Note 6 Donations
Donations  2,000  3,550  3,777

Total Donations:  2,000  3,550  3,777

Note 7 Net Profit on Sale of Assets
Sale of Furniture  -  91  -

GV - Furniture Sold  -  (1,032)  -
AD - Furniture Sold  -  1,032  -

Net profit on sale of furniture:  -  91  -

Sale of IT Assets  -  325  -
GV - IT Asset Sales  -  11,901  -
AD - IT Asset Sales  -  (11,901)  -

Net profit on sale of IT assets:  -  325  -

Total Net Profit on Sale of Assets:  -  416  -

Note 8 Other Revenue
Interest  30,599  10,291  27,763
General Support & Services  -  -  -
Royalties & Copyrights  500  13,841  1,060
Administrative Fees  -  -  3,800
Other Miscellaneous Revenue  -  295  -

Total Other Revenue:  31,099  24,427  32,623

2018-19
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2017-18

Budget  Full Year  Full Year 
$ $ $

2018-19

Note 9 Staff Related Expenses
Staff Remuneration

Salaries &  Wages  572,678  475,982  541,310
Leave Liability Accruals  -  (10,732)  -
Long Service Leave  -  -  9,485
Other Salaries & Allowances  -  -  -

Total Staff Remuneration:  572,678  465,249  550,796

Other Staff Expenses
Superannuation  69,000  64,588  96,758
Workers Compensation  -  2,802  -

Total Other Staff Expenses:  69,000  67,391  96,758

Staff Travel & Recruitment
Travel & Accommodation  1,000  916  -
Staff Training & Recruitment  2,500  24,422  3,255
Miscellaneous Staff Travel  -  39  -

Total Staff Travel & Recruitment:  3,500  25,377  3,255

Total Staff Related Expenses:  645,178  558,017  650,809

Note 10 Office Expenses
Communication & IT

Fax/Telephone  4,200  2,064  3,903
Postage  600  (76)  2,227
Printing & Stationery  4,000  3,109  3,486
Computer expenses  14,000  20,498  13,132
Website Expenses  1,000  1,075  708
Subscriptions & Newspapers  2,000  2,866  2,224
Software Purchase & Licenses  -  2,805  -

Total Communication & IT:  25,800  32,341  25,679

Leasing and Facilities
Rent  58,000  48,063  55,392
IT Lease Charges  -  2,015  -
Cleaning  2,000  4,458  -
Electricity & Gas  4,000  4,652  4,850
Maintenance/Repairs of Office  6,000  2,305  -
Maintenance Office Equipment  1,000  71  6,625
Other Office Costs  1,800  2,578  -

Total Leasing and Facilities:  72,800  64,142  66,867
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Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

2017-18

Budget  Full Year  Full Year 
$ $ $

2018-19

Other Office Expenses
Office Expenses - Kitchen  600  1,536  505
Accounting & Finance Support  -  65,051  -
Miscellaneous Office Expenses  1,000  838  -

 1,600  67,425  505

Total Office Expenses:  100,200  163,908  93,051

Note 11 Member Related Expenses
Membership - Lapel Pins/Medals  2,500  2,114  3,600
Members Subscription Bad Debts  10,173  2,608  5,300
State Functions  -  2,275  -
Other Member Related Expense  -  283  -

Total Membership - Lapel Pins/Medals:  12,673  7,280  8,900

Note 12 Program Activities
Workshops  60,000  77,282  36,000
LASP Activity  66,380  98,852  -
Roundtables  10,000  11,580  -
Lectures/Forums  23,000  19,272  -
International/Joint Action etc  28,000  28,000  24,207
Commissioned Articles  -  2,000  -
Miscellaneous Program Expenses  -  -  80,023

Total Program Activities:  187,380  236,985  140,230

Note 13 AGM & Symposium
Annual Report

Publication Annual Report  1,000  670  2,395
Audit Fee  8,600  8,610  8,600
Filing Fees - Annual Return  -  -

Total Annual Report:  9,600  9,280  10,995

Annual General Meeting
Annual General Meeting  1,000  691  48,815
AGM Catering  5,000  6,574  -
AGM Reimbursable Travel  34,000  33,557  -

Total Annual General Meeting:  40,000  40,822  48,815
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2017-18

Budget  Full Year  Full Year 
$ $ $

2018-19

Symposium
Facilities Hire/Catering  16,000  16,972  -
Equipment Hire  100  45  -
Annual Dinner  15,000  15,764  -
Speakers Costs  3,000  3,350  -
Other Symposium Costs  2,339  4,388  -

Total Symposium:  36,439  40,519  -

Total AGM & Symposium:  86,039  90,621  59,810

Note 14 Depreciation & Amortisation
Depreciation

Depn - Furniture & Fittings  2,500  772  2,614
Depn - Computers & IT  -  5,276  -

Total Depreciation:  2,500  6,048  2,614

Amortisation
Amortisation - Leased Assets  1,500  -  -

Total Amortisation:  1,500  -  -

Total Depreciation & Amortisation:  4,000  6,048  2,614

Note 15 Write Off of Assets
Write Off - Furniture  -  360  -
Write Off - IT Assets  -  -  -

Total Write Off of Assets:  -  360  -

Note 16 Committee & Programs Expense
Travel & Accommodation  65,000  80,273  25,729
Facilities & Catering  12,000  7,659  -

Total Committee & Programs Expense:  77,000  87,931  25,729
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2017-18

Budget  Full Year  Full Year 
$ $ $

2018-19

Note 17 Other Expenses
Marketing & Promotion  200  1,170  -
Bank Charges & Merchant Fees  3,500  2,889  3,498
Insurance  6,300  2,889  6,235
Parking  4,300  3,274  4,310
Legal expenses  -  3,478  -
AASSREC Membership  -  3,369  1,500
Other Miscellaneous Expenses  -  1,241  -

Total Other Expenses:  14,300  18,311  15,543

Note 18 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash On Hand

Cheque Account  88,507  87,057
Business Online Saver  507,384  300,000
ASSA - SIF  45,002  -
Suncorp Everyday Account  6  -
Beyond Bank Transaction Acct  1  -
CUA Everyday Account  20  -

Total Cash On Hand:  640,920  387,057

Cash on Hand
Petty Cash  212  300
Electronic Clearing  -  -
Undeposited Funds  -  -

Total Cash on Hand:  212  300

Investments
Beyond Bank Term Deposit  110,319  249,000
AMP Term Deposit  110,530  249,000
ME Bank Term Deposit  216,871  211,067
Suncorp Term Deposit  110,374  249,000
Credit Union Aust Term Deposit  222,366  216,942
Rural Bank Term Deposit  -  -

Total Investments:  770,459  1,175,009

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents:  1,411,591  1,562,366
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2017-18

Budget  Full Year  Full Year 
$ $ $

2018-19

Note 19 Receivables
Accounts Receivable  24,082  -
Subscriptions Receivable  -  31,596
Less Provision for Doubtful Debts  (1,003)  -

Total Receivables:  23,079  31,596

Aged Receivables Analysis 
less than 30 Days  3,659  -

31-60 Days  358  -
61-90 Days  -  -

90 Days and greater  20,066  31,596
Less Provision for Doubtful Debts  (1,003)  -

Total Aged Receivables:  23,079  31,596

Credit Risk

Note 20 Prepayments
Non Capital Prepayments  24,777  29,502

Total Prepayments:  24,777  29,502

Note 21 Other Assets
Interest Receivable  -  15,725
Witholdings Credits  -  -
ASSA Lapel Pins  2,210  -

Total Other Assets:  2,210  15,725

Current trade receivables are non interest bearing and are generally receivable within 30 days.  
Membership subscriptions are generally receivable within 90 days.  
A Provision for Impairmant is recognised against member subscriptions where there is objective evidence 
that a member subscription is impaired (ie unlikely to be paid) and the sum of the impaired amounts would 
be significant.  The Provision is set at 5% of the outstanding Subscriptions Receivable as at 30 June each 
year.  The impairment as at 30 June 2019 is $1,003 (30 June 2018:  Nil).

The main source of credit risk to the Academy is considered to relate to member subscriptions receivable.  
Based on historical data, the risk in regard to the payment of member subscriptions has been set at 5% of 
the balance outstanding as at 30 June each year.
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2017-18

Budget  Full Year  Full Year 
$ $ $

2018-19

Note 22 Fixed Assets
Furniture & Fittings

GV - Furniture & Fittings  9,680  198,491
AD - Furniture & Fittings  (6,588)  (191,532)

Net Book Value - Furniture & Fittings:  3,093  6,959

Computers & IT
GV - Computers & IT  38,699  -
AD - Computers & IT  (20,977)  -

Net Book Value - Computers & IT:  17,722  -

Net Book Value - Fixed Assets:  20,814  6,959

Note 23 Trade and Other Payables
Trade Creditors  2,729  332
Sundry Creditors  2,727  6,075
CommBank Credit Card Account  -  -

Total Trade and Other Payables:  5,456  6,407

Note 24 Employee Related Liabilities
Current

Provision for Annual Leave  14,655  30,810

Total Current Employee Liabilities:  14,655  30,810

Non Current
Provision Long Service Leave  16,620  123,096
Provision for Parental Leave  -  21,433

Total Non Current Employee Liabilities:  16,620  144,529

Total Employee Related Liabilities:  31,275  175,339

Note 25 Unearned Income
Current Projects

Big Data  19,898  75,331

Completed Projects
SAF01 Post Engagement Fund  -  15,442
French Embassy Fund  7,284  7,284
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2017-18

Budget  Full Year  Full Year 
$ $ $

2018-19

Current Grants (non tied)
Dept Education HERP grant  439,735  431,536

Other Liabilities
AASSREC Fund  -  58,883
Strategic Initiatives Fund  -  99,844

Total Unearned Income:  466,916  688,319

Note 26 Tax Related Liabilities
GST Collected - Payable to ATO  5,520  2,872
GST Paid - Receivable from ATO  (8,506)  (30)
PAYG Retained  7,355  -

Total Tax Related Liabilities:  4,369  2,842

Note 27 Reconciliation of Cash Flows

Net profit/(loss)  85,928  98,636

Non cash adjustments
Depreciation expense  6,048  2,614
Write Off Expense  360  -
(Increase)/decrease in receivables  8,516  (6,022)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments  4,725  -
(Increase)/decrease in other assets  13,515  (28,495)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors  (1,454)  68,363
Increase/(decrease) in employee liabilities  (144,064)  -
Increase/(decrease) in unearned income  (221,403)  -
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities  1,615  -
Increase/(decrease) in reserves  115,286

Total non cash adjustments  (216,855)  36,460

Net cash from operating activities  (130,927)  135,096
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2017-18

Budget  Full Year  Full Year 
$ $ $

2018-19

Note 28 Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
Total Trade and other Payables

Current  491,397  728,378
Non Current  16,620  144,529

Total:  508,017  872,908

Less funding in Advance  (439,735)  (431,536)
Less employee Entitlements  (31,275)  (175,339)

Net Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost  37,007  266,033

Note 29 Capital and Leasing Commitments

-  Not later than 12 months  54,292  -
-  Between 12 months and 5 years  215,309  7,965
-  Greater than 5 years  -  -

Total lease payments payable:  269,602  7,965

Note 30 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Note 31 Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Note 32 Related Party Transactions

Non cancellable leases contracted for but not capitalised in the financial statements 
(office rent and Multi Function Device)

There are no known contingent liabilities nor contingent assets at the date of this 
report that should be bought to account or disclosed.

No matters nor circumstances have arisen since the end of the period which 
significantly affected, or may affect, the operations of the Academy, the results of 
those operations or the state of affairs of the Academy in future periods.

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions 
no more favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated.

The membership of the Academy includes delegates from participating organisations, 
individuals and associates.  These are deemed to be related parties.

Other than the receipt of membership subscriptions, no related party transactions 
arose during the 2018-19 financial year (2017-18:  Nil).
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2017-18

Budget  Full Year  Full Year 
$ $ $

2018-19

Note 33 Key Management Personnel

Note 34 Financial Instruments

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  1,411,591  1,562,366
Trade and other receivables  23,079  47,320

Total Financial Assets:  1,434,670  1,609,687

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables  37,007  266,033

Financial Risk Management Policies
The Academy's Treasurer is responsible for, among other issues, the monitoring and 
management of financial risk exposures of the Academy.  The Treasurer monitors the 
Academy's transactions and reviews the effectiveness of controls relation to credit 
risk, financial risk and interest rate risk.
Discussions on the monitoring and management of financial risk exposures are held 
three times (3) per annum and minuted by the Executive Committee

The Academy's overall risk management strategy seeks to ensure that the Academy 
meets its financial targets whilst minimising potential adverse effects of a cash flow 
shortfall.

Key management personnel is defined by AASB 124 “Related Party Disclosures”  as 
those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling 
the activities of the Academy directly or indirectly.  
Employment conditions for all staff are guided by the Australian National University 
Enterprise Agreement. Details of the remuneration of those staff meeting the definition 
are available upon the consent of the Committee.

Committee members did not receive remuneration or any benefits other than 
reimbursement of travel expenses.

The Academy's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, local 
money market instruments, short term investments, accounts receivable and payable 
and leases.

The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with 
AASB 139 and as detailed in the accounting policies as detailed at Note 1 to these 
financial statements, are as follows:
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2017-18

Budget  Full Year  Full Year 
$ $ $

2018-19

Specific Financial Risk Exposures and Management

a. Credit Risk

Note 35 Restatement of Prior Period Error

 As reported Adjustment  Adjusted 
Balance 

Retained Earnings  789,890  (115,286)  674,604
Strategic Initiatives Reserve  -  115,286  115,286

Total Equity  789,890  -  789,890

Credit Risk is managed through apply policies and precedures such as systems for 
the approval, granting and removal of credit limits, monitoring of exposure against 
limits and monitoring of the financial stability of significant customers and 
counterparties.  This ensures that, to the extent possible, members and 
counterparties to transactions are of sound credit worthiness.

The main risks the Academy is exposed to through its financial instruments are Credit 
Risk, Liquidity Risk and Market Risk relating to interest rate and equity price risks.

Exposure to Credit risk relating to financial assets arises from potential non-
performance by counterparties of contract obligations that could lead to a financial 
loss by the Academy.

Amounts previously recognised as liabilities to the Academy have subsequently been 
assessed as appropriations of profit and, in turn, should have been trerated as a 
Reserve.  The creation of the Strategic Initiatives Reserve should have, in effect, been 
done so in the 2012-13 financial year.

The adjustment to the Opening Balance for the 2017-18 Equity balance is shown 
below.

2017-18 Opening Equity Balance

An adjustment has been made to the 2017-18 opening balances for this financial 
report in accordance with AASB108 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors .
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Furniture IT Assets Total
Gross Value

Opening balance as at 1 July 2018  198,491  -  198,491
Adjustments to opening balance  -

Adjusted Opening Balance  198,491  -  198,491

Additions (purchases)  2,362  17,902  20,264
Disposal - sale  (1,032)  (11,901)  (12,933)
Disposal - write off  (157,442)  -  (157,442)
Transfers  (32,698)  32,698  -

Closing Gross Value as at 30 June 2019  9,680  38,699  48,379

Accummulated Depreciation/Amortisation
Opening balance as at 1 July 2018  191,532  -  191,532

Adjustments to opening balance
Adjusted Opening Balance  191,532  -  191,532

Depreciation/Amortisation  772  5,276  6,048
Disposal - sale  (1,032)  (11,901)  (12,933)
Disposal - write off  (157,082)  -  (157,082)
Transfers  (27,602)  27,602  -

Closing Accummulated Depreciation/Amortisation  6,588  20,977  27,565

Closing net book value as at 30 June 2019  3,093  17,722  20,814

ASSET MOVEMENT SCHEDULE
as at 30 June 2018

Furniture IT Assets Total
Gross Value

Opening balance as at 1 July 2017  198,491  -  198,491
Adjustments to opening balance

Adjusted Opening Balance  198,491  -  198,491

Additions (purchases)  -  -  -
Disposal - sale  -  -  -
Disposal - write off  -  -  -
Transfers  -  -  -

Closing Gross Value as at 30 June 2018  198,491  -  198,491

Accummulated Depreciation/Amortisation
Opening balance as at 1 July 2017  188,918  -  188,918

Adjustments to opening balance
Adjusted Opening Balance  188,918  -  188,918

Depreciation/Amortisation  2,614  -  2,614
Disposal - sale  -  -  -
Disposal - write off  -  -  -
Transfers  -  -  -

Closing Accummulated Depreciation/Amortisation  191,532  -  191,532

Closing net book value as at 30 June 2018  6,959  -  6,959
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Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia Inc
ASSET MOVEMENT SCHEDULE
as at 30 June 2019

Furniture IT Assets Total
Gross Value

Opening balance as at 1 July 2018  198,491  -  198,491
Adjustments to opening balance  -

Adjusted Opening Balance  198,491  -  198,491

Additions (purchases)  2,362  17,902  20,264
Disposal - sale  (1,032)  (11,901)  (12,933)
Disposal - write off  (157,442)  -  (157,442)
Transfers  (32,698)  32,698  -

Closing Gross Value as at 30 June 2019  9,680  38,699  48,379

Accummulated Depreciation/Amortisation
Opening balance as at 1 July 2018  191,532  -  191,532

Adjustments to opening balance
Adjusted Opening Balance  191,532  -  191,532

Depreciation/Amortisation  772  5,276  6,048
Disposal - sale  (1,032)  (11,901)  (12,933)
Disposal - write off  (157,082)  -  (157,082)
Transfers  (27,602)  27,602  -

Closing Accummulated Depreciation/Amortisation  6,588  20,977  27,565

Closing net book value as at 30 June 2019  3,093  17,722  20,814

ASSET MOVEMENT SCHEDULE
as at 30 June 2018

Furniture IT Assets Total
Gross Value

Opening balance as at 1 July 2017  198,491  -  198,491
Adjustments to opening balance

Adjusted Opening Balance  198,491  -  198,491

Additions (purchases)  -  -  -
Disposal - sale  -  -  -
Disposal - write off  -  -  -
Transfers  -  -  -

Closing Gross Value as at 30 June 2018  198,491  -  198,491

Accummulated Depreciation/Amortisation
Opening balance as at 1 July 2017  188,918  -  188,918

Adjustments to opening balance
Adjusted Opening Balance  188,918  -  188,918

Depreciation/Amortisation  2,614  -  2,614
Disposal - sale  -  -  -
Disposal - write off  -  -  -
Transfers  -  -  -

Closing Accummulated Depreciation/Amortisation  191,532  -  191,532

Closing net book value as at 30 June 2018  6,959  -  6,959
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FINANCIAL DECLARATION FOR RESPONSIBLE PERSON
 
per section 60.15 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013

The Responsible Persons declare that in the Responsible Persons’ opinion:
 
(a)	 there are reasonable grounds to believe that the registered entity is able to pay all of its 
debts, as and when they become due and payable; and
 
(b)	 the financial statements and notes satisfy the requirements of the Australian Charities and 
Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012.

Signed in accordance with subsection 60.15(2) of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profit 
Commission Regulation 2013.

Dated this 27th day of August 2019
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AccountAbility (ACT) Pty Ltd  
ACN: 088 095 354 
 

PO Box 776, Mitchell  ACT  2911 
 

Telephone: 02 6170 6870 
Facsimile:  02 6260 7499 
Email:  admin@accountabilitywft.com.au 
www.accountabilitywft.com.au 
 
Liability limited by a scheme approved under 
Professional Standards Legislation 
 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE ACADEMY OF THE SOCIAL SCIENCES IN 
AUSTRALIA INCORPORATED 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Opinion 
 
I have audited the financial report of the Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia 
Incorporated (the Academy), which comprises the statement of financial position as 
at 30 June 2019, the statement of comprehensive  income, statement of changes  in 
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements,  including  a  summary  of  significant  accounting  policies,  and  the 
Responsible Person’s Declaration. 
 
In my opinion the financial report of the Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia 
Incorporated  has  been  prepared  in  accordance  with  Division  60  of  the Australian 
Charities and Not‐for‐profits Commission Act 2012, including: 
 

a) giving a true and fair view of the Academy’s financial position as at 
30 June 2019 and of its financial performance for the year then ended; and 

b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and Division 60 of the 
Australian Charities and Not‐for‐profits Commission Regulation 2013. 

 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
I  conducted  my  audit  in  accordance  with  Australian  Auditing  Standards.    My 
responsibilities  under  those  standards  are  further  described  in  the  Auditor’s 
Responsibilities  for  the  Audit  of  the  Financial  Report  section  of  my  report.    I  am 
independent  of  the  Academy  in  accordance  with  the  ethical  requirements  of  the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical  Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics  for 
Professional  Accountants  (the Code)  that  are  relevant  to my  audit  of  the  financial 
report in Australia.  I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the Code. 
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I  believe  that  the  audit  evidence  I  have  obtained  is  sufficient  and  appropriate  to 
provide a basis my opinion. 
 
Other Information  
 
The Committee is responsible for any other information which reports on the financial 
position  or  annual  financial  performance  of  the  Academy.    The  other  information 
comprises  that  included  in  external  reports  prepared  by  the  Academy  and  made 
available to the public such as the Annual Report, but does not include the financial 
report and my auditor’s report thereon. 
 
My  opinion  on  the  financial  report  does  not  cover  the  other  information  and 
accordingly I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the 
other  information  and,  in  doing  so,  consider  whether  the  other  information  is 
materially  inconsistent with  the  financial  report  or my  knowledge  obtained  in  the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
 
If,  based  on  the  work  I  have  performed,  I  conclude  that  there  is  a  material 
misstatement  of  this  other  information,  I  am  required  to  report  that  fact.    I  have 
nothing to report in this regard. 
 
 
Responsibilities of Committee for the Financial Report 
 
The  Committee  of  the  Academy  is  responsible  for  the  preparation  and  fair 
presentation  of  the  financial  report  in  accordance  with  Australian  Accounting 
Standards  and  the  ACNC  Act,  and  for  such  internal  control  as  the  Committee 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In  preparing  the  financial  report,  the  Committee  is  responsible  for  assessing  the 
Academy’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
Committee either intends to liquidate the Academy or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The Committee is responsible for the Academy’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report 
as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that  includes my opinion.   Reasonable assurance  is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
Australian  Auditing  Standards  will  always  detect  a  material  misstatement  when  it 
exists.   Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material  if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report. 
 
As part of an audit  in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards,  I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. 
 
I also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Academy’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the 
Academy. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Academy’s use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Academy’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If I 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention 
in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion.  My conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.  
However, future events or conditions may cause the Academy to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
report, including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 
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I communicate with the Academy regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and  timing  of  the  audit  and  significant  audit  findings,  including  when  considered 
necessary any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 
 
 
AccountAbility 
 

 
 
Anthony Wilson 
Registered Company Auditor 
Canberra, ACT  
27 August 2019 
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